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The proceedings, findings and sentences in the
foregoing military commission case, the mctions of
the convening and reviewing authorities thereon,

and the remarks of t he Judge Advocate General are
approved.

samy Seeretary of the Navy.
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UMLESS CLASSIFIED
WILL BE CLASSIFIED

PLAIN

I Unless otherwise indicated, this dispatch will be tranimitted with Deferred Precedence.
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him that the exescution should 2
opinicns of these three.

Shortly after this, Inous ordered Eoichi to have Kaufman executed by

the accused Second Lieut, Onose, attached to Inoue'e staff, was

ordered to deliver to Koror and see that he was executed. The

cused Tsuc mlﬂdlﬂh-iﬂ”ﬂnltmhﬁﬁntu
a trip from thuap, {

Kolchi, Onose, Tsuchiys, a photographer, an unnsmed mili ice 4
ﬂl“—tmmmptilwhhtﬂmiﬂw“p:: |
Kolohi's heasdquarters. At that point Katsuysma was told that he was to _
ptﬂmthmﬂumnmm {

hm:wpumdtm.mmhrm.hthmm-ﬂutﬂtn
the execution. Teuchiya returned %o Keufman hie personal belongings.
Egufman was given a clgarette and them he was blindfolded, Onmose informed
him that he was to be executed. After some shifting to give the photographer
the best view of the action, Katsuyama struck with a sword. The blow
almost tely severed the neck. Keufman fell into a hole which hald
been dug for the purpose, and he was then buried, The proceedings wers
ﬂmwmmdmmmt-.-dpwmm

After the execution, mhﬂ:nmuurwn-ﬂh i
Lnyortmmlihlm The grave was marked and flowers were planted.

After the surrender of Japan, an jan tnit opened the grave and -_-'*j'
established the identification of the m i r

) The prosecution then offered and, over the ions of the
the commission received extrajudicial statements ‘each of the h-
: were not im gonflict * !Iu evidence outli
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HAYY DEPARTNENT
Office of the Julge Advocate Oensral

Trom! The Julge Advoocate Genersl. e oL i
ot The Chief of Naval Operations (Op-22) \

The proceedings, findings and sentences in the foregoing
military commission case, and the actions of the convening and review-
ing authorities thereon, in the opinion of the Judge Advocst e Osneral,
are legal.

Referred for infoermation.

a. '
Judge Advocate General of the Navy.
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GOM EEFERRAL (7-9-48) bem General Court Martial Case No. 169824
Hame Hank or Rating Date Received
Hiroe KOICHI then a captain, IJA ) 27 April 1948
Teteuji EATSUTAMA, then a first 1lieut,, IJA
Ighire ONUSE ; then a second lieut,, IJA
Naohike TSUCHITA then a sergeant major, 1JA
(Tried in joinder)
Trial Held (Place) Date of Trial
° Guam, Marianas Islands 24 November 1947
OFFENSES
1, MURIER

Spee - 24 May 1945, Koror Island, killed by beheading with
a sword, a named American aviator, a prisoner of war,

II, VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND CUSTOMS OF WAR
(Eoichi only)

Spec 1 - Same time and place, failed to control persons under
his commnd and allowed them to kill same named POW,

Spec 2 - Same time and place, failed to protect same named

POW and allowed persons under his command to kill
him,

Fleas
N to all.

Findings
I, @ (spec proved except ms to accused Tsuchiya); II, @ (epecs proved in part)

Bentences
Koichi, Katsuyama, and Onose to be confined for a peried of 25 years.

Padject Sooremarks, the proceedings are approved, The findings of guilty
and sentences as to the accused Koichi, Katsuyama and Onose are approved,
)|

—Bugana Prison, Tokya, Japan (As to Kolohi Katsuyams and Onoss

Reviewing Authority 18 April 1948
Subject to remarks, the proceedings, findings of guilty and sentences,

and thesmtion of the convening authority thereon, are approved. The

record is, in conformity with Appendix D-14, Naval Oourts and Boards, 1937,

transmitted to the Judge Advocate General of the Navy o be revised and

recorded,
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I, @ (spes proved exeept as fo scouséd Teushiyn); 11, O (opess prowd in pard)




HAYVY DEPFANTWENT
Offies of the Fuige Advecate Sememl

16 JuL 1948
From! e Julge Advecate Gemeral
To! e Onief of Tewal opnuu- (Op.22)

T™he procsedings, findings ani sentenses in the feregeing

=il semanission ousc, and the of the eonvening and reviswe
ing ties thereon, in the en of the Judge Alvecst o Gemaral,
a9 legal.

Referred for infermation.

8, L. RUSSNLL
Judge Advecate Oeneral of the Navy.
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i r&m#mntﬁﬂd-.
YIGLATTON OF THE LAY AND GUSTONS OF VAR
n'tluﬂ-'l
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Tiges FOTONI than & 17a N Aprl) 1968
Totoul XKATSUTANA, then » firet o M
lahiye ONOKE =:-llll-l..l‘l“l‘
(Tried ta Jolner)
Lete of
Ggam, Marianee lslande i i Novembor L94Y
1, MUNINR
- 1948, Eewur lsland, killed behaading with
o .:L-—t—u-m'.mum.

15, VIeRASION OF THR LAY AND GUSTONS OF VAR
(Eviahi only)
fpee 1 - Sawe time and plage, failed te comivol peveens under
his sessmad and allowed them %o kil) seme samed POV,

Spes 8 - Tame time and place, failed to protect sems mamed
POV and alleved persons under his cemmand S0 kill

hi=,
i R ——
N % all,
mt-p
\ I, © (spee rroved exseps as %o ssoused Twushipe); II, G (sjees proved {n yerd)
Tentonees o

Kodohd, Zatowysma, and Unose %o o senfined for & yeried of 25 peare,
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thea o 1A W April 1940
Totenjl KATSUTANA, “-mﬂ.ﬂl
lehire ONOSE =l-¢ll:ll“..lf"ll
m!'_ﬂl lm-’"
(Tried fn jointer) -
Wil il (Flsee) Bl S Date of
" Guam, Marianss Islands 24 Hovenber 1947
— — ey
I, NURDNR
Bpee - M Moy 1948, Xorver luland, killed by behsading with
a wotd, a named Amevicoan avister, & prisessr of wr,
IX, VIOLATTUN OF THR LAY AKD QUSTONS OF VAR
(Xelehi enly)
Spet 1 « fame time and plage, failed %o eenirel perecns under
e somnnd ad allowed then %o Kil) same mamed 7OV,
Spee 2 - Same time and plage, falled to protest snme named
POY and allewed persons under his command to ki1l
him,
= == - e e Y
-‘“-uv
Tindings i
1, @ (apee proved emeept as %o socused Tewshiyn); II, O (o ees proved in pert)
—— = ‘ S——
Kolohl, Tateuyama, asd mese to W confimed for & peried of 28 yoaws,
€, A, Lotion 0 Mupeh 1948 .

Badjeet to remavis, the proceedings are approved. The findings of guilly
and semt ensve as S0 the orowsed Kelehi, Kateupann and Onose are apprewd,
—lngann Pxisen, Tolpa,.dagan Lia ta Laiabd, Jlusouges. snl Onosal..

Revieving ‘utherity 18 ipril 1048 =

Subjest %o remarks, tae prossedings, fisdings of guilty and sentenses,

| mmmuh—v—mmﬂiwmmmu
record is, in confermify with /ppendix B.l4, Naval Courts ond Bearda, 100V,

| tranmmitted to the Judge Advosnte Oemeral of the Nawy o be revised and
regorded,
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NAYY DREPARTNENY
mﬂhhlulln-hll-u

18 JuL 1948
Fremi  The Juige Atvosate Gemeral.
Pol The Ohief of Sawal Cpepations (Op-23)

hmﬂm-ﬂmth
militery somsission sare, and the astions of the eonvening and review.

ing sutherities thereon, in the opinion of the Judge Aldveoate General,
are lagl,

Referred for infermation.

0. L. RUSENLL
lﬂ-hhﬁ“ﬂﬁﬁw.
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14, Did the mccused acknowledge receipt of & copy of the - 3 :
charges and specificatieons? b :
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and in proper fiyrm? : H
TrEAErsSs s ERE AR e SR EE S e cEAEA R E . EE B TEEAR RS --'-'I-I'I.' ®Fiea _""l'li- anEtE Wwme
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all members of the court. and :.of the Judge advecato? : |
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FIEST ENDORSEMENT

'. ComMarianas lcthron 23 APR 1348
. IF12/P13-10(3) 02-

JIM-hn serial 3117

dtd. 22 March 1948.

From: Commander in Chief Pacific and U. 5. Pacific Fleet.
To: Secretary of the Navy (0ffice of the Judge Advocate
General).
\ Subject: X0IOHI, Hiroe, former captain, IJA, EATSUYAMA, Tetsuji,

| former first lieutenant, IJA, and ONOSE, Ichire, former
- sescond lisutenant, LJA - documsnts and petitions for

clemency.
Reference : (a) Cincpmcflt letter serial 1548 dated 18 April 1948,
1. Forwarded.
2. The record of proceedings of the trial by military com-

mission in the case of EOQOICHI, Hiroe, former captaln IJA, et al was
forwarded by reference (a).

WA-..____-"" I

S HI
CHIEF OF STAFF

Copies to: (lst end. only)
ComMarianas
Cincpacflt War Orimes Officer, Ouam
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Serial:

From:
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Via:

Subjects

Enclosure:

3

117

¢

UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
COMMANDER MARIANAS

(::WGE o e it

The Commender Marlanass Area,
The Secretary of the Navy (JAG).
Commandsr in Chief Pacific and U, 5. P&ﬂifir Fleat,

KOICHI, Hiroce, former captain, LJA, KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji,
former first lieutenant, IJA, and ONOSE, Ichiro, former
second lieutenant, IJA - documents and petitions for
clemsncy.

(&)

(E)
(¢)
(D)

(H)
(1)
(7)
(K)

(L)

(x)

(N)

Fetition from MATSUBASHI, Kyusaemon, dated 1 December 1947,
in behalf of KOICHI, Hirohide, in Japanese with English
translation.

Petition from NATSUME, Koo and 74 others, undated, in

behalf of KDICiI, Epei, 1n Japanese with Engliab translation.
Fetition from dIbHIZuuL, Junsuke and & others,’ undated, in
behalf of KOICHI, Koei, in Japanese with English translation,
Petition from KOICHI, Raiichi and 5 others, undated, in
bshalf of KCICHI, Hircei, in Japaness with Enmglish
translation.

Petition from SUZUKI, Tomo and 7 others, dated November 30,
1947, in behalf of KCICHI Koel, in Japanese with Engliah
translntiﬁn.

Petition from KOICHI, kMichihiro dated 1 December 1947, in
behalf of KOICHI, Kcel, in Japanese with English translationm,
Petition from KOICHI, Miyo (mother) and 5 others, dated
November 30, 1947, in behal® of KOICHI, Koei, in Japanese
with English translatica.

Petition from SHIRO, Kuraishi, dated 30 November 1947, in
behalf of EKEOICHI, Eoel, in Japanese with English translation,
Petition from LQKI Ktnji dated 30 lovember 1947, in bshalf
of KOICHI, Koei, 1n Japanese with English translation,
Petition frnm HOICHI, Chosaku dated 30 November 1947, in
behalf of KOICHI, Koel, in Japanese with English translation,
Fetition from ASABA, Shuichiro and 1 other, dated 30
November 1947 in behalf of KOICHI, Koei, in Japanese with
English translation.

Fetition from KOICHI, Yoshihide and 2 others, dated 28
November 1947, in behalf of KOICHI, Hircei, in Japanese

with English translation,

Petition from AOKI, Yunosuke and 8 others, deted 30

November 1947, in behalf of EOICHI, Koei, in Japanese with
English translation.

Petitlon from AOKI, Kojiro and 6 others, dated 30 November
1947, in behalf of KOICHI, Kocei, in Japanese with English
translation,
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FF12/P13-10(3) UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02=JDM=hn COMMANDER MARIANAS 8
e . |
Serial: dind
Subject: KOICHI, Hiroe, former captailn, IJA, KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji,
former first lieutemant, IJA, and ONOSE, Ichiro, former . {
second lieutenant, IJA = documents and petitions for
clemency,.

- e o o O o O O O O O O G O O O e e O e o e e e e o e = e e =

(0) Petition from NOBUO, Misymae, dated November, 1947, in
behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
tranalation,

(F) Petition from ITO, Toshio, dated 3 December 1947, in
behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
translation.

7 (Q) Petition from KOYAMA, Tatsuo, dated 1 December 1947, in
behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsujil, in Japensse with English
translation,

(R) Petition from KATSUYAMA, Yoshinosuke, dated 1 December 1947,
in behelf of KATSUYANA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with
English translation,

(8) Petition from KATSUYAMA, Shinji, dated 1 December 1947,
in behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
translation,

(T) Petition from SHIMIZU, Gonsuke, dated 3 December 1947, in
behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
translation.

(U) Petition from SOS0GI, Seizo, dated 30 November 1947, in behalf
of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English translation.

(V) Petition from TSUBOI, Yoshitomo, dated 3 December 1947,
in behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
translation.

! (W) Petition from SHIGEKURA, Sangi, undated, in behalf of |

KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English translation.

(X) Petition from TAKIZAWA, Genshin, dated 2 December 1947, in
behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
translation,

(Y) Petition from KAMIEKAWI, Hiroshi, and & others, dated
3 December 1947, in behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in
Japanese with English translation,

{Z]. Petition from YAMAGISHI, Gensaku, dated 3 December 1947,
in behalf of EATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
translation,

(AA) Petition from KOIDE, Washiro, dated 3 December 1947, im
behalf of KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, in Japanese with English
translation,

, (BB) Petition from EBIZAWA, Taminosuke, dated 2 December 1947

| in behalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English

translation.




\

FF12/p13-10(3) UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

02-JDM=hn _ ' COMMANDER MARIANAS o
Serial: °~ Jild el
Subject: EOICHI, Hirce, former captain, IJA, KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji,

former first lieutenant, IJA, and ONOSE, Ichiro, former
second lieutenant, IJA = documents and petitions for
clemency,

(CC) Petition from MOROI, Tokuji, dated 1 December 1947, in
behalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English translation.
(DD) Petition from KUJIOKA, Yoshiga, dated 1 December 1947, in
behalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Jepanese with English translation.,
(EE) Petition from KATAGIRI, Risaburo, and 1 other, dated 1
December 1947, in behalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with
English translation. :
(FF) Petition from GOTO, Bun, dated December 1947, in behalf of
ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English translatien.
(GG) Petition from KOBAYASHI, Toji, dated 2 December 1947, in
behalf of OROSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English translation.
(HH) Petition from AOYAMA, Mitsugu, dated 1 December 1947, im
* bshalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English translation,
(II) Petition from HIGURE, Iwagoro, dated 1 December 1947, in
behalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English translation
(JJ) Petition from GOTO, Saburo, dated 2 December 1947, in behalf
of ONOSE, Ichiro, im Japanese with English translation.
(EK) Petition from MIAYMOTO, Tadahiko, and one other, dated 2
December 1947, in behalf of CNOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese
with English translation.
(LL) Petition from ONO, Nobuyoshi, dited 2 December 1947, in
behalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English translation,
(MM) Petition from DEGUCHI, Shin, dated 2 December 1947, in behalf
of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japanese with English translatien,

1. A military commission convened by this command on Guam tried
subject named Japanese for war crimes committed ageinst American prisoners of
war on Koror Island, Palau Islands. All were sentenced to twenty-five (25)
years imprisomment, The record in this case has been forwarded to the Commander
in Chief Pacific and United States Facific Fleet, the reviewing authority, and
will, in accordance with the provisions of Section D=14 of Nawval Courts and
Boards, be referred to the Secretary of the Navy.

2. Enclosures (A) through (MM) have been received by Commander
Marianas subsequent to trial of the subject named war criminals and are for-
warded for such action as may be considered appropriate,.




‘o ;
FF12/P13=10(3) GINlTED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02=JDM=hm COMMANDER MARIANAS (446
Serial: ; dl_j'f

Subject: KOICHI, Hiroe, former captain, IJA, EATSUYAMA, Tetsuji,
former first lieutenant, IJA, and ONOSE, Ichiro, former
second lieutenant, IJA - documents and petitlons for

- E o o R O B e e e e e e e e e e e e - O e e e e e O O e e e

™ It 1s noted that translations of petitions in behalf of KOICHI,
Hiroe, (enclosures (A) through (N)), reflect variations in the spelling of
his first name. A1l of these petitions have been determined to relate to KOICHI,
Hiroe, former captain, IJA,

0&’ fwﬂf:-f.




TESTIMONIAL

l December 1447

Name : KOICHEI Hirchide (
Date of Elrth : Dee. 10, 1920

Present Address: No. 245, Kurita, Nagano City, Nagzno Prer.

The above-mentlioned person 1s the eldest secn cf the late
KOICHI Hirosnke and !s gentle ana sincere, possessing a strong
sense of justlice. His schcol reccrds through slementary and
middle schocls were very good and his gentle nature wom popularity
amcng those who knew him. He was rather retlcent and always got
along nicely with cther pecple, Eeing the first-vorn, he was
well qualified to succeed to his father's eatates. He was,
in addition, dutirul to nis parents and tender-hearted towards
his brothers and sisters.

He always siaed with the righteous and hated wrong.

Being very sensitive, ne was well up in art and enjoyed music
Lfrom time to time. When he was graduatea from middle school,
the whole country happened to be in the miast of war. As nis
father was very fond of the military uniform, ne followed nis
fatner's wishes and entered the military service. Gentle as he
was, he lacked in centrolling power, it is true. Eut he loved
a quilet life. As & commander, he was very considerate of nis
subordinates. Towards his subordinates’ wrongs he was lenient

and sympathetic. For that reason ne was loved by all.




Subsequent to war's ena he was chosen to be a civiilan battalion
commander for agrioultural production. Having been demobilized,
he Became a peaceful farmer, and as an avocation he esnjoyed art.
He was happy to live togetner with his bereaved mother and young
brothers and sisters. Until to-day he lived such a nappy and
peaceful life, being iloved by his superlors and neighbors. Such
being the oase, he was always respectea though his soclety was
limited. As ne was an exemplary young man in and out of his home,
no wrong could have been, perpetrated by nim, we beliieve. He was

tco good for tnat.

MATSUBASHI Kyuzeemon,
Maycr of Nagano Clty.




e c—

x%$-ﬂg:®§x$ - we § Vo g
A
‘J\%éﬁ—www-ﬁ ._
‘&-‘%ﬁéﬂéﬁsvmﬂxt‘ﬁﬁdm sw‘mﬁ 7 o
| 5 wot B~ 3 weddiese 8 i€ HB v ) Wy v o L Bl
«n-u,.i!—"ref-ﬂ\ i .ap—*.(;tﬁv—; ,f\prmux | anr\igf?_t_. *ﬁ\\i:%b.
B R e R A AR R Lh b LANTE
#adﬁ_‘r)‘(ﬁ? LpePrmdd Wi (00 @ 6 B
ﬁtaﬁii‘h(ﬁ*ﬁ*-‘ﬂu\ﬁ‘whrﬂiﬁkﬁ = ~oR el Tab s g
DRLfELLaNS "wtta~£#-<’?'ﬂﬁﬁii¥-fwi“ﬂ?*wi’
WA FE W e A o &
vl e iaﬁé-bW!!ﬁbﬁ-Qttt-ﬂnA&it‘h‘( * |
Ry qi‘-(w-f!ﬁ’bt-*&ﬁwin‘iwﬂﬁ e Wovil |

——m s w— ———————

‘ q'{!i‘\“w“ﬂv T E et R ~»tkhv

%v@-w;iﬂin—ﬁﬁ%?ﬁl* WL RRTTA LT B TR R A e "

W2 Bﬁ'*“_&mﬁﬁ‘ﬁ"—‘r‘\‘s‘ f!i_rti"*i% nar e §2 5 W SHES Q@"
I W— R~ .g. o E\ﬂ\z'ﬁa& -‘ﬁ'r‘!"q' My 7 ﬂ@ﬁ"f\*‘% b \4 ,i-d»r%ﬂ
é“%&if%ﬂ&%iﬂhﬁﬁtls sl oyt o el W nen 7
[\ 3 b 2 11~ WECPIN v o Q E. o e ﬁﬂt?‘.* *’QP
*imﬁf%# Ak AT war e b( W RO MR sy 'N\‘ S T
:ﬂﬁpw{r'ﬁt#’?x‘ . ot ﬂ*“&f’ﬁdémma\r o Row ‘R-i o
TR v rdestmi-wod ¥Wor Bl o {Uuhﬁ.ﬁ S 2 ﬂm
R ar®omd 0eE LB Wl W el R Yo ~wrb g sl o |
t‘l‘r 1rt$m’tmﬂt~ﬁr¥¢}nﬁﬂﬂ 73 ﬂ—h&m
' *ﬂiikﬁr"r‘dQF-\k{kb v Lo ﬂga.ﬂ-ﬁ—i’ruﬂ.ﬁ,\‘- |
| ¥ o P 3 MAD T nl!({i-tﬁr‘#wﬂ'*:ﬂ"-‘rtbdﬁﬂﬂ" w :
\1‘ H-—-\Q-!:\"-rﬂ AW wﬁi&ﬁw 40 @ s W -




i@ — - - eSS~ - S-S —— e
PR Lt W GO PR O bt
Mol W e\ w : ik

o R T s

e —— . —— e




e ———

——————

treat him leniently,

NATSUME Koo

TODORCKEI Kin-emon

NCZAWA Tomcheru
IMAI Michihiro

| ISHIZAXA Naoji
ACKI Sedaco
MINEMURA Kesao

TSUEADA Taksncri

YAIIASHITA Tsuyako
DOI Tokelo
URANO Yukio

YATAZAKL Dai

MINEKAWA Shokan

UCHIYAMA Kazuke

PETITION

and had a strong sense of righteousness as stated in the testimonial,

NISHIZAWA Shigetosh

KQICHI Koei, ex-Captain of the Army, was a very obedient youth

S0 should he have aocted against upfightness we hereby beg you that

you would take the extenuating eircumstences into consideration and

b ] P -y . d e
a.'i...;, Nia lts Lupgd <y
i 8 =811,

Daizujima-murs,
Nagano-ken,
, HekKoshimlzu, Naganoshl,

4], Nenase-maohl, FNaganc=-shl,
g4, Yoshldahigashl-machl, Nagano,
Inariyama-machi, Sarashina-guh,
12, Minamimats, Naganc=shi.
571, Shimchigana, Inescto-murs,
Sarashina-gun.
9%, Sakurase-machl, Naganc-shi,
206, Tamachi, Naganco-shi,
Nishi-tsuruga-machi, Nagano-shi,
Matsuoka, Daizujima-mura, Kami-
Minocehi-gun,

Akanums, Neganuma-mura, Kami-

Minochi-gun,

Inaba, Naganco-shi,

Minamimata, Nagano,
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ECGIKE Chieki
HIRATA Tsuysko
YAMANCI Tsune
SATAKE Kojiro
SAITC Kename
UCHIDA Kurajirgc
KOBAYASHI Kasezo

- EQIKE Atsumli

MINEMURA Tomoe

NAKAMUHA Bitaro
KURITA Kunitero

YONEYAMA Terasu

KURAISHI Tsurujiroe

HARADA Suni

OGAWA Sataroc
WATANUKL Takeshi
TAKANO Takeshi
YUDA Tsuneo
JARUYAMA Bunzo

"SASAKI Mitsu

MATSUZAKI Nerio
MAITA Tadashi
SUGANC Haruo
TAKIZAWA Yasuo
SATO Ihachi

Yokozawe-mechi, Naganc-shd.
2 A

67, Shinsuwa=mechi, Neganc-shi.
Minami-ishido-maehi, i;.inn-ahi.
Mipami-chitose-machi, ;
Furuno, Nagano-shi, : gt
206, Kurita, Nageno-shi,

207, Miwada-machi, Nagano-shi,
él44, Hakoshimizu, Nagano-shi.
447, Kurita, Neganc-shi,

07, Teehi-machi, Naganc-shi,
Nakamurs, Nagano-shi,
Miwada-machi, Naggno-shi,

20, Eewabeta, Nagano-shi.

430, Seljo, Wesakawaomura, Kami-
Minochi-gun,

39, Wekamatsu-cho, Nageno-shi,

539, Asahi-mura, Keami-minoehi-gun, |

-

do,
Naekamura, Naeganc-shi,

Tomiteke, Puruta-mura, Kami-
minoehi-gun,

Komachi, Nageno-shi,

Eiteiohi, Nagenc-shi, ’
Wakamatsu-cho, Nagano-shi,
Yoko-machi, Nagano-shi,

Kyowa-mure, Sareshina-gun,
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TAKIZAWA Yoshio ¢ 115, Seigo-machi, Nagano-shi. { |
INOUE Yukiko i 45, Asahismachi, " 'i
MAKINO Yosnhie ¢ 138, Agata-machi, " l {
HARAYAMA Kasuko : 18U Kami-ohitose, o-shi . |
KOBAYASHI Yoshio ¢ Motogen-machi, = " ii
TAKEDA Tatsuji : 218, Shinsuwa-machi, " |
IMATI Kiyoko : 16, Kitsuneike, - !
TAMANOI Shigeru . ¢ Minamimata, o
TAKIMOTO Katsutoshi : Mipami-agata-machi, o

j YOSHIMURA Shigeko : Shinsuwa-machi, .

' YAMADA Yuriko : Shinden-machi, g
HAKAZANA Tsuya :  Miwada-machi, -
KOBAYASHI Haru : Yokoyama=-cho, - i
NIIZAWA Yoshie : Iwatsukie-mura, Suburb of Nagano-sii. |
SAKAL Emiko : Yokozewa-machi, Neagano-shi.
IDE Tamon : Tsumashina-ocho, " |
KOBAYASHI Katsuo : Majima-mura, Suburbd of Haggno-shi. |

SHIMA Yoshiji

Tsumashina-cho, Nagano-shi.

NAKAMURA Teizo : Furusato-mura, Suburb or Negano-shi.
YAMASHITA Fusako : Ainoki-higashi, Nagano-shi.

MIYAZAKI Kaye : Ta-machi, Nagano-sni. |
KURASHINA Yoshinobu : Goka-mura, Hanishina-gun,

TAKATA Hisao : Sakuras-maechi, Nagano=-shi.

I ‘ MOMIYAMA A4
KAYATSU Tamio
HIGUCHI Yoshio

Yokozawa-machi, Nagano-shi.
Amori-mura, Kemi-minochi-gun.
Minami-chitose-machi, Nagano-shli.

e
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NQIEKE Kazmko

EKCIDE Temae

SHICDA Kaku
b YCODA Tamiko
MARUYALA Chiyoko

IDA Sadao

KURCE lMie

Eami-takata, Nagano-shi,

Asghi-mura, Suburd of Nugsno-shi.

Miwada-maehi, N o-shi,
Shinsuwa-=¢ .1, Kegenc-shi,
Tsur £a " ige 1 PANLC=5 A
and g Ak -y armppeliTOIll,
27, Tsumashi ; Nagano-shi,
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PITITIOR

Mr., KOICHI, EKoei is Mr., KOICHI, H'ronaka's alder brother.

It was with a great shock that we heard of his aetention by

the Alliea Forces ana moreover or nis transrer to Guam,

Oceania. As we are Tully sware of his character and when we

think of his famil¥y condivions and his future, we cannot but

5 beg you to repatriate him as quickly as possible by presenting

herewith a special petition. '

Mr, Koei was born as the eldest son or the late Mr, 1

Hirosuee, Since his chilanooa he nas been gentie ana rajitnful

and ne 18 a gooa youun, NAavVing & SLrong sense or justice,

But in tne mldst o the trends of tnougnt or millitarism he

g s § =

was also enlisted in the army following the rasnion of the

time. In spite of his personal strong mind he coula not dery

The general 1leoclogy Or tne society ai twnac vime, He Kixkeu a

Oules L1118 A B Lome nNe was aiways interested in drawing

pictures and drew much. After he was demobilized he has

decided to be a portrait-drawer, devoted himsslf to the study

N e

of art for which he had a great longing for many years and thus

he has made such progress in it as his plctures were accapted

for the local exnibition. He portraited many pictures of

pa—

officers and men of the Allled Forces and these picturss wera i

welocomed by them very much, He has been endeavouring to make 1

a great contribution toward a peacerul new Japan, doing what

he can. He who has chosen the second course in art which
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has no 1imit and border in the world believed that thare is no

error ln his course and we think that he was claver in his choics.

As we love him deeply we had a great expectation ror his existence.

Now that he has left here we feel keenly a great loss to us all.

We firmly believe that his existance as a man who seeks for peace

and also as a humanitarian is not at all small. It is not only for

the progress of his plcture-drawing that we t'eel sorrow. |
It 18 unclear whether Mr. KbSei has now been summoned as 1

a witneas or sent as a suspect or war orimes,

conducts we affirm that there was no injustice and falsehood in

his eonducts and we atrongly believe it. If he 1s examined in

connection with the responsibilities of a unit commander we

espacially beg you to deal leniently with matters concerning him

but I'rom his daily

taking the abovementioned circumstances into special account and

in cese he was summoned a8 a witness we hope that he will be

sent back in the shortest possible time and we ardently by you

to allow him toc open a new phase,

Your obedient servant,

WISHIZANA, Jinsuke,
TAKAMURA, Takashi,

ARATI, Junko,
KONDO, Alko,

No, 34¢Hakoshimizu-cho,
Nagano-shi.

Inariyama-cho, Sarashina-
gun, Nagano-ken.

315, Nakagosho, Negano-shi

liaka-machi, Yashiro-cho,
Hanishina-gun, Nagano-ken.

YOSHIZAWA, Takeshige,Amori-mura, Keamimizuuchi-

KURAISHI, Fumio,

MATSUMAE | Yoshio

gun, Nagano-ken.

Kawabata-takada, Nagano-
shi.

rurualtn-nurn,_Hngnno-qhi
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PETITION

KOICHI Hiroel
The avoffe-mentioned person was taken in custoly
as war criminal suspect but learning his home situation
and thinking about his onaracter, I beg ypu to grant special
oonsiasration 8o as to enable nim to return home,

After hls fatner's death, he lives with nis mothner,

five brotners and sisters.

As he is tne eldest son, he must make a plan for his
crothers and sistersto earn a living in future.

As he 1s tne mdinstay of the home,the son's absence
causes nis motner sadaness veyond our imagination,
I know very well nis character from his chilahocd.
He was kind to such domestic animals as cats and dogs;
he was fond of reading and was especially good AT drawinge.
He 18 gentle by nature ana was on intimate terms with
1 people and well spoxen of.

After repatriatéog, he devoted himself to painting in
order to earn A living as a painter., He is expert 1n por-
trait painting and he had painted portraits of many Allied

Foroes Soldlers.




He always said "] nave found in art a most congenial
oocupation.”™

The defeat made him return to his native place
and iignt of peace ana Jlove I'ill nis nome. Now,
owing to nis apsence nis ramily abandon themselves
to grier,

I petition Trespectlully that the Allied rorces will
grant Koichi, peace lover the releasement with mercy &ana

Limency.

=40 K“rltn, Nagano-sni, Nagano-xen.
Koieni kaiichi (Sealea)
Koiohi Aki s
Koichl Mieko "
Koiohi Yukio y
Koichi Ketsuel "

Koichi Mieko »




*'- '“"""*“'“’“W“"’*““_‘-.‘"T-*' O e s Y o e R
: : & . t N - A - -:-.I% .
i 1 : T P ; BB e LS
- . . B B - g e\l e 4
| = | | . & e sy | 5 i
o b e ENPSREHE SELC S Sr , o
.,Eg g #\@ > PRt ook -Hoed

ey A \e—:&‘»{ -
mngw '45%*— N ’r'-s?rr—’&"? g\*"'%h e
AN ?*ﬁmﬂ‘\ﬁwwwwﬁtuwﬂ"i*ﬁr 2 o)
&%’P@i?ﬁi o bl o N K e
[ ScBolgnet ol s we M o b e Ry M e R E]
\w-‘a«,wﬁmgtn R ‘E&M\&_‘E"ﬂ”%@ﬁ‘%’
D S S m%@—\-?mwwh B
h-(%fxz&—‘@at%,‘ﬁwf v&*wﬂﬁ‘wh’r\ﬁ*’\‘?ﬁ
-\NW ?‘Wh%*\%" @}*“'{W“‘JT’H&:""""-—‘\‘Q' >
\(_a-'rn M----a ﬁiw‘ %lf—- g W

A .-' r

; !

oA h T, Sy '1

_«Mw: fﬁ\!]{- ‘h%ﬁ' ot B B
’*‘E“*-Nb—\ Th Ol e ﬂ%v‘iﬁ*

K‘H —&('p o ﬁ'\n-ﬁa_.} |

B oy B oo i alenl ok uleaxe ]

i Bk 7

| lee S Biae M& L
| B \ij‘é,-ﬁ - Tt Lo W ' |

mx/qw-whz% » J iy = oo w.-\frﬁww;mﬁsx
“é“mv’%‘”gﬁﬁ e ey




.

PETITION

Nov., 30, 1947.

For what reason KOICHI Koeli was recently retrensferred to
Guam has not been made known to us, However, it is ocur firm
belief that he can never have acted against justice, being an
affable man of integrity, righteous and sympathetic by nature,
He is indeed an upright youth in character.

At home, he was loved by his family and made favourable

impression on others, Although he had no wide ecircle of friends,

e was guite affuble 1 soolet.
It 1s our humble and arde vish, not only for himself, but
51 fo is family, that he sl sent liome ickly as
POES le,
It is ocur humble reguest that ¥Ycu would takKe 1nt0 COnsider

ticn the abQva g-atement, asnd deal leniently with the fault
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PETITION

Name: KOICHI Koei .
The abovementioned person is gentle im nature and hard-
working. After being demobilized the~ year bperore last, he

supported, a ratnerless ramily or U brothers and sisters,

I am astonished that such a person has been arrested as a

war crime suspect. Should he be so proved, I sincerely

hope that he will be treated leniently. If suspicion were

clariried, I sincerely wish that ne will be granted to Teturn

nome as nuickly as possibie, .

Dec. 1, 1lwa7”
KOICHI Kicniniro

260 Kitanaka, Kurita-ku, Nagano
City, Nagano-ken.

-
|
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reTiT1I01N

It is a course of sorrow for familymembers, relatives and
friends that Koeli is said to have been removed to Guam Islend
af ter detension at Sugamo,.

As the eldest son of the late Hirgsuk®j, he had been sup-
porting his mother and younger brothers and sisters., We humbly
ask for his returning home as soon as possible, Why he had been
transferred to Guam is still unknown; It is quite unexpected
that he should commit gllegal acts for he is & man of mild, right
and chaste oharacter, After he had been demobllized, he returned
home, and loved and looked after his younger brothers and sisters,
as the head of his family. PFurther, he was also popular among
the neighbours. He began his study of pamtings, hls long-cherish-
ed desire. He was absorbed in it, as there came many orders from
Allled military personnel, After his leaving here for Sugamo,

Wé have been in great diffioculties on account of a mountain of
orders.

Therefore, His removal to Guam Island have caused us to be

fallen into great distress, economically as well as ciroumatancedly,

since he was the prop and stay of our family--good head-man,
good son and good brother. Our worry are dopbled  when we think
about his future,

We herbly reapectfully beg for his returning home as early

as possible,

Even if Koei committed & orime unfortunately, we humbly

request you to show oclemency to KOei in consideration of the

e ———




above-mentioned ciroumstances,

Nov. 30, 1947.

KOICHI Miyo, Mother. \
" Etsuko, Younger Sister,
" '{Hiromi, Younger Brother,
¥ Hironaka, "

" Tateko, Younger sister.

Hiroaki, Younger Brother,
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%, PETITION
' §O Nov. 1947
We are grertly surprised at the informatiom that Mr. Koei Koiehi
was taken to Sugeamo Detentiom House at the end of August and was’
sent to Guam the other day. i
Although there is mo knowledge whether he was ordered to appear
in the Nikisaey Tribumal as a War erime suspeet or as a wi tness,

vet we whe know him very well are perfectly econfideant thot he has
taken mo sets which would comstitute any orime.

We have the honor of informimg you that he has beem » humemitarisn I
of » strong sense of justice and that he has always beem » mild- ]
monnered =nd good-natured young man. \

In hds fmily, there are in =nddition to himself only his mother,
his younger brother q;d sl ster, It is considere& that his family
has been pleeed in a very great distress,

v We, for theat reason, are in special hopes that he will be allowed
to retura home in the shortest possible time in order that the an-
xiety of himself ns well es of all his -Tfemily members may be relieved
nnd also in the hope that his lefty objeet for the aeccumplisimente in
his fine arts will surely be attained. _|
lorsover, when M#. Koichi Keei is put om trial as a responsible
person in the aetual field, we have the honor to entreat your Emeellency
to make your most gensréussefforts with your perfeet understandl ag
about the above-stated faets so as to enable him to oome bagk to his
" home at the earliest possible moment.

I have the homor %o be,
I sir,

ey

e ——




Your obddient servamt,

SHIRO KURASSHT

Representative for all

|
- other itioners of
{ Awatna 3:'

rd, Nageno Pref.







PEBTIT31I00N

Nov, 30,11947
.KOICHI Koei demobilized heme in Jen, lest year. He again
transferred to Guam island in August this year, We cannot know \
of the detailed ociroumstances., He has been working at home for
his family as eldest son of Mr, Hirosuke who are already dead,
We hope he shall return soon, as his family has lost she

prop and stay and is sorrowful at his absence,

We, as intimate aocqaintances of Koei, hope his rapid re=

turning heartily.

2513, Inoue-mura, Kamitekai-gun,

Nagano Pref,
Aoki Kanji \
"  Kikui
" Kesa ji

»  Shiguko

: - Shigeko
w Keiko |
Fujisawa Rycg8buro
I
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| ' b 2 | T‘m ITION

| [ C 30 Now. 194V

i | I sm mueh surprised that Koei Koiehi should have been de- \
tained in Sugamo Detention House as a suspected wer-eriminal amd

then sent to Guem. Sinee he was demobilized, he had been looking

after his yvyounger brothers and sisters, taking the place of the

dend father., It may be easily imsagined how they are heart=broken
— at their lesiag him, the neucleus of the femily, sgain. He is leved
by every pf §is neighbors sinee childhood, and gentle amd daimty in L W2y
charaeter. Especisally he is se good at painting that we may well *
eall him a genius, And many orders were givea to him by the Allied
Forees and people held him in high estesm. Evem at preseant there
are many orders given by them, but inconvenienee is felt, I hear,
in executing sueh orders on -t&nunt of his absenee. :
Therefore, whoever is acquainted with him can never imagine
: from his charaeter that he was sent there because of his wrong deed.
But, if it is true that he had some failute, I eatreat you teo treat |
him wi th your gemerous heart for the sake of him and of his femily.
1 enagerly wish that the day of his eoming back end of hies
becoming servioceable to the Allied Forees ecome im am earliest
future, and At the same time I earnestly request you to get rid of
his familpis regret.
CHosaku Keishi

S Aomori Village, Kemi-Mizuuehi
| Distriect, Nagane Prefecture.
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PR TITION

30 Nov. 1047

Mr., KOICHI Koel was demobilized in January, last year
and called back again to Guam, South Islands. Datails of
the fact are not known; but as he i1s the head of the ramily,
supporting his mother and brothers and sisters, so his
absance from his house has caused a not inconsiderabhle in-
convenience, lir, BOEEHI 15 mild in nature and deeply
sympathetic with others, lMoreover, %2 i3 a man of instegrity.
So that, 1t can not be thought that he has been sent for
or agcount of his having been unjust irn his own conduct:
but, i1rf perchs I theres was any fault that was to be res-
porsible to him, I bag to entrest you ton 1;rq: him with
utrost Remsrosity and call him back home not only for his
own sake but alap for his family as soon as possibles,

Hoping that ycu will see your way to grant my recuest,

I hereby present this petitlon.

ASABA Shuichire

ASABA HNoboru

Hirashiba, Amori-mura, XKami-milzuuehi=gun,
Magano=-ken.
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PETITION

28 Newember 1947
p

We have recelved an information that KOICHI Hirocei, hav- t
ing been repatriatea in January 194c, was sant again to Guam
Island in August L1Y46, though we have not been inrormed of the
reason 1or that. He is the late Mr. KOICHI Hirosuke's eldest
son and nis successor. He 1ls gentle, affable and besnevolent
to his friends. His family are very anxious about nis fate
and are praying tc God for nis apeediest possible return.

We hereby entreat you to grant our sincere wisnes for

the above-mentioned perscn's earllest possible repatriation.

KOICHI Yosnihide
KCOICHI Suzu-ko
KCICHI Magsahlde

No. 258, Kurita-kitanaxa, Nagano-sni |
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I PETITION
30 Nov. 1947
Sir:

I have the honor of submitting to you the petition, signed {

by myself and six other persons.

I have heard that Keel Koiehi was sent to Busm Island,

When He returned home ~fter the defent of our country, his father
.] had alread~ died,

e is the he=d of his femily which consiste of his mother,
many of his younger brothers and sisters, and was sscuring the
living of his family. Quitedeontrary to my expectation, he was
sent to that island, »nd has been placed into = very difficult
distress.

Koei is ome of our relatives, and we have a firm belief that 5
he is an affable man of great integrity.

I hereby entreat you tomether with other persons who have

\ signed on this paper that you will de=l wi th him speecial lenience
for the sake of himself sand also for =1l his feamily members who |
have lost his father so =s to enable hill to returm to his home in
the shortest possible time.

I have the honor to be,

air, .
Your cbedient servant,
Kojire Aoki,
his umele, Wo.2,730, Inoue,

Inoge-mure, Kmmi-takai-gun,
Nagano Frefeecture.




——
e —

Teume Aoki,
l{ehiro 4oki,
Kazuyo Aoki,
Sakae Aoki,
Nisake Aoki,
Sadako Aoki.
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PETITION

We are in late eutumn, and are busily engaged in tie prepa-
ration for tiding over the year-end. It is indeed heart-brealk--
ing to behold the grief and lamentation of the parents, brothers
and sisters of KOICHI Koei who was sent back to a certain island
in the South in less than ten days after his demobilization,

Koel was gentle and righteous from his childhood, and we are
entirely confident of his goou behawlor during his stay abroad,
What happened to him recently may be beyond our conjeoture, He
is the eldest son, and his parents, brothers and sisters are
eagerly awalting his early release and return, e are his near
relatives, and considering his family affairs, it is our ardent
wish that he should be released home, He is believed to have
ocbediently submitted to the order of detention,

This is the earnest appeal of his near relatives that he
would be released to his native place as soon as possible after
the conoclusion of his examination,

Nov, 30, 1947.

His unole Yunosuke .okl (signed)
Gennosuke Aoki( )
Kiyoko Aoki (L " )
Masami Aoki g " )
Kaneo aoki ¢ "
Kesakiochi aAoki( - )
Kekutaro Maruyama (signed)
Mitsu Maruyams iy N )

Tomiko Maru yams " )

il
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i GOMCERNING THE CARACTER OF EAYSUYAMA TETSUII, E.-LD¥,

1., His native place and ite surroundings:
EATSUYAMA Tetsuji was born as the second son of KATSUYAMA Kotaro, 1-

No. 2,008, Takaiemnura, Kamitakeal-gun, Neagano-ken on 7 February 1915,

His fether, Eptaro (dead) was a teacher of a primary school and his

mother, Mitsue, sngaged in farming enough to get plenty of food while
kseping house,
He had two brother Kisuke (elder), Jisuke (younger) and two siatera
nea (elder), Yukie (younger), but the elder brother and the younger sister
[ was dead, the elder sister was married to other house and the youngesr bro-
ther is now detained in soviet area.
Tetsuji'a home whers he was brought up from infancy to youth was
paaceful and exceptionally well-off as a farm-housa.
2. His character and his deeds.
Az his father had hed interest in study of vegetation, he also had

much of the same taste aince his completion of primary school course till

i 'he becoms & two ysar class student of a middls school,

." Beasides, he has various kinds of taste and in his middle school life,
? he was engrossed in sports and music, He was very courteous and kimd to 1
\ his schoolmates and his character was generally gquist and steady and not

] gay in the lsast,

| On graduating he wanted to enter a normal schoel but owing to his

[ weakness in mathematics he could not accomplish his pmrpose,

After completing the middle school course he served in the Takal-mura

Industrisl Quild as the financial clerk till he sntered barracks.




He then showed m excellent ability in the above business, being
kind, courteous snd bright to everbody, upon whom he made very favorable
impresasion. '

During the Bbove-stated period of service, he stuiied *No' songs
and flower-arrangement as his taste, which he was very much sagesr to
learn, as they were likely to fit his charaecter. (enerally speaking,
he was obedient to the Head and others in the office and kind to his
friends; a0 he got the best raputation.

Relation between him and me:

I mag born in the same village a= he was junor by and three years
to him, =0 I went along witlgfin the course of stchool life three yesars
laber in the same primary school ocnd middle school, and even in the office
of the Industrial Guild he and I ssrved together for a year and a half
in the sams ssction, — strangely an intimats relation was there batweean
us,

He was one of my friends from childhood, a senior in school-life,

& colleague in the office and a companion in musie, sporta, 'No' songs
and flower-arrangement as well, s0 I believe, I am the first man to
underatand him. |

Fe was almost wanting in originoality and dogmatism, =0 he always
acted upon senier's instruction or after hl‘rl.l-:‘ asked for colleague's
eriticism, and in doing things he was so strajightward as to be callpd
a simpletdn: .

He also @fém talked sbout poetry and literature with me and it

seemed that h. hed a pretty good kmowledge thereof,

Generally spesking, the strongest impressiom which I received from




o P " ( |;‘ L }

him was that he was a person faithful te his frishds asd kind to all,

I made the above d--riptln;: in such a mental condition as if Juwere
to swear by god, Ten years have passed since I parted with him, for he
was serving in the army and in these ten years wha® changes have happeaed
in him 93 =0 I cannot help being anxioma about it,

Was his tender and simple mind spoilsd 1=n the furious battle=fiald?

or did ths strict orders of his senior officers misuse his virtus of

obedience?

I feel a= if my heart were broken breaking at the sight of hias

mother and ‘his wife, who are leading the god=fearing life and preying for

him.in their own native place,
November, 1947

Nobuo Miyamae (Semled)

Takai-mura, Kamitakale-gun, Nagano-ken.

I hereby certify that the above is true in svery particular,

3 December, 1947.

Naoshichi Nekamure (Sealed)

Head of Takai Village Office, Eamitalai-
gun, Nagano-ken,

i g il
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): 3 s ke CHARACTER

Name : EATSUYAMA Tetsuji.
Rank: rormer lst Lisutenant. i

AMdress: No, 2,0l6 Takai, Tekai-mura, Eami-takai-gun, Nagano Pref,

.

As he was sincere, mildeasatured, and kind to his friemds, He, in sdditim,

was always loved and respected by his clapsmaten when he was in the middle

— e TR

sohool, He was of such a good personality that he loved peace and culture
seven alter his greduation from that school., There was no one who spoke 11l
of hin, Every one who knew him praised him to the skies saying hbat he was
a goo! social being who loves peace, and has l strong sense of responsibili-
ty. 1 also firmly believe it from the bottom of my heart.
1 certify that the above-mantionsd statement 1s true in ar-rj_.pﬂutq.‘ J
ITO Toshio,
a friend of KATSUYAMA Tetsgji,

No. 240 Suzaka, Susakea=cho,
Fanitakai=-gun, Nejmao—ken.

I hereby certify that tis above-mentionsd statement is correet in

every particular,

NAKAMURA Newoshiehi,
Village Headmen of Takiemura,
Kamitakai~-gan, Nageno-ken.

'l December 3, 1947,
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CERTIFICATION OF PERSONAL CHARACTER j
1 Dec. 1947

Name: KATSUYAMA Tetsull , ex-Army Lt,

Pomicile: No. 2,C1l6, Takal, Takal-mure, XKemitakai-gun, ' l
Nagano Praf. !

e — -

The above-ment cr=d person wiAs Serious end Adi1lipentidn
his studies, making gscod records et the primary and middle

i ! schools; 1t was quite natural, therelocre, that he then anjay-
ed the confidenee of hils fellcw-studenta. ™hi] arvine as

a slerk in the cffige of our Village Industrial .:kﬂﬁﬂﬂlH.'ficn‘
he was devoted to hls duties and won the eonfidenca of the
villagers, and great hopes had besah entertalged of him as a
promising youth.
I hereby certify that the ambove statement 1is quite
sorreet., KATSUVAMA Yoshinosuke
Cne or Relatlive of WATSUYAMA Tetsujli,

No. 2f2, Takei-mura, XKeanitakal-gun, Nagano Pref.

I hereby eertify that the abowe is true
and eorrset. 3 Dee. 1947

NAKAMURA Neoshiehi,

Headman of Tekal-mura, 3
: . Kami=takali=-gun, Nagano Pref. q

P T -
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CERT IF ICAT ION OF PERSONAL CHARACTER

e i 8,

Name : EATSUYAMA Tetsuji
[ Rank: Ex-lst Lisutenant

AMddress: 2,016, Osza=Takai, Tekai-mura, Takai-gun, Naganoc-xen, !

About idea, character and good deed.
This is to certify that the abovementloned person, haviig been influenced by
hia father, an educator who rendered consclentious servicea for long time

and who concentrated his mind upon his children®s discipline day and night,

Entsuyams obtainsd gratifyin: sxcelsnt results in studles and sports
which he was in the elemsantary school and middle school,

His principle was to bs dutiful to his farenis, to love his country
Pfervently and to lead his classmates by setting and exzample.

Entering military service, he was obedient to the Imperial Reascript
and becams the pattern of soldiery and was awarded with unprecedesnted
promotion,

l, Since his childhood he had been gentle, and virtNous, having a
! knngludgu of human nature, he loved others and won respect of his
clasamates. A8 he grew up, he msszumed leadership of village folk as
a4 young leader of the village,
2, He obtained i:llant records in school, and as he got to the upper grade,
he vz awarded with honor prize, and every year he took charge of the

class, as monitor,




Dec, 1, 1947 !

EOYAMA Tatsuo

Eatsuyama Tetsuji's Elementary School

Teacher,
1173, Oaza~-3hizuma, Akitsu-mura,
ghimomizuuchi=-gun, Nagano-ken,

I certify that ths abovemantioned astatement is trues and correct

to the best of knowledge and oeliel.

Dec. 3, 1947
NAKAMURA Neoshichi

Village mhster of Takai-mura, Kami-
takai-gun, Nagano-ken,
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CERTIFICATICN C? PERSCMAL CHARACTER

1, Dec. 1947
Name: ¥ATSUYAMA Tetsujl, ex-Army 1st Lt.

“resect Address: Nc., 2,016, OCaza Takal, Takaiemura, Xamie- {
takal=gun, Nagano Prefl.

'his 1s to certify that the ove mentloned person was

amployed ylark t redit Section, Industrr 7ulld of Takal

Village alter he w raduated from the uge'ta Middle Ssheol,
aztabllished Lv imi=Takal=gun, vwobal grvine at the S5ection

referred to Tor three vears he was cnll ip for militery service,

and during hias servize he was promoted to N.C.0.. He passed
the axamineticn t'or Milltary Academy “nd after belng praduasted
frem the above Acadenmy lia went to front.

Feing sincer: ie is dispositior and faithful in hi=s duty,

he wor t! wwnfidenoe of hls collerues and villagers. He,

also, nrnnlted himsel gse to hia dutles wh!la he served in

the Credit Secztlion, a was look inon as a premlsings youth.
RATSUTAMA Shinji, s1lutive ot L ama Tetsuji

Nc. 1998, (Caza Takal, Takal-murua '-Takel-pun,
Nagano Praf,
1is is to cartifvy that the uitove statement 1a true and

corract toc the bast of nmy knowledpe =nd ief

i S, Dec, 1947

NAXAVURA, Naoshichl, Head of Taxai-mura, Kami-Takal-gun,
Naganc Pref.
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CERTIFICATION OF PERSONAL GCHARACTER

% Dec. 194%
Name: KATIUTAMA Tetsulji
Rank: ex-Army Lt.

Domicile: No.2,016, Jaza Takel, Tekal-mura, Takal-gun,
Nagano Fref.

Thie is to certify that the sbove-mentioned person was

good in behaviour, gentle, benevolent, amisble and was beloved

by his classmates at middle school.

SHINIZU Gonsuke,

Kitehara=maehl,
Kami=Takal=gun,

a friend of KATSUYANA,
duseka=machl,
Nagano Pref,

Thie

tc certify that e apoya stateme is true
and norruc%ﬂt-: t.hg est of my knowledge anrhe&}af.

NAKAMORA Neoshiehi,

The Head of Takal-mara,
Tekai-gun, Narpan® Pref.
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CEHTIFICATE FOI I'THSCHNAL CEARALCTER

30 Nov. 1947

Name: KATSUOTAVA Tetsuil
Rank: Former Lt., Army

Address: 1n, 2,016, Oaza=takal, Takai=-mura, Kamlitakai-gun,

Faro=kan.,

This 45 to cartify that the abovementionad person has
heen throur-out the whole course of his 1ite 4in his villape

virils, milc-mannered and raithrful. e, in additicn, has

L]
alwaya Talr and scur ire in dealing with matters. He has
anioyvead h'=h reputation among his villagera and thus
eonatently ~a! 1iving example for all) others in his dailv

1ifea,

Yo, 1,848, Oaza=takai, Takei-
B

mura, Xaritakal-pun, Fapgano-kan,

T alar epertify that the shovementionad facts are all

X Dec., 1947

NAKAMURA, Nadhichi,

Head of Takai Village,
Kamitakail=gun, l'agano=ken,
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3 Dec. 1947

-

Name: KATSUYAMA Tetauji, ex-Army Lt.

Domicile: Mo. 2,016, Takal, Takai-mura, Kami-takai-gun,
= Napano=kean.

The above-mentioned person 's an arfable man of
integrity, full of warm friendahip, of simple and virile
spirit, and has a strong sense of resronaibility. "“hen

once he have, made up his mind, he naver falls to carry

out 1t.

In home life, he was always obsdient to his parants,
When he ceme of age, he was reverenced and loved by all
nis rriends. JParticularly, when he was a stuaent of the
middls school, he went on foot a distance of one and a
half *ri' to school, never having missed a day.

e had ma rreat regard rfor his persevarance and diligence.
Although he 13 now under detention, we firmly believe that
there 15 no change in his mind and he will be fairly judged
on a trial, just and righteous.

I hareby certify that the above statement is
quite correct.

TSUBOI Yoshitomo, (sealed)

A friend of KATSUYAMA Tetsuli
Ne, 723, fuzaka-machi, Kami-takai-gun,
Magano=-ken.




NAKAMURA Nadhieni(sealed),

Headman of Takai-mura, Kemitakai-gun,
Nagano-ken.
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CERTIFICATION JF PERSONAL CHARACTaR

Name: KATSUYAMA Tetsuji, ex-Army Lt.

Present Address: No.2,0lt, Tekal, Oaza, Tekai-mura, Kami-Takai-
gun, Nagano Pref,

He was bright and cheerful, and had warm friendship for
every friend of hias. He was llked by all cof his friends better
than any other pergons. His enthugisstic effcocr% for learning
was slso reverenced by them. He wag a man of character end
woen respect cf all the studen$s in our school.

I hereby certify that the above is quite correes.

SHIGEXURA Sangi,

Ue-machi, Susake-machi,
Kami-taekal=gur, Nagaono Pref.

I hereby certify that the above is nulte correct.
Nk AllURA Waoshichi,

Villege-master of Takal-gura,

Kami=-takai=-gun, Nageno:Praf.

-y
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CERTIFICATLE FRC PEALCNAL CH.ARACTLER

< Dec. 1947

Name : KATSUYAKA Tetsujl
Hank : Former ist Lieutenant,
.ddress : No, 2,0lp Takal, Takal-mura, iml=takail-gun, Naguno

Prefecture,

Hea was of a gentlie dlsposition, 1% 3t the same time, wat of
fortitude, 8 wWag o n of falthifulness and politeness and
patient ubout everything. &6 wa: alwauys sincere, earnest,
incorruptible, € Wiz aléuv consclousness 1tselfl, It 1is
nature thut one is apt to tuke mwean sttitude towards powerful persons,
but he disdained any ides of truckling to the puwerful, una btehuved
gentlemanly to everybody throughout the whole course of his life.
orecver, he never culled other verscons with impolite words und w
always olLlite courteocus, & wag never haughty wit el n=-s
and dislited to dc such & toi . He was in hlph oredlt with his school-
mates uand friends, wurd: his schcol days, he was elected us a1 committec
ol th japartment of Art and .clience as well as other affairs,
devoted himsel!l to his dutiesz with sinoerity for the benifit of public

interest und welfere in deflance of soaringy any valns,

I have entioned bove, his charucter and daily conducts

show thot g8 was un of all-round nature and full of humanity,

KIZAW4A Genshin
I'riend of IEUYA A Tetsujl
ko, 3u] YokC=-muchl, suzaka-oho, Kami-takai-gun,
agunc Ferfeoture,
December 2, 1947.

I hereby certify thut the above-mentioconed stutenment 1s true and
gorrect in every purticular,




NARALUARA Naoshichi
Villapge lHeadman of Takl-mura,
Kami-takai-gun, Nagono refecture,
December 5, 1li4].
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CERTIFICATION OF PERSCNAL CHARACTER

Ak A A a4

3, Dec. 1¥4Y

Name 1 TATSUYAMA Tetsu]jl.
Rani ! ax=Armv Lt.

Present Addr

[ ]

8

i}

: Ne. 2,01le, Takal, Oaza, Tami-mura, “ami-
taka i-gun, Naganc Pref.

HFe was kind and pgentle by nature in hls btoyhooa, and
was loved uanu respected ty those who surrcunded him. later,
he btecame & man of moral sense, and parif'crmec his scelal duty
completel r, @ was alsac a8 leadinrs man among nNis friends anpd
junicrs in ris netive plece. He was devcted tc nlz parents
gt home, an! his family was a gcod example for the villapars
o8 & peaceful. one,. 'hile he ettendea our schcol, e was
lovea by nls _teachers and was respected by nls schocl=mates,

eas for peace ani eivilizetion.

ecoording 4o unceased saek

b |

These, whe have cnce been acouaintea with him, eannot

but rememter hir ] esr ard intinete fellow.

8 llarai cartify thet the abeove ia mite aorreat.

MET Seendd CANAGI Masakatsu
WAKUT Brirarn CBAYASYI Saburo
ACXI Shoi
His cl:ssmates at 3ur=ka MNiadle 5Szhool, Nagano Praf,
I hereby certiry that tne abeove 13 juite correct.

NAYAMURA Neaoshicenl, Village-maater cof Taxsi-
rura, Xamltakai-gun, Napano Frer.

Ld
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GERTIFIATEON OF PEMSONAL GHAKACTER

3, Dece, 1947
Name: EKATSUYAMA Tetaujl

AMdress: Nc«2,016, Tekel, Onza, Takel*murs, Kami=Takei-gun,
Neranc Fref.

! i Rank: ex=Arny Lt.

¥

i

;’ He « ften viesited us, Trom his primary school deye, to
play with our ehlldren cr to lnstruct them in their lesrning.
He gulded them so pindly and heartily thet cur children wvere
quite famlliar with him end were waliting for him to ccmes
Then he greduated frcm a middle schecl and served in the
office of tha agricultursl ss-ceclatiocn of the villapge, where
he was the cbjieet of preise cf its members. Afterwards he
ves levied intc the army, but 1 am smre thet hls gentle

natfire has bean uncheneed as it was In his boyhoods

1 I hereby certify that the above 1a gquite egrrect.

YAMAGISHI Venseku,

a friend of KATSUYALA Tetsuji's fether's

Koe 1,286, Susaka, Oaza, Susaks=-machi,
Kami-tekai-pun, liagesne Pref.

I heraby nﬁrtlﬁrﬁ. that the above le¢ sulte ccrrect.

NAKAKURA Keoshichi,
Villape-mantdr of Tuhql-nurui

Hamitakel-sun,: Naesnc Pref.

[







CERTIFICATION OF PERSONal CHaRoCTER
Nume: EATEUVaMA Tetsuld

Rank; Ex-1st Lt.

Address: 2,108, Oaza Temkei, Teakelemura, Kmitakei-gun, agane-ken.

Seon after XATSUY.Ma gruduvated from the middle school, he wae
emnleved =8 meambter of Industrinl Guild. I worked Wi th him at the
iask =1de tv side wit+th hie desk,

He was by nature cheerful =nd bright, having = strong sense of
reanonsibility so thet he devoted to his duties °nd worked e~rnestly.
Ha wms loved by others just ns he was by myself.

Cn the other hand, he wes vervy courteous -nd friendly, =and even
after retiring from service, he wre 28 courteous to his superiors as
bafore and wrote to them from time to time, Ve was sayine thet in the
army he was resprected =nd }eved bv his superiors as well as by his
comr~das nnd subordinetes =nd theat ho could disehmarge his duties

b"‘lﬁET‘full b

L |

2 Dae, 1047
KOIDE Washire (=ealed)

7R, Oaza Takai, Takai-murs,
Eamitekmi-gun, Nesgano-ken,

gertify that the above-mentioned st~tement is
trué »nd correot to ths test of my knowledge =nd
bnlief-

¢ Dee. 1947
NAX.MUR. Napshiehi (semled)

Village master of Taksi-mupa,
FKemitekei-gun, Nagano-=ken.
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E Dec. 1v4a?

Domicile: Yamagata, Yamagata-mura, Naka-gun, Ibaraki-ken.

Present Address: No. 1641, Kami-kane-machi, Mito-shi.
Name: ONOSE Iehiro
Date of Birth: 10 March 1¥20

This is to certify that the sbove-mentioned person was

a mAn or solid principle, and a good clitlzen while ne was

-

residing in Mito-shi.

EBIZANA Taminosuke,

Assistant and Aching Mayor
of Mito-she.

-t




A ...ﬁ




“mm » Mito-shi,

Dite of Birth : 10 Mar, 100P

ONOSE Iehiro
This is to certify that the above-mentiomed person
bas good reputations mild and good-patured and is an
exemplary young man in his native towm.
Immediately after his repatristion rrom the South
Ares 1o Jasuary 1946, he was married and earsestly engaged
ia his business

MOROT Tokuji

Yornd Head of Neighborhood
Eﬁ: Kamikans-ebo,
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1l Dec. 1vav

Domicile: Yamagata, Yamagata-mura, Naka-gun, Ibaraki-ken.
Present Address: DNo. 164l, Kami-kane-machi, Mito-sni.
Name: ONOSE Ichiroc

L Date of Birth: 10 Maren 1¥E0

To witneas the personal character of the above-mentioned
person, the tollowing tacts may be stated:

l. After being graduated rfrom the Mito Middle School,
ne entered the Sendai Higher Industrial School, ahd at the
sameé time when ne was graduated I'rom the same, entered barracks
as a soldier in active service, and was demobilizea in January,
1946,

£. He was gentle in nature; a man with the drillea-in-

|| habit or being decent in apprearance and manners; always

warm-hearted and raithrul vo his class-mates, and had even l
the experience or having saved one of his rriends, by

showing him right way, trom his being compelled To leave school.

4. After demobilization he has been making efforts for
the encouragement of the peaceful thoughts and democratization
for the people in his street and its neighbourhood, to say

nothing of his family.

KUJIOKA Yoshiga,

f Social Education Section,
| Education and Welfare Department,
Ibaraki Frefectural Government,
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J GERTIFICATION OF PERSONAL OHARACTER

1 Dec. 1947

Preseat address: No. 1641, Eamikane-machi, Mito-shi,
Ibaraki-ken.

Date of Birth: 10, Mar. 1089

ONOSE Iehiro ]

This is to ecertify that the above-meationed person
is a man of primeiple, true to his friemds so he hadé won |
the confidence of his seniors and juniors. He was alseo \
a devoted student, having an excellent spirit of inguiry.

EATAGIRI Risabure ‘i
{

Instructor of Mito Middle School '

No. 5788, Tokiwa-machi, Mito-shi. I

ITEUNE: Kiyoshi f

Instruotor or Mito Middle Sschool

No. 4993, Sunalabo-cho, Mito-shi. \







9
) " g “ =
( j ( }
CENTAFICATION OF PESUNAL CHARACTER
Dec. 1947
Permanent address: Caza-yamakata, Yamakata-mura, Naka-gun,

Ivaragi-ken.
Present address : 164), Kamikane-machi, Mito-shi,
Date or Birth : Mar. 10, LAVEO,.

ONOSE Ichiro

This is to certify that in the elementary school, Onose
was gentle ana doecile having co-coperative spirit amd pever
been seen to quarrel witn hiscédassmates. As he was
specially very kind to his friends amd an obliging person,
he engoyed their utmost conridence. He was alsoc obedient
tc the teacher and was a conscilentious child with a strong

sense of Jjustice,

GOTO Pun (sealed)
Ex-teacher in charge,

Prineipal of Fakehara
Elementary Sehool of
Higashilbaragi-gun,
Ibaragi-ken.

4B
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1l Dac. lvavy

‘resent Address: No. l64l, Kamikane-machi, Klto-sni,
Ibaraki-ken.

Name QIICSE IChiro

Date of Birth : 11U Kar. lydu

Thia is to certiry that the above=mentioned »erson
is orf a mild cnaracter. From his childhood, he had been
dutiful to his parents, true to his brothers, and very
kind to others, As he grew older, ne was pious, ana cnaritable
to all. As he had much interasst in techniecal rield, he
entared a technicmal college. He was also serious in his
stuay as well. I am rirmly convinced that he .18 one or

[ ]

the model young men in moaern Japan. I am practising
rmedieine and am an old acqualntance ol nis parenta'. I
know nim 1rrom his eniiducod. About twelve or thirteen
years ggo, wnile hls elder sister was surfering rrom
serious pneumonia, I remember nim nursing her witnouu
sparing himselr, wnicn was of great help To her earliy
recovery. I have been deeply ilupressed by nis arrectionate
naturs.

He has recently been engaged in the business or Tile-

making and is doing t'air and souare commercial deal.

The above is a very brier account of part or uis

Ao i e+ -



personal character.

This is my solemn avowal berore the Cross that he is

possessed or' philantnropic spiriu. !

Dr. Mitsugu Aoyama(sealed),

Attending pnysician rrom Ichiro's
childhood; rasiding at No. E1689,
¢=chome, Sakae-machi, Mito-shi,
Ibaraki-ken.
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CERTIFICATION OF PRRSONAL CHARACTER
£ Dec. 1647

Present address: 164. Kamikane-machi, Mito-shi.
Date of Birth : Mar 1C, 19E0.

ONOSE Ichiro

This is to certitry that trom his infancy Onose was gentle
ana clear-headed, and went through elementary, middle, and
higher technieal schools at the top of the class. He respects
his parents and has never been heard nor seen to gquarrel
with them. He was tender-hearted towards his brother and
sister and very popular among his classmates and neighbours.

After repatriation, he was devotedly helping the business
ot his father.

Theretore, I was lcoking rorward with much interest

to his brilllant tuture.
KOBAYASHI Toji (sealed) '

1291 Shinganji-machi,
n“-“l -
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JICN OF P TER

1l Deec, 1947

Present address: No. 1641, Kamikane-machi, Mito-shi.
Ibaraki-ken.

Date or Birth : Mar. 10, 1920.

ONCSE Ichiro

This is to certify thet the above-mentioned person is
a sohool-mate of Takeo, mMy second son and often came my
house from his childhoeod.

He is a mild and humane person and has been on inti-
mate terms with his school-mates.

Since his demobilizeation in January 1946, he has
been engaged in manufacturing cement-tiles at his present
address and 1t is well-known fact that he was a man of

good behavior and mueh obedient to his parents.

HIGURE Iwagorc (sealed)

cne of his mequaintance;
residing at No, 1446,
Neamimatsu-cho, Mito-shi.
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2 Dec., lva?

Domicile: Yamagata, Yamagata=-mura, Naka=-gun, Ibaraki=ken.
Present Address: 1o, 1841, Uskene-cho, Nito-shi, Ibarakieken.
Name: ONOSE, Ienhiro

Date of Birtn: ivu Mar. LlvEu

This 18 to certity that the ahovementioned person is
one of our most intimate old playmates since our boyhood
and has grown up as the apple of his parents eve.

His parents have specially believed in God and Buddna
and therefore ne 18 really ocuilte pious thanks to nhis parents'
kind instruetiona. There are many rriends who keep company
with him becuses or his lorty cnaracter and or his loruy
rrineiple for mutual aiada. We have the haégﬁr tareport to
yvou that we are also to be numberes among-them.

It 13 said that he will be judped as a war criminal suspect.

We, in perfect bellet of nls character, affirm most
strongly that, as for himself, there were no such words
and deeds of aa would excite suspgiclion for any reason
whataoavar,

His elnss-mates in the Primary School:
GOTO, Saburo,

Ho. lozo, Mukai-cho, Mito-sni, Ibaraxi-ken.




-

{ TAN, Naoyuki

Ho, Sv¥l, Motoyama-cho, Mito-sni, Ibaraki-ken
FUNAYAMA, Shokiehi,

No. 14uli, Namimatsu=cho, Mito-shi, Ibaraki-ken. l
TOSUGAWA, Teiicha,

No. 1271, Fujisaxa-cho, MNito-shi, Ibaraki-xen
CTANI, Yuioni,

No. vau, Torimi-cho, Mito=sni, Ibaraki-ken

| KAVAKAMI, Misao,

No. 312, Kuronane=cho, Kito=shi, Ibarakisken
KUBOTA, Saburo,

o, 834, Tamikoji, Kito-shi, Ibaraki-xen
MIYAKE, Shiro,

Ho. 682, Omacni, Mito-shi, Ibaraki-ken
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CERTIFICATION :
2 Dec. 1947

Domicile: Yamagata, Yamagata-mura, Naka-gun, Ibaraki-ken. t

Present Address: No. 1641, Uekane-cno, Mjto-sni, '

Name: ONOSE, Ieniro

Date of Birtn: 10 Mar., 1920 ' r
This 1s to certify that the above mentioned person is [

a senior graduates of the kito kiddle School whom we heartily

respect, &H}s various kindhearted, humanitarian ana exemplary

leadersnip wnicn was given to us who assembled around nim

with reelings ot immense admiration for his personality at

the very beginning of our sanool term, his warm-hearted

leaderahip and even his candid advice whiech was given to

us rrom time th time and atv wnich we were rully satisried

without any objeetion in full appreciation of his advice

- e

wniecn was given rrom his innermost heart ana from his gentlie,

impartial and serious character as if it were ror his own

—— e

affairs, all these have enabled us to realize that ne 1is
the besat person weé can consult with and that he 18 Truly

like our sladsr brother who has indeed a loTty character and

e s, i, ot =

is in addition reaily a man of special trustworthiness,

MIYAMOTO, Tadahiko, his junior graduate,
i £-chome, Izumi-cho, Mito-shi
TACHIHARA, Kuninosuke, his junior graduate,

Yokatakekuma=-cno, Mito-sni




-
g

i INABA, Tadao, nis junior graduate,
w65, Torimi-cho, Mjto-shi

URUNO, Shiro, his junior graduate,
'Akabﬂno-chn, Mito-sni

YAGI, Susumu, his Jjunior graduate,

o e e e

5, t-cnome, Tana-macni, Mito-ani

TACHIHARA, Ken, his junior graauate,

) YokotakeKuma-chno, Mito-sni
/  MIYAMOTO, Kiyozumi, his junior graduate,
Naka-machi, Mito=sni
TOYOSHIMA, Tokuro, his junior graduate,
Minami-machi, Mlto-shi
SHASUBANA, Tetsuo, nis junior graduate,
Kanzaki-cné, Mito-sni
SUZUKI, Akiyoshi, his fJunior graduate, ]
llaka-machi, Kqte=-shi

TOYOSHIMA, Toshiro, his junior graduate,

Linami-macni, Mito-shi

e T s g e W b i
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£ Deec., 1va?7

Domicile: Yamagata, Yamagata-mura, Naka=-gun, Ibaraki-keun.
Present Address: MNo. 1841, Uskane-cho, Mito=-ani
Name: ONOSE, Icniro

Date orf Birth: iU Mar., 1820

This is to cervify tnat une abovementioned person is
A man ot suech a lorty character that, AS nhe nas besan brought
up 1n a pious ramily, nis numanitarian conducts and viewsa, were
specially conspicuous a2ven in nis Mito liddle Schnool dmvs whnen
we atudied together with

- '-_'h\r-nl:g. l-\'Tgs coo

-

originated from his sincers character, in addition, always enabled

him to taka the middle-of-tha-road courss inatead of going

to extremas.¥oreover his aarnest intention of seeking arter

for justice and truth wnich would never aamit even a bit or
evil has very often touched us Tto the haesrts. Thus he has
constantly commanded the utmost conridence among us. Lastly,
we nave tThe honour to add that he has made a tremendous number
of intimete t'riends whose frisndsnip and cordiality Towara

1im has remained constantly unaltered durins a very long period

or Time up to the present.

His rriends:
Cl'0, Nobuyosni,

Kuramae, Kito-sni

Judgementa which have




YANAGIHASHI , Sakae,
No. 360, Fujizawakoji, Kito-sni
LMITADERA, Yasuo,

Ho. 2684, Hakamazuke-cro, Kito-ani

KONDO, Mikisniro,

=T

No. 551, O-maehi, MNito-shi

S N —

SAKUKA, Shigemitsu,

Ho. 955, Torimi-cho, Kito-shi

Hlv, ¥-chome, Moto, Mito-shi

4203, Ishikswa-cho, Kito-ani
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OF PERSONAL CHARACTER

2 Dec., 1v47 .

e

pata, Yamapgata-muras, Naka-pun, Ibaragi-ken.

No. 1641, Uekane=machi, Kito=shi,
Ibaragi=Ken

Ichiro

rth: 1U Mar., 192U

i8 to certiry tnat the abovementioned person is

x
GEE Ban or just principles, that he has made creat
§ [l
STORPER.IBr Tthe establishment o1 this theatre and that Qe
oL N 2 v
v e

A  rnolehearted endeavors ror vne popularation of

o, ., DEGUCHI, Shin
e Manager or the Central Theatre,
devotad to the aAmerican films,

Kurooane=cno, Mito-sani.
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February 1, 17L8
General Douglas MacArthur, the Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers,
PETITION

Sir:

Thds is my petition for my belaved husband, ICHIRO ONOSE(70
years=old ) who was an Gx-Japanese Army 1st L’bonant sarved at Parao
Island from April, 1%4L to the end of the war,

Soon after the termination of the war, he was authorized by your
Army's order and returmed to our home on January 1, 1946, Since then,
as a civilian he was sarnestly followed his duty to keep our household
affairs to fit for our old parents and also has been the garbage collector
of the Dependent Housings ( Ibaraki Military Oovermment Team ) in Mito
City. S0 we were guite happy.

But, meanwhila, our hlpr}non seemed gone as my husband was called
several times as a witness of the War Criminal Trial. And at last
on 18th, October, 1547, he was arrested as a suspectg§ of the War
Criminal and sent to Guam for the prosecutiom .

Wth my old parents and baby( Pmonths old ) who was born after he
was apprehended, I was hoping, hopimg and praying for the dl:.!' that he
might be acquifhd of the crime he was suspected,

But, it was like a horrible dream, that recently we have received from
the pleader there telling that my poor husband was sentenced twenty-five
years' imprisomment |

then he was arrested, he openly told me that he was guite innocent
and clean-handed and that he was very mugh optimistic and sure of the
quite impartial judgment of U,5, Army Trial,

But to hear this judgment, we are morgthan shocked and dismayed and
overhelmed with grief,

!Enﬂnn tg Co.Oew L2 (JM‘,}
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To tell the truth, I Know nothing about the case with which my
husband involved and for whiech he was convicted, but I do know that my
husband is my beaun ideal and was a good man,

o — e el S

So you ses how we ars broken hearted on hearing the sad news,

Of course I am well aware that the sentence my husband was pronounced

e~

is the result of the fair trial at your Military Court,
Nevertheless, my dear Oeneral I must petition you and wish you to review
the case and perhaps gensrously condone his mistake for me and my baby
so that we may pm“a.ua ::mr life with the light of living and hope in
future,
Lastly, I shall be greatly obliged if you will kindly comply with my
petition,

r—

Yuhie Onoce

YUKIE ONOSE

Mito City, Ibaraki Prefecture,

(P b
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. . UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET '
mm-mts} COMMANDER MARIANAS
Serial: 10587 95 MAY 148 .

zﬁf{#zqé RECEIVER ‘
From: The Commander Marisnas Area.
To: The Secretary of the Navy (JAG). ;
Bubject: Ichiro, former second lieutenant, IJA -
puti- for clemency. ,

References: (e) The Commander Marismss Area action, file FF12/A17-10(2)

over 02-JDN-fek, serial 3109 atd 20 Mer, 1948, in the

) % cape of KOICHI, Hirce, ot al.

{hjﬂ—nﬂu'hm-r Mﬂ.nmms. Pacifie Fleet sction,
nnwr-::,m.izﬂummxp. 1948, in the case of
KOICHI, Hiroce, et al.

Enelosure: (4) Petition from Yukie ONOSE, wife, dated 1 Feb, 1948, in
behalf of ONOSE, Iehiro, in Jepanese with English
translation.

1. A military commission convened by this command on Guam tried

subject named Jegpanese in the case of KOICHI, Hiroe, et al for war crimes
committed against an American prisoner of war. ONOSE, Ichiro was convicted
and semtenced to twemty-five (25) years imprisonment.

2, The record of proceedings in this case was acted upon by The .
Commander Maridnas Area on 20 March 1948 and forwarded to the Commander in Chief,
Pacific and U.8, Papific Fleet. By reference (b) ltmnrmdhmm
' Advocate General of the Navy.

3. Enclosure (A) was received by Commander Marianss to
the trial of subject named war oriminal and is forwarded for such asct as

may be considered appropriate.
e,

C.H. IGLs
ees CinCPecFlt. u ¢
3 JUN1g4p
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- FFE/AT7-19 UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

sk COMMANDER MARIANAS
!o MAR 154n

MBMORANDUM T0:  Commander in Chief Padific and United States Pacific Fleet.
Commander Marignas Area. ‘

Subject: Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commission of
former Captein Hiroe KOICHI, I.J.A., et al.

References g.; CinCPac/POA Restricted Desp. 170150 Dec. 1945.
b) CinCPac and U.S. PacFit Staff Instructions 1947,
paragraph 2 H 3 (e).

Enclosure: (A) Record of subject case (original and three copies; one
copy for CinCPacFlt, one copy for Seclav for delivery to
United Nations War Crimes Commission, and one copy for
Commander Marianas).
(B) Proposed action to be taken by ComMarianis on subject case.
(C) Proposed action to be taken by CinCPacFlt on subject case.
#

1. In accordance with references (a), (b) and verbal instructions

of Commander Marianas, this brief, which contains my comments and recommendations,
is submitted.

2. TRIAL:

a. Offenses.

CHARGE I - MUDER
Spac \

-

In that KOICHI, Hirce, then a captain, IJA, KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, then a first
lieutenant, IJA, ONOSE, Ichiro, then a second lieutenant, IJA, and TSUCHIYA,
Nachiko, then g sergeant major, IJA, all attached to the militery installations of
the Imperial Japanese Army, Palau Islands, and while so serving at said military
'd.n.ltll'l.lt.inm, did, each and together, at Koror Island, Palau Islahds, on or about
May 24, 1945, at a time when a state of war existed between the United States of
America, its allies and dependencies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire, wilfully,
feloniously, with premeditation and malice aforethought, and without justifiable
cause, assault, strike, kill and cause to be killed, by beheading with a sword,
one Wallace F. Kaufman, second lieutenant, United States Army, an American
prisoner of war, then and there held captive by the armed forces of Japan, this
in vielation of the law and customs of war.

=1=-
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: UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET 3
¥12/913-10(3) . COMMANDER MARIANAS
Serials 10587 95 MAY 1948 13
r62424 [ RECEIVED
From: he Communter Nertenes Ares. Jonel 7T
Tos The Secretary of the Nayy (JAD).
Subject: ONOSE, Ichiro, former second lieutemant, IJA =~
petition for clemency. |
References: (a) The Commander Marisnas Area file FF12/M17-10(2)
over (2-JDM-fek, serial 3109 dtd 20 Mer. 1942, in the

case of KOICHI, Hiroe, et al.

(b) Commander in Chief mnnmn.a.mm.nm-tu-,
file A17-25, mimmmm 1948, in the case of
KOICH], Hirce, et al,

Enslosure: (4) Petition from Yukie ONOSE, wife, dated 1 Feb, 1948, in
behalf of ONOSE, Ichiro, in Japenese with English
translation,

» A militery commispion convened by this command on Guam tried
subject named Jgpanese in the case of KOICHI, Hirce, et al for war erimes
committed against an American prisomer of war. ONOSE, Ichiro was comviected
and semtenced to twemty-five (25) years imprisonment.

2. mmumnm“mmwwm

n_mmnmmmmlm-ﬁmummnm,'

Pacific and U.S, Pagific Fleet. By referemce (b) it was referred to the Judge
Advocate General of the Navy. .

3. Enclosure (A) was received by Commander Marianas to
the trial of subject named war crimingl and is forwarded for such asctiom as
may be considered sppropriate.
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'm-m UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
sk COMMANDER MARIANAS

20 mar 1os0

MERMORANDUM TO: Commander in Chief Pacdific and United States Pacific Fleet.
Commander Marianas Area.

Subject: Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commission of
former Cl.pt-lin Hirce m, IlJI", st al,

Reference: s. CinCPac/POA Restricted Desp. 170150 Dec. 1945.
b) CinCPac and U.S. PacFlt Staff Instructions 1947,
paragraph 2 H 3 (e).

Enclosuret (A) Record of subject case (original and three copies; one
copy for CinCPacFlt, one copy for Secllav for delivery to
United Nations War Crimes Commission, and ong copy for
Commander Marianas).
{Bg Proposed action to be taken by ComMarianas on subject case.
(C) Proposed action to be taken by CinCPacFlt on subject case.

F
1 In accordance with references (a), (b) and verbal instructions

of Commander angs, this brief, which contains my comments and recommendations,
is submitted.

2. TRIAL:
g« Offenses.
CHARGE I - MURDER

Specification

In that KOICHI, Hirce, then a captain, IJA, KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, then a first
dieutenant, IJA, ONOSE, Ichirec, then a second lieutenant, IJA, and TSUCHIYA,
Naohiko, then s sergeant major, IJA, all attached to the military installations of
the Imperial Japanese Army, Palau Islands, and while so serving at said military
Wtiunl, did, each and together, at Korer Island, Palau Islahds, on or about
May 24, 1945, at a time when a state of war existed between the United States of
Amsrica, its allies and dependencies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire, wilfully,
feloniously, with premeditation and malice aforethought, and without justifiable
cause, assault, strike, kill and cause to be killed, by beheading with a sword,
one Wallace F. Kaufman, second lieutenant, United States Army, an American

r of war, then and there held captive by the armed forces of Japan, this
in violation of the law and customs of war.

»
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: !'l':w. F12/A17-19 UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02~JDM-£ sk COMMANDER MARIANAS

Sabject: Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commission
of former Captain Hiree KDICHI, I.J.A., et al.

CHARGE II - VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND CUSTOMS OF WAR

Specification 1

In that KOICHI, Hiroe, then a captain, IJA, commanding officer of the
Provieional Anti-airoraft Unit, otherwise kmown as the Koror and Koichi Anti-
adreraft Unit, attached to the military installations of the Imperial Japanese
Army, Koror Island, Palau Islands, and while so serving at said anti-aireraft
unit, did, at Koror Island, on or about May 24, 1945, at a time when a state of
war between the United States, its allies and dependencies, and the
Impe Japanese Empire, unlawfully disregard and fail to discharge his duty as
the commanding officer of the Provisional Anti-aircraft Unit, otherwise lknowm as
the Koror and Koichi Anti-eireraft Unit, to control the operations of members of
his command and persons subject to his control and supervision, namely,
EATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, then a firet lieutemant, IJA, attached to and serving at said
anti-aireraft unit, ONOSE, Ichiro, then a second lisutemant, IJA, TSUCHIYA,
Naohike, then a sergeant major, I-ll., and others unknown, permitting them, the
aforesald persons, and persons umknown, to kill unlawfully and cause to be killed
unlawfully on or about May 24, 1945, at Koror Island, Palau Islands, by beheading
with a sword, one Wallace F. Eaufman, second lieutenant, United States Army, an
American prisoner of war, then and there held captive by the armed forces of
Japan, this in vioclation of the law and customs of war,

Specification 2

In that KDICHI, Hiroe, them a captain, IJA, commanding officer of the
Provisional Anti-aircraft Unit, otherwise known as the Koror and Koichi Anti-
aireraft Unit, attached to the military installations of the Imperial Japanese
Army, Eoror Island, Palan Islands, and while so serving at said anti-aireraft
unit, did, at Eoror Island, Palau Islands, on or about May 24, 1945, at a time
when a state of war existed between the United States of America, ite allies
and dependencies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire, unlawfully disregard and
fail to discharge his duty as the commanding officer of the said Provisiomal
Anti-aircraft Unit, otherwise known as the Koror and Kolchi Anti-aireraft Unit,
to take such measures as were within his power and appropriate in the circum-
stances to protect one Wallace F. Kaufman, second lieutenant, United States
Army, an American priscner of war, then and there held captive by the armed
forces of Japan at Koror Island, Palau Islands, as it was his duty to do, in
that he permitted the unlawful killing by beheading with a sword, by members of
his command and persons subject to his control gnd supervision of the said
prisoner of war, in violation of the law and customs of war,

-2
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FFl2/A17-19 UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
O2~JDM-Tek - COMMANDER MARIANAS
Subjects Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commission

of former Captain Hiroe EODICHI, I.Jd«d., ot al.

bs Pleas, to Charges and Specifications by individual

accused:
EDICHI, Hirce
CHARGE I - Not guilty Repe 3
Specification - Not guilty R.p. 3
CHARGE II - Not guilty gl-p- Bi
Specification 1 - Not guilty R.p. 3
Specification 2 - Not gullty R:ps 3
EATSUTAMA, Tetsuljl
CHARGE I - Not guilty (R.p. 3;
Specification - Not guilty (R.p. 3
ONOSE, Iohire
CHARGE I - Not guilty En.p. 4;
Specification - Not guilty (R.p. &
TSUCHIYA, Naohiko
CHARGE I - Not guilty En.p. b
Specification - Not guilty R.p. &

¢« Findings, on Charges and Specifications with
reference to each accused:

EQICHT, Hirce

CHARGE I - Guilty (R.ps 102)
Specification - Proved in part (R.p. 102)
Proved except the words "and TSUCHITA, Naohiko,
then a sergeant major, IJA®, which words are
not proved.
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FF12/017-19 UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02-JDM-1 sk COMMANDER MARIANAS
u.juﬁ Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commission

of former Captain Hireoe KOICHI, I.J-h. ot al.

CHARGE II - Guilty R.p. 102;
Specification 1 - Proved in part R.p. 102
Provell except the words "and TSUCHIYA, Naohiko,
then a sergeant major, LJA¥, which words are

not proved. .
Specification 2 - Proved (R.p. 102)
EATSUTAMA, Tetsuil
CHARCE I = Cuilty R.p. lm;
Specification = Proved in part R.p. 102

Proved except the words "and TSUCHIYA, Naohiko,
then a sergeant major, IJAY, which words are

. not proved,
ONOSE, Ichiro ;
CHARGE I - Cuilty Repe 103;
Specification -~ Proved in part R.p. 103

Proved except the words ™and TSUCHIYA, Naohike,
then a sergeant major, IJA™, which words are

! not proved,
|
5 TSUCHIYA, Naohiko
CHARGE I - Not guilty Repe 103;
Specification - Not proved R.p. 103
d. Sentences: - '
KOICHI, Hiroe Twenty-five (25)

years confinement (R.p. 106)
EATSUYAMA, Tetsuji  Twenty-five (25)

years confinement (R.p. 106)
ONOSE, Ichire Twenty-five (25)

years confinement (R.p. 106)
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w-w UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
_ sk COMMANDER MARIANAS

Sub ject:

Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commdssion
dfmmmm; Todoha, ot al.

I s - - - . = = = = - - - - - -
f. Comvening Authority:
' Rear Admiral C. A. POWNALL,

United States Navy, .
The Commander Marianas Area.

8+ Elase of Trial:

) ‘The auditerium, Headguarters, Commander Marianas
| Guam, Marianas Islands (R.p. 1) 4

he Dabe of Trigls
24 Novesber 1947 to 6 December 194T.

Arraigoments 2i November 1947 (B.p. 3, &)
Sentence: 6 December 1947 (R.p. 106).

3. FOMMAL MATTERS:
as Authority for the commission to act,
By precept dated 8 November 1947, the commission was ordered

|
E
|
g
:
E
E
;

be All members of the commission were present througheut the
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¢« All members uf the commission, judge advocates, reporters,
f!-,zhmw 100) and witnesses were sworn (R.p. 1, 5, 27, 35, 56, 61, 63, 72, 75, &5,
] ] ™

ds The charges and specifications were shown to have been
served on the accused on 10 November 1947 (R.p. 1).

o+ The accused were represented by counsel of their own
choice (R.p. 1). :

f. There was no objection to any member of the commission (E.p. 1).

The accused in effect objected to the charges and
specifications [R.p. 2, Prefix "B" and "D") on the following groundst

sct t That the chargaa and specifications do not state the
specific law and customs of war violated.

H The specifications under Charge I and Charge II in simple,
accurate and concise language apprised the accused of the offenss charged
(N.Cs & B., Sec. 29). It is not necessary that the law and customs of war
referred to be set forth verbatim. The commission is empowered to take judicial
notice of treaties, statutes, etc., and such matter need not be charged. "Matters
of which courte may take judicial notice need neither be charged nor proved."
(N.Cs & B., Sec. 309). .

ect 23 That the accused are being improperly tried in jeinder.

f Comment. : All of the accused in this case were jointly charged in the

| specification of Charge I. The offense therein alleged is the murder of one

; American prisoner of war on or about:2i May 1945 at Koror Island. The specifi-

; cation used follows a form specification given in Section 88, Naval Courts and

' Boards for use in joinder trials. Accused KODICHI, who was Joined in the specifi-

! cation of Charge I, was also separately charged in specifications 1 and 2 of

Charge II. "All the charges against the accused should be consolidated into one

; set of charges, and one trial had the consclidated set instead of having two

= | _ * ormore trials" (Sec. 20, N.C. & B.). :

ction 3: That Charge I and Charge II grow out of the same incident
but are contradictory as Charge I alleges a wilful killing whereas Charge II
alleges a neglect of duty.
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*.H It is preper for the conveming autherity te prefer as many
as censiders necessary. "The law permits as many charges te be preferred
-ﬂrﬁiﬂ;ﬁg}hmﬂh!&mwﬂh”&whmm

 That 1oatien 2 of II is ive of i=
1-‘% Specif Charge duplicative of Specif

; s Specificatiens 1 and 2 of Charge II allege different effenses
in esash allege the vislatisn of a different and distinet duty placed upen
the acgused KOICHI by the law of war. "Different effenses, hewever, of the same
nature, sheould be included in separate specificatiens under the seme charge” (N.C.

£

I‘I:I.tl_"t-htﬂ te the relater unknewm.®”

b
mﬁmmmmmmwmum i
%- Itmﬁutin:tp-rhdﬂnthutu;dﬂ.th'ﬂhmhm {‘E
relater ® for by analegy there is autherity fer this precedure in Nawal Ceurts
and Boards, Sectiem 34, which prevides that if net knewm, the party injured must be
" There is furthsar sutherity

i
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3 That the and do not
to ) L ! charges specifications show an exveption

AG 000.5 (5 45) 2 3 8ee also iom, H5) e re is
26 statute of limitations for wilful murder under U.S. Federal law (U.85.C.h., Sec.
581). An ijdicteent for sny offemse punishable by death may be found at any time

without regard to sny statute of limitations (Sec. 58la, U.8.C.A.).

The action of the commiseion im ewerruling all the
objections was, in my opinion, sorrect.

hs The commission found the charges and specifications in due
form and technically correct (R.p. 2). '

i. The accused were properly arraigned (R.p. 3, &).

be MOLIONS AND FLEAS:

8. The accused made a plea to the Jurisdiction (R.p. 2, Prefix
"F®) in effect on the following grounds:

1. "Since the jurisdiction over territery of a court, whether it be
in & oriminal or civil case, grows out of the consideration that will emable the
acoused person to be tried in the territery most comvemient to him, question as
to which court has jurisdictiom over territory im a particular case should be
chiefly determined in consideration of the bemefit of the accused persomn.® There is
no benefit to the acoused in being tried by this commission, therefore, the
comuission has no juriedictiom.

b

24 There is no jurisdiction becanse the acoused Japaneses natiomals
have been long demobilised from the Japaness Army.
3. There is no jurisdiction because the accused have not been

properly extradited and are therefore nd legally before the commissien.

The plea to the jurisdiction was, in my opimion, preperly
denied (R.p. 2) for the reasons stated in paregraph 6(a) below.

be mmm-muuum[hpéa.m;v}
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The plea in bar of trial was, in my opinion, properly denied
(R.p. 3) for the reasons stated in sub-paragraph Bth above,

¢« A plea in abatement n:c made by the defense on the ground
of misjoinder of parties (R.p. 2, Préfix wgw, Wjm, wIw),
The plea in abatement was pmpurl;r denied, in my opinion,
for the reasons given in sub-paragraph 3(g) above. .

d. The accused all pleaded "Not Guilty"™ to the charges and
specifications (R.p. 3, L), i

e, When the prosecution rested and before the defense began,
defense counsel made a motion for a directed acquittal of the accused ONOSE, Ichiro
and TSUCHIYA, Naohike (R.p. 68, Appendix "E") on the grounds that the prosecution
had not proved the guilt of these accused beyond a reascnable doubt.

This motion was, in my opinion, properly denied for there is
noe provision in Naval Courts and Boards for such a motion (N.C. & B.) . . ! ' .

f. The defense objected to the prosecution's request that the

commission take judicial notice of (1) The Potsdam Declaration of July 26, 1945,
(Sec. 10); (2) The Geneva Prisoner of War Convention of July 27, 1929; (3) That the
Palau Islands are part of the command of Commander Marianas; (4) The Hague Convention
of October 18, 1907 (R.p. 4, 5). The commission properly overruled these objections
(R.p. 5) for Section 309, Naval Courts and Boards provides, "Courts should take
Judicial notice of: (&)....ees.(c) Matters which the court is bound to lnow as a
part of its own special duty and function, such as the United States Constitutiocn,
treaties, ..iv.ss®

5 EVIDENCE: Briefly summarized the competent evidence is to the
following effect: .

as For the prosecution.

A B-2l, was shot down by an anti-aircraft unit over Koror (R.p.
28) and one survivor parachuted from the plane and was captured (R.p. 28). The
prisonsr was interrogated by Colonel DOI and it was ascertained that his name was
Kaufman and that he was an American lisutenant (R.p. 28). The priscner was fed
and then sent to the Inoue Headquarters by car (R.p. 28). This occurred some-
time in April 1945 (R.p. 25). Lt. Col. YAJIMA, Staff Intelligence Officer (R.p.
35) having been advised by DOI of the capture of the prisoner (R.p. 36) informed
Chief of Staff TADA and also the Lt. Genersl INOUE (R.p. 36). As there were no
facilities at Headquarters to accomodate the prisoner , YAJIMA called the Kempei-
tai, then commanded by Lt. Col. JIYAZAKT to have the prisoner confined there
(R.ps 36). The prisoner was interrogated twice by YAJIMA (R.p. 36, 37) and it was
ascertainsd that his name was Ksufman and that he was a lieutenant, either second
or first (R.p, 36). The personal belongings of the priscner consisted of

l!lig'-
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an identification card, a cress on a chain, a watch and a ring (R.p. 42). These

-were kept by YAJIMA while Kaufman was confined in the Kempeitai (R.p. 42).

Several days after the second interrogation of Kaufman, Lt. General INOUE teld
YAJDMA to have Kaufman executed (R.p. 37) at the Koichi Anti-aircraft Unit on
Eoror (R.p. 37) in order to boost morale at that unit. YAJIMA called Col. DOX who
was in charge of the Koror Defense Unit and advised him of the commanding officer's
intention (R.p. 38). DOI said he could not agree with the executien (R.p. 28, 38).
DOI called KOICHI and informed him of the contents of YAJIMA's call (R.p. 28).
YAJIMA somstime later reported this to INOUE (R.p. 38). At that time INOUE told
YAJIMA that he had personally ordered Captain KOICHI to execute the priscner and
told YAJDMA to send the prisoner to Koror (R.p. 38). INOUE also told YAJIMA that
the priscner's possessions were to be returned to him and that his death was to be
confirmed and for that purpose have an officer from Headguarters go along with him
Repe 39) and that he (INOUE) would personally speak to the officer concerning this
Repe 39)s YAJDIA designated Second Lieutenant ONOSE of the Intelligence Section
te confirm the execution, return the possessions and escort Kaufman to Koror "with-
out fail® (R.p. 39). ONOSE asked permission to take Sergeant Mgjor TSUCHIYA along
and also.Gunzokii SHIMOJO to confirm the death of the prisoner (R.p. 39, 40).
YAJIMA ordered this to be done, and gave as his reason for the order "at this time
there were bombings every day so if one person went along and if he got into some
kind of trouble, it would be very difficult® (R.p. 39, 40). YAJIMA told ONOSE to
report to INOUE (H.p. 40). ONOSE, SHIMOJO and TSUCHIYA later reported to YAJIMA
(R.p. 6) after ONOSE had seen INOUE (R.p. 40). TSUCHIYA was ordered to assist
ONOSE in carrying out the orders (R.p. 40, 41, 45, 46). TSUCHIYA "was to assist
ONOSE when ONOSE can not de it all himself., Hs was also to obey what ONOSE says
and do accordingly" (R.p. 46). All knew Kaufman was to be executed before escorting
him te Koror (R.p..39, 86). YAJIMA called the Kempeitai to turn over Kaufman to
ONOSE (R.p. 41) and YAJIMA turned over Kaufman's possessions to ONOSE (B.p. 42).
At the Kempeital, the prisoner was turned over to ONOSE who was accompanied by
TSUCHIYA and SHIMOJO (R.p. 57, 58, 7, 87)s The'Kempedtai supplied the party with
an assistant Kempei to the prisoner (R.p. B7, 58) and the "escort cempany
with ONOSE in command® (Exh. 2 p. 2) set out for Gaspan harbor (B.p. 87, 7). They

“arrived at the pier with the prisoner in the center of the escort group (Exh. 2).

At the harbor, before securing a boat for Koror, the party was joined by Captain -
KOICHI and his orderly (R.p. 7). When the vessel arrived at Koror, the party went
to the quarters of the Koichi Unit (R.p. 8, 88), The prisoner was placed in an
air raid shelter under guard (R.p. 9)s In Captain KOICHI's quarters a conference,
attended by KOICHI, ONOSE, KATSUYAMA, TSUCHIYA and & non-commissioned officer of
the Katsuyama Unit, was held to determine the time and place of the execution
(Repe 9, 18, 89)s It was decided that Keufmsn would be executed at 7 o'clock the
next morning in the naval cemetery (R.p. 9). The next morning the prisoner was
taken te the naval cemetery (R.p. 10), where there was a grave prepared (R.p. 11),
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and a public execution arranged for (R.p. 10, 14, 37 « 2; pe 95). There were
_ @bout thirty persons present (R.p. 10) including ﬂﬁiﬂ;h:{nﬂﬁﬂ h‘f‘gﬂ'nll and
TSUCHIYA (R.p. 10). The prisoner's belongings were returned to him by TSUCHITA
Who was with ONOSE in front of him (R.p. 10, 11). The prisoner was tied by a
rope which was held by a mah from the Koichi Unit (R.p. 10). A picture was taken
of TSUCHIYA returning the prisoner's persenal belongings to him by SHIMOJO, the
official photographer (R.p. 89). Upon 'orders from KATSUYAMA the priscner was
blindfolded (R.p, 11). KATSUYAMA swung up his sword but didn't seem to have the
righk ‘stance (R.p. 11). ONOSE then with words and gestures gave KATSUYAMA
instructions as to how to place his feet, how to swing the sword and what part of
the neck to aim at when he brought the sword dowmn (R.p. 81, 12). After receiving
these instructions, KATSUYAMA brought his sword down on Kaufman's neck (R.p. 13)
and about half ‘of the neck was cut. The prisoner died and was placed face down
in the grave and dirt was placed upon him (R.p, 13). ONOSE and TSUCHIYA returned
to headquarters and ONOSE reported to YAJIMA that Faufmen had been executed (R.p.

41, 90).
ba For the defense,

KOICHI, Hiroe, one of the accused, took the stand in his
own defense (R.p. 75). He testified that when DOI called him concerning INOUE's
intention to have the prisoner executed at Koror, he asked DOI to refuse it for
him (R.p. 76). Later DOI called again to advise that he had reported KOICHI's
opposition but Headquarters was insisting that the prisoner would be delivered to

_Koror and that KATSUYAMA would execute him (R.p. 76). KOICHI advised KATSUYAMA

of this (R.p. 77) and KATSUYAMA said he was against it and asked that it be refused
(R.p. 77). KOICHI had to visit headquarters to confer with £ Officer NAKAGAWA
concerning battle damage and he told KATSUYAMA he would refuse the orders for him
if the subject of the execution came up (R.p. 77). KOICHI did visit he ers
and was advised by MAKAGAWA before seeing INOUE not to disagree with him (R.p. 77).
MAKACAWA and KOICHI went to see INOUE and INOUE gave KOICHI orders to have the
prisoner executed before his assembled men by KATSUYAMA (E.p. 77). INOUE also
gave KOICHI detailed instructions (R.p. 77) concerning the exscution and speci-
fically told him that the prisoner's belongings were to be returned to him (R.p.
78). KOICHI returned to Koror (R.p. 79) and advised KATSUYAMA of INOUE's order

v {R.p. 79).and that the prisoner would be executed the following morning (R.p. 79).

The following morning, KOICHI went to the cemetery where the men were assembled

(R.p. 80). KOICHI addressed the men and told them of the division commander's

orders. Then he had KATSUYAMA execute the blindfelded priscner (R.p. 80). The

prisoner was buried and his grave mariked. Flowers and prayers were offered (R.p.

| 80).
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TSUCHIYA, Nachiko, one of the accused, took the stand as a
witness in his owmn behalf (R.p. 85). He testified that he was a clerk in the
intelligence section of the staff of the lith Division (R.p. 85)., That when
intelligence officers of the section went on trips, one of the three non-commis-
sloned officers of the section would take turns accompanying them (R.p. 852- That
in May of 1945, ONOSE asked him to go te Koror to escort prisoner Kaufman (R.p.
86). That as it was his turmn, and he thought the trip would be beneficial teo his
health, he agreed (R.p. 86). That he went with ONOSE and SHIMOJO to YAJIMA and
then heard ONOSE report his (ONOSE's) ordérs so that for the first time he learned
that the prisoner was to be executed (R.p. 86). That he accompanied ONOSE and
SHIMOJO to the Kempeitai where the prisoner escorted by an armed assistant Kempei
was turned over to ONOSE (R.p. 86). That the party set out for Gaspan Harbor =
enroute ONOSE gave TSUCHIYA a watch, a ring, and a wallet with instructions to
return them to the prisoner at the last minute (R.p. 87). That at the pier, the
party was joined by KOICHI -and his orderly (R.p. 7). That the party embarked for
Koror and arrived there at midnight (R.p. 88). That they were met by non-commis-
sioned officers of the Koichi Unit who took the prisoner (R.p. 88). That at
KOICHI's quarters the time and place of the execution was discussed but TSUCHIYA
did not participate in the discussion (R.p. 18, 88). That the next mormning when
he visited the cemetery, Kaufman was already there (R.p., 88)., That he returned
the priscner's possessions (R.p. 89). That after Kaufman was given his possessions,
he was led away (R.p. 89). That from a distance of about 15 meters, he saw Kaufman
executed but that he did not participate in the execution (R.p. 89). That his duty
as guard had ceased when Kaufman was turned over by ONOSE to the Koichi guards and
that his only other duty in relation to the prisoner was to return his belongings
(Repe 92). That concerning the point of ONOSE showing KATSUYAMA how to cut, ONOSE
had only coached KATSUYAMA concerning firm foot after Kaufman's position had
been changed to enable SHIMDJO to take a picture (R.p. 92, 93).

A witness, TANAKA, Masao, testified that on the day of the
execution he was advised by the non-commissioned officer doing the work of the
adjutant that a prisoner was to be exscuted on orders of Commanding Officer INOUE
and that TANAKA was to attend with his men (R.p. 72). That KOICHI made a speech
advising that the prisoner was to be executed on orders of Division Commander
INOUE (R.p. 73). That after the execution the prisoner was buried according to
Japanese custom (R.p. 73). That at KOICHI's request he made a cross for the
grave (R.p. 74). That KOICHI often visited the grave and had it cleared (R.P. 74).

A witness, WATANABE, Toshio, testified that YAJIMA had

called DOI. That ONOSE was selected to accompany Kaufman as his dutlies were
least urgent and that TSUCHIYA was selected because he was in poor health and it

was bis turn to go out (Rep. 98)s _ :
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Express authority to appoint military commission to try war
oriminals was delegated to the Commander Mariasnss Area by the Commander-in-Chief,
United States Pacific Fleet, in his confidential serial 0558, dated 8 March 1946,
Further it appears that such authority is inheremt in his command (Appendix D, N.C.
& B) Yamashita vs. Styer, 327 0.8, 1).

: _ ‘The .accused made a plea to the jurisdiction as indicated in
paregraph i(a) above. ‘It is well established that a military commission comvened
by sathority of the Commander-in-Chief, Pacific and U.S. Pacific Fleet and/or any
military commander has jurisdiction to try war crimes and accused war criminals

ta vs. Styer, 14 U.S.L. Weekly Alk, 4 Feb, 1946; Appendix D, N.C. & B.,
1937; Seclav ltr. re war crimes dated 13 Jan. 1945 and CinC U.S. Fleet ltr. serial
2812, dated 6 April 1945). The murder of an unarmed prisoner of wmar as alleged in
the instant case is well recegnised as a war orime (ComMarisnas Military Commission
Order No. 39 in re INANAMY, Hiroshi, former Captain, IJN, et al; ComMarianas
Military Commission Order No. 33 in re TACHIBANA, Yoshie, former Lisutenant Gemeral,
IJA, ot al)., Jurisdiction for such offenses and for perpetraters thereof is well

» partioularly by the Pothdam Declaratiom of 26 July 19,5 which states,

ssss¥stern Justice shall be meted out to all war criminals, ineluding those who
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The plea referred to in paragraph 4(a)(3) that the accused
are not legally before the commission as they were not properly extradicted cannot
be maintained for the laws of the respective nations relative to the extradition
of criminals generally-are not applicable in the cases of war criminals. This is
covered in a report of State-War-Navy- Coordinating Subcommittee for the Far East
dated 12 September 1945 and subssquently issued instructions by the Joint Chiefs
of Staff to SCAP. The relative instructions to SCAP were implemented in his Legal
Section Memorandum dated 22 June 1946 which in effect provides that any command
outaide of the Far East Theater may obtain suspected war criminals by submitting
a request therefor, including in the request: (a) the name and address of sus-
pected war criminals; (b) the name of command making request; (c) information which
constitutes basis for request; and, (d) place where suspected war criminal is to
be tried (see also Potsdam Declaration dated 26 July 1945). Paragraph 3 of the
precept in this case gave the commission jurisdiction of the accused.

be As to procedure,
(1) 8Selection of the commission followed the approved

practice of including Army, Navy and Marine Corps officers as members of the
commission (see my memorandum dated 20 February 1946 in the case of Colonel OISHI,

"ot al)s Prosecution and defense personnel were duly authorized and appointed by

the convening authority.

(2) The proceedings of the commission, as authorized in the
precept, were governed by the provisions of Naval Courts and Boards, except that
the commission was permitted to relax the rules for naval courts to meet necessities.
The rules of evidence and procedure, issued and promulgated by the Supreme Commander
for the Allied Powers (APO 500, 5 Decs 1945 AG 000.5) were authorized for use as
nscessary to obtain justice.

. : (3) The accused were advised of and accorded all rights
prascribed. :

(4) The sentences are legal.
ce As to evidence.

Referring to Charge I and the specification th-rnmdu;, there
is sufficient competent evidence to support the commission's findings of guilty
relative to defendants KOICHI, KATSUYAMA, and ONDSE. The commission's Tindings of
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proved in part on the specification relative to KOICHI, KATSUYAMA and ONOSE are
based on the acquittal of TSUCHIYA. The commission's finding of "not guilty™ as
to TSUCHIYA is discussed below., The commission's findings of "proved in part™ as
to the specification do not affect the legality of the findings of "Guilty" as to
the charge inasmuch as the exceptions made by the commission leaves.the specifi-
cation still supporting the charge (Sec. 429, N.C. & B.).

e Turning now to the acquittal of TSUCHIYA, it is my opinion
that there was sufficient competent evidence to establish a prima facie case

against him which has not been rebutted. In other words it is my opinion that
there is insufficient evidence to support the commission's acquittal of TSUCHIYA.
Sufficiency of the evidence to sustain the finding of the commission is one of the
matters which should always be specially considered by reviewing authorities,
keeping in mind the duties of the commission in weighing the evidence before it
(Sec. 472, N.C. &.B.).

In acquitting the defendant TSUCHIYA on Charge I and the
apecification thereunder, the commission must have disregarded the confession of
TSUCHIYA and his evidence while a witness on the stand in his own behalf relative
to the part he played in bringing about the illesgal execution of Kaufman. TSUCH-
IYA was, as established by prosecution evidence an assistant to ONOSE who had been
illegally ordered to assure the killing of Keufman, doing the killing himself if
necessary. In support of this the uncontroverted evidence of both the prosecution
and defense established that TSUCHIYA was one member of an escorting party of four
persons commanded by ONOSE which took Kaufman from the Kempeitai at the 1lith
Division Headquarters on BABELTHUAP Island to KOROR Island for execution in
accordance with orders of the Commanding General of the lith Division, Gen. INOUE.
TSUCHIYA knew Kaufman was to be executed at the time he was taken into custedy by
the escorting party, that is, before he left BABELTHUAP. TSUCHIYA attended a
conference with ONOSE and others connected with the mission of murdering Kaufman
on KOROR the night before Kaufman's execution at which the time and place of his
execution was discussed and announced. TSUCHIYA went the next morning to, and was
present at, the scene of execution., Immediately prier to the execution he deliver-
ed the perscnal belongings of Kaufman to him in compliance with orders of ONOSE,
the officer in charge of the escorting party. While delivering the bslongings to
Kaufman, his picture was taken with Kaufman by another member of ONOSE's escorting
party, the official photographer SHIMOJO. All of these facts were admitted by
TSUCHIYA and testified to by other witnesses. He maintained however, that {13
he had no personal malice towards Kaufman and that he did not wish him executed;
(2) he went in the escort party in obedience to orders; and (3) he did not kill
Kaufman.,
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On the above facts it is dAifficult to understand on what

theery or facts the members of the commissien based their acquittal ef.TSUCHIYA.

It is likely that they did not believe that TSUCHIYA's part in escerting Kaufman,
in sbedience to superier erders, from BABELTHUAF Island te EOROR Island; assisting
ONOSE in his mission to assure the executien of Kaufman and delivering the persenal
belengings ef Kaufman to him and having his picture taken with Kaufman immediately
befere the executien at the scene of exscutien, comstituted in law an evert act en
the part of TSUCHIYA to cemmit murder,

It 4s true, as eften repsated in effect, in text beeks and
court decisiens, mere contemplatien er intention ts commit s crime is net an act
amsnable te human laws, The mere speculative wantenness eof a licentieus imagination,
however dangereus.or even sanguinary in its ebject, can in no case amount te a
crime, But the moment that any overt act is manifest, the effender becomes amen~-
able te the laws (Vel, II, Bouviers Law Dictienary, p. 2436). An overt act. rela-
tive te crime is defined in Black's Law Dictienary,in part, as fellews:

®0vert Act >

In ceriminal law, An open, manifest act from which
eriminality may be implied. An epem act, which must
be manifestly preved, 4 Inst. 12, An evert act essential
to establish an attempt to commit a erime 1s an act done
te carry out the intentien, and it must be such as would
naturally sffect that result unless prevented by seme
extransous cause, People v, Mills, 178 N.Y, 274, 70 N.E.
786, 67 L.R.A., 131; State v. Enanne, 96 Cemn, , 114 A, 386,
389; State v, Lelman, 44 N.D. 572, 175 N.W. 736, 740. It
must be something done that directly moves teward the crime,
and brings the accused nearer to its commission than mere acts
of preparatien or of planoing, and will appareatly result,
in the usual and natural ceurse of events, if net hindered
by extraneeus causes, in the tommissien of the crime itself,
State v, Thomasen, 23 Okl, Or, 104, 212 P, 1026, 1027; Pewell
v, State, 128 Miss, 107, 90 So. 625, 626; State v. Roby,
194 Towa, 1032, 188 N.W. 709, Tli." 3

When more than ene individual is involved in the cemmissien of
a crime it is net necesesary that each individual persenally commlt all the acts
constituting the crime, and the overt act required of such individual need merely
extend to and evidence the nature of his participatien in the crime. "Gensrally
speaking every ene is a party te an offense whe either actually cemmits the effense
or of any act which forms part thereef, or directly er indirectly counsels or pre-
cures anmy person to cenmit the offense or to do any act forming a part thereef er
whe aids one whe has committed the offense, knowing that he has committed it, fer
the purpose of preventing his apprehensien or comvictien® (Sec. 72, Miller en

Law) s
Criminal Law) o
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In the past, particularly in ecivil law, technicsl and com=
plicated distinctions have been established for testing the relation to an offense
of the es cencerned in its commission, As @ result parties to a crime have been
class @s principals and accessories which classification has been further bre-
ken dewn te, principals in the first degree, principals in the second degree,
accesseries before the fact and accesseries after the fact., This complicated class=-
ificatien of parties and their relationship te the offense committed has perhaps cen-
fused members of the commission in determining the responsibility of TSUCHIYA.

"At common law participants in crime are either principals eor
accessories. Principals are usually divided into principals in the first degree
and principals in the second degree. Accessories consist of accessories before the
fact and accessories after the fact. Principals in erime inelude all persons who are
present at the commission of the wrongful mct and participate therein either directly
or indirectly, while accessories include persons who in seme manner are commected
with a crime either before or after its perpetration, but who are not present at the
time the crime is committed." (14 Am.Jur, Crim.Law Sect. 72).

Note that under the commen law definition TSUCHIYA could qualify
as @ principal in view of the fact that he was present &t the
scene at the time of the execution, and that -if he participated
at that time, his participation was that of a principal.

The distinction between rrincipals in the firat degree and
second degree, and accessories before the fact has in almest -all Jurisdictiens
become obsolete,

14 Am.Jur. Crim.Law, Sect. 72 states: "These distinctions how-
ever have been abrogated te a large extent by statutery pro-
visions variously worded. By some statutes an accessory is de-
fined to be one who stands by and aids, abets, or aseists or
who, not being present, aiding abetting, er assisting, advises,
sncourages, alds or abets in the perpetration of a crime, there-
by including both accessories and principels as known to the
common law, By others all persons are principels whoe act together
in the commissien of an offense or are concerned in the come
mission of an offense whether they directly cemmit the sct con-
stituting the offense or :1d and shet or otherwise advise and
encourage its commissien®,

The state of the law in this respect is summarized in feetnote
4, page 226 of Miller's Criminal Law as follows: "1 Bishep en
Criminal Law (1856) Sec. 456, p. 388: 'The distinctien is in
all respects without a difference and it should not be preserved
in the beoks', Letton, J., in Skidmore v. State, 80 Neb. €98,
115 N.W. 288; Francis v. State, 111 Neb. 580, 197 N.W. 379:

=17=
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'It is & principle of our criminal law that all
persens whoe are concerned in the accemplishment
of an offense are es, to that effense, and
unless othprwise spec provided are llsble

te the same penalty. No general statement cover-
ing all the actes which may invelve one as a
party to an offense has been formulated, and such
a statement is obviously impracticable., But the
nature of the acts by which one may become con=
cerned in the accomplishment of an offense haa
been illustrated by mumberless declsiens as te
the effects of particular acts in respect teo
particular offenses, TUnfortunately, the general
principles thus illustrated have been ebacured
by the fact that from earliest times technical
and complicated distinctions were established for
testing the relation to an offense of the parties
concerned in its commissien,'

'"This complicated system of nicely technical
distinctions has becn practically abelished by
etatute, both here and in ®ngland, Now, all
perscons concerned in the accomplishment of an
offense (unless otherwise specially provided) may
be indieted, presecuted and punished in the same
manner a8 principals in that offense were for-
merly proceeded against,' STATE v, SCOTT, B0
Conn, 317, 323, 68 A, 258, Miller, Cas. Crim,
Law, p. 173.%

e T i kA

The distinction between principals and accessories before
the fact has been abolished in s¢ far as the U.S. Federal Govermment is con-
cerned by Section 550, Title 12 of the United States Code which providea:

"'Princivele' defined. Whoever directly commits
any act constituting an offense defined in any
law of the  United States, or aids, abets, coun-
sels, commands, induces, or procures its com-
mission, is o principel,.®

This section makes principals and accessories before the fact all principals

(cases cited in footnote 3, Sec. 550, Title 18, U.3.C.A.; Sec. 41, N,C.&B.).
Accerdingly one who aids and abets the commission of murder is & principal,

-18-
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Such distinctions do met exist in war crimes, but even if such
distinction existed, the participation of ‘TSUCHIYA would be sufficient te con-

~stitute him a principal "in the second degree® to the murder of EAUFMAN,

. This is clearly evident frem the fellewlng extract from
14 Am,Jur, Crim, Lew, Sect. 76

"S 76, In Second Degree.=-By mest of the ancient
writers en the cemmon law of England, persens whe
were present at the commission of a crime enly for
the purpese of aiding, countenancing, er enceur-
aging its perpetratien were described as accesser-
ies at the fact. They ceuld not be breught te
trial until the principsl offenders had been con-
victed or outlawed., This circumstance, together
with the fuct thet the distinction between an aider
and abettor and a principal was found to he a dis-
tinetion witheut difference, leong since led to the
classifying of aiders and abettors as principals
in thp second degree., They may be defined as persons
whe are present at the time a orime is committed,
lending their countensance, aid, encouragement or
other mental aid or keepling watch or guard at some
convenient distance while another persen dees the _

o actusl criminal act. A mere bystander is not
guilty s & principel in the second degree for
commission of a crime, if he does net-in any way
procure, inclte, or encourage the act done by the
actual perpetrater.”

TSUCHIYA's gullt appears clear end unequivecal, One is
a party to an offense if he actually cemmits the offemse or dees some act which
forms part of the offense or assists in the sctusl commissien of the offense
or of any act which forms part thereof. He need not himself wield the sword
or fire the gun that causes the 11legel killing of a human being te be gullty
of murder. It is sufficient if he performs one act in the nature of assistance
or furtherance of the crime knowlng at the time that the crime is to be
committed, For instance, & man who intends to assiet, and is sufficliently near
to do so, as where he 1s watching outeide a house, while another is committing
a burglary or other felony inside, is a principal, Se, also if he is within
a convenient distance, 'with intent to aid inm & murder if his aid is necessary
(Sec. 75(a), Miller's Criminal Law, p., 230 and ceases cited therein),

-19-
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. Te assist or enceurdage the actual perpetrater eof a crime

or "abet® him. The assistance rendered need net be physical. "It
may censist in mere emceuragement te de the mct. Thms it is sufficient te make
ons & principal if he watches se as te warn the persen actually cemmitting the
deed, or if he is preseat, or near by, te the actual perpetrater's kmewledge, with
an intentien of assisting him if necessary...® (Sec. 75(b), Mil, Crim. Law, p. 232).
There must of ceurse always be a cemmnity ef wnlawful purpese at the time the act

ene antherised

ene were within the purview of the

even if it were a natural and censequence of the cemmen
s, they are all liable (Sec. 75(ec), Mil. Crim. Law, p. 233).

purpe
mupmmammdh enss makes
a persen gullty as a principal evem if he is net. preseant at the of the crime,

ance § or for a cempensatien and benefit te himself (State v. Scett 80
Cenn. 317, 325, 68 A. 258, citing 2 Stephen's Histery ef English Criminal Law 229-
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The above principles enunciated in municipal law tending
to establish the responsibility of ell persons individually connected with a

from the below excerpts from the reviews of the ceses indicateds

MAYATO YOSHIOKA, It,, et al,
(Date of Review 20 March 19.6)

"The charge and specificetions are that the accused 'did
willfully and unlawfully kill' certain persons, It ie not alleged
there was a conspiracy, The evidence does not bring the accused Fai
within any of the violations of the laws of custome of war set forth
in 2, b, (1), (b) of the Regulatiocns Governing the Triels of Accused
War Criminale, although this reviewer recognizes that seid regulations 1
are not delimiting, 4

Wlt. ¥Kai did not counsel, procure or command anyone to commit
these crimes, he was present at the execution and his mere acquies=-
cence or approval is not sufficient to constitute him an sccessary
before the fact, See 22 CJS 165-170; Wharton's Criminal Law (12th
Ed) pp 371-2.

S hapnn R e e

"The remaining status which he might cecupy, Justifying the
Commission's position as to his guilt, is that of an alder and abet-
tor, or principel in the second degree. B8ince there is not statutory
distinction in the rules governing these trials between principel and
principel in the second degree, he mey be viewed and treated as a
principal if sufficlent evidence existe to maintain this position,

"Certain facts must be proved to conviet one as an aider and
abettor. He must be present. If he is present, he is not necessarily
perty to the commission of the crime unless hie presence and non=-
interference wes desipgned as an encouragement to the perpetrators
of the erime., He must be near encugh to glve assistance and have the
intent to do eo, if it become necessary, to the knowledge of the per=-
petrator of the crime. Words of encouragement heard by the accused
or motions or ects encouraging the actual criminal may meke one an
aider and abettor. See generally, 22 CJB 157-162; Wharton's Criminal
Iaw (12th Ed) pp 327=349." .
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MIKIO TANEICHY, lst It., et al,
(Date of Review 21 November 1946)

"At this point it is deemed pertinent to note that although
there may be some general authority in lew to the effect that it
is possible to have a finding of 'Guilty as accessories before,
during and after the fect' it is the opinion of this reviewer that
such a finding should be discouraged in war crimes ceses. The very
nature of war crimes is such that participation .either invelves the
accused as prineipals or not at all, and the extent of perticipation
is not an element to be considered in the Findings byt rether in the
Sentence,®

SEIICHI ONISHI, Lt, Col., et al,
(Date of Review 25 January 1947)

"According to the modern trend it doesn't matter whether he
is & prineipal or an alder an abettor, or an accessory before the
fact., If he is any of theses, he can be charged with doing the crime
himself, and even though the proof shows that he wes only an accessory
or aider end abettor, that proof is sufficient to sustain e finding
of guilty on the charge and to subject him to the same penalties as
the individual whom he has alded and abetted,

"Under many jurisdictioms, the distinction between accessory
before the fact, aider and abettor and principal have been abolished,
both as to pleading, proof and as to oriminal liability.

'u FnC; P lu, Bagd. 59" sats outs %

"App. D.D. 1907, A person who, slthough not personally
present at the commission of & crime, advlises, imcites, or
connives at the offense, or aids or abets the principal offen=
der, is now a principal, under Code. D.C. sec., 908, D.C. Code
1929, T, 6, sec. 5; and it is not essential that any specific
time or mode of committing the offense shall have been advised

F or commanded, or, if so, that it shall have been committed in
the particular way instigated, or that there shall have been

! l any direct communication between such person and the actual

: perpetrator, - lMaxey v. U.8, 30 -lrF‘Pt D.C, €3."'

| : '0.C.A. Alaska 1907, Under Pen, Code Alasks, sec. 186,
188, which abolish the old distinctions between prineipal and
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accegsory before the feot, one who aide end abets another
in the commission of a crime may be charged in the indict-
ment and convicted as a principal, Rosecrans v, U.S.,
155 ¥, 38, 83 C.C.A. 634.!

3 'C.C.A. N.Y. 1920, The acts of the principal become

. the acts of the acceassory or alder and he may be charged as
having done the act himeelf, and be indioted and punished
accordingly, under Pen, Code, sec, 332, 18 U.S.C.A. Sec,
550, making the accessory a principal, Di Preta v. U.S,,
210 F, 73,1

10.C.A. Wyo. 1928, Aocessories may be indiocted, tried
and convicted ae principale., 18 U.5.C.A. sec., 550, Madigan v,
U.B8., 23 F, 24 180,

As set out above the facts in this case are simple and
the law equally clear. An American prisoner of war was captured by Japanese
at ECROR Island in 1944. He was taken to the Kempeitai unit of the 1lith
Japanese Army Division Headquarters on BABELTHUAP, Subsequently and without
legal justification the Commending General, 1ith Divisionh ordered his execu-
tion on KOROR Island, A party including TSUCHIYA, SHINOJO end ONOSE with
ONOSE in charge was ordered to take Kaufman from EABELTHUAP to KOROR and
see that he was there executed by KOICHI and other designated members of his
commend, .ONOSE was further to see that Xaufmen's personal belongings were
returned to him before he was executed, ~ONOSE's orders required him to himself
execute Kaufmen should the other persons designated fail to do so. He was
there to see that the execution of Kaufmen 4id not feil, TSUCHIYA was one
of his assistants for cerrying out his mission in connection with the execu-
tion of Kaufman, He acted as & guard in transporting Kaufman to KOROR fer
exscution, He was at the scene of execution to render such assietance and
perform such acts as ONOSE might require, and did in fact at the scene
immediately prior to the execution deliver in accordance with ONOSE's orders’
the personal belongings of Kaufman to him. He was photographed while returning
the belongings by anocther member of the execution party. Thie was without
any doubt an act preliminary to, end connected with, Keufman's execution,

- which wae being performed publicly for the purpose of improving the morale
of Japanese personnel in the srea, The evidence including TSUCHIYA's own
testimony leavesno possibility of a doubt that TSUCHIYA was with others
ordered as e member of & party to execute Kaufman and he played his part in
the execution from the time Kaufman was turned over to the execution party
by the Kempeitei at the 14th Division Headquarters on BABELTHUAP Island until
he was executed in the graveyard the next day on EKOROR Island,
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interest of the accused. By the precept the commission was anthorized to use the
rales of evidence and procedure contained in SCAP Regulatioms Governing the Trials
of Accused War Criminmals, dated 5 December 1945, as necessary to obfain justice.
7o QPTNION:
It is the opinion of the undersigned that:
4. The military commission was legally constituted;

b. The commission had jurisdiction of the persons and

to the accused;
o The sentences are legal.
8 KECOMMENDATIONS 1
It is recommended (1) that the of
y and the sentences in the cases of s KATSUYAMA, and QONOSE be approved;
2) that the convening and reviewing authorities do mot goncur in the of

Actions designed to carry the above recommendstions into effect,
should they meet with your approval, are submitted herewith as enclosures (B) and (C).

10. This review has been delsyed in preparation due to the pressure
of sther more urgent war crimes work.
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Seriel:

The military commlssion, composed of Army, Navy, and Marine Corps
officers, in the foregoing case, by precept dated November 8, 1947, was
ordered convened lovember 20, 1947, or as scon thereafter as practicable by
the Cormander Marianas Area pursuant to his inherent authority as a military
commander and the specifiec authorigzation of the Commander in Chief, U, 5.
Pacific Fleet and High Commissioner of the Trust Terrltory of the Pacifie
Islands (CinC U,3, PacFlt serial 0552 of @ Mar. '46; ComlMarianas Desp.
292336L Sept. '47; CinCPacFlt Desp. 020103Z Oct. '47; SecNav Desp. 0819462
Oect, '47; CinCPacFlt Desp. 0923532 Oct. '47). The commission was authorized
to take up this case as indicated in the precept. The order for trial
(charges and specifications) was 1lssued November 10, 1947 and served on the
accused on the sane day, The trial was held under amuthority of liaval Courts
and Boards except that the commisaion was authorized by the precept to relax
the rules for naval courte to meet the necessities of the trial and to use
the rules of evidence and procedure promulgated December 5, 1945 by the
Supreme Commandar for the Allied Powers in his Regulations Governing the
Trials of Accused Var Criminals, and modifications thereof, as necessary to
obtain justice. ;

Briefly stated the evidence 1n this case, &8 relates to the reapective
accused named in the specification of Charge I, is to the fellowing effect.
An American aviator, Second Lieutenant Tlellace F, FAUFMAN, USA, was captured
at KORCR Island in the spring of 1944 by members of a Jarcanese anti-airecraft
unit stationed at thet place. He was delivered by his captors tc the Kem-
peitai (Military Police) unii of the Lith Jupanese Army Division Head-

quarters on BABELTHUAF Island. Subsequently and without legal justifieation
the Commanding General of the 1l4th Division ordered his execution by the
KOICHI Anti-aireraft Unit on KCOROR, for the purpose of improving the morale
of Japanese personnel in that area. A party including ONOSE, TSUCHIYA,
|SHIHG.]‘0 and an enlisted man from the 14{th Division Kempeital, name unknown,
with ONOSE in charge was ordered to take KAUFMAN from BADCLTHUAP to KOROR
for execution by KOICHI and other designated members of his command, ONOSE's
orders directed him to return IAUFMAN's personal belongings to him and to per<
sonally execute KAUFMAN should the other persons designated fail to do so -
he was to see that the execution of KAUFMAN d4id not fail, All members of
|th15 party knew before leaving BABELTHUAP that KAUFMAN was to be executed,
They escorted him to KCROR, After urrivnl in KOION a conference, attended
by KOICHI, ONOSC, KATSUYALA, TSUCHIYA and others was held. At this con-
ference the time and place of KAUFMAN's execution was discussed. The next
morning at or about 0700 the 24th of May 1944 in & graveyard on KOROR where

& grave had been dug KOICHI, OMOSE, KATSUYAMA, TSUCHIYA and others assembled
with KAUFWAN in custody, in the presence of about thirty to fifty other
members of KUOICHI's commend. KOICHI wes in general charge, ONOSE informed
KAUFMAN that he was to be executed, TSUCHIYA, who had assisted in escorting
HAUFMAN from BABELTHUAF to KOROR, was present to render such assistance and
perform such acts as ONOSE might require end in accordence with ONOSE's
orders did in fact immediately prior to the execution deliver to KAUFMAN

lhis personal belongings, being photegraphed by the execution party phote-
grapher while so doing. KAUFMAN was then placed near the grave for
execution, ONOSE instructed KATSUYAMA relative to the technique of
cution, KATSUYAMA beheaded KAUFMAN with his sword on the order of

L]
On the above facts the ion found the specification of the first
M'Mh s preved pt the words '"TSUCHIYA, Nachiko, then &
ma jor, ' which words are net proved," as to accused KOICHI,
UYAMK, and The commission found the speeification "not proved®

|I -.1-
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Serdal:

It is obvious that the commission's findings of
(DICHI, KATSUYAMA and ONOSE were based on the com-
The findings in this respect do not affect
the specification still supporting

by the commission leaves

made

charge (Sec.

's acquittal of TSUCHIYA.
legality of the commission's findings of "Ouilty” as to Charge I as the

as to accused TSUCHIYA.
"proved in part® as to

i

, NoCo & B.).

The convening authority does not concur in the commission's findings

1 and the specification thereunder

to accused TSUCHIYA (Sec. 4723, N.C. & B.), because he believes, for the

by rebutting evidence adduced by him (Sec.

m
§
8
g
2
F

bhereinafter stated, that a prima facie case was established against

"not guilty® and "not

=
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TSUCHIYA
the
the

the
on
the
and
the
th
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As stated above accused TSUCHITA was a member of an escorting party of
four persons commanded by accused ONOSE which took EKAUFMAN from the Kempeital

dkth Division Headquarters, on BABELTHUAP to EOROR for executiom.
" ted at the
* cution.

taken

ties as

SE's orders, and had his picture talken with KAUFMAN while doing thi
f these facts were admitted by TSUCHIYA and testified to by other witnesses

iy:

in the findings but rather in the
M. TANEICHY, ot al, 21 Nov. 194k6).

WAr
or not at all.
lst Lt.

United States Code defines principals as




has committed the offense, lmowing that he has committed it, for the
wmmmwm- (8ec. 72, Miller on

In the instant case it is clear that TSUCHIYA did not coumsel, procure
command anyone to commit the murder of KAUFMAN or himself strike the blow
dlled EAUFMAN, He was present at the execution but his mere acquies-

« 1546). The remaining status, which he might oecupy making him a
responsible party to the murder of KAUFMAN, is that of an aider and abettor.—
This he unquestionably was. He had assisted in escorting KAUFMAN from BABEL-
THUAP te KOROR for execution. He 'was present at the execution. His presence
and non-interferense was as an encouragement to $he perpetrators of
the crime. He was, with the of the perpetrators, near emough to
give assistance and, as shown by his past performance in escorting KAUFMAN to
KOROR and carrying out orders of ONOSE at the sceme of execution, intended to
so if it became necessary (see generally, Wharton's Crim. Law (12th Ed.)
327-364). He was a party to the commnity of unlawful purpose at the time
the act was committed. In such circumstances it is umnecessary te show that
uwmmumuhmm(h.?sm.m.mm.
Pp. 233)

war oriminals, including those who have visited cruelties upon our prisoners,

Roosevelt and Prime Minister Churchill om 24 March 1944 repeated themselves
punishment for war criminale. Churehdll ineluded not cnly the

- R ——
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Subject to the above remarks the proceedings, in the foregoing case of
w,mmm, OMOSE, Ichiro and TSUCHIYA, Naohike are
The findings of guilty and sentemces as to the accused KOICHI,
and ONOSE are approved.

EOICHI, Hirce, EKATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, and ONOSE, Ichiro, will be trans-
erred to the custody of the Commanding of the 8th Army, via the firet
United States ship, to serve their respective sentences of confine-

in Sugamo Prison, Teolge, Japan.

TSUCHIYA, Machiko, who was acquitted, was released from arrest and
returned to Japan.

0 2. oo V.
GI ji m‘
Rear Admiral, U.S. Navy,
The Commander Marianas Area.
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| MILIT4RY COMKISSTON ORTER ¥O, 41
&wmm mm m,um

1. m“m POW, Korer Iplemd, 24 1945 L
ﬂh . Ksufmsn, Palsu Islands - ONOSE -
“.,ﬂ.l."
CHARGE, IT - . LU (two speeificstions)
S B
s Getenee e
- SMWARINRE Swe -
2, to : " 24 KOICHI
:Ilhl m“ Koror Islend May 1945
ufa,m-';' o i | '
ELLINGSs The commission on 5 December 1947 mede the following findinge:
1 ‘hhﬁhm,m Hiroes
.r “'ﬂm%m-ﬂ#ﬂﬂ“m-

_ not proved,
lﬂthttbm. KOICHI, Hiroce, is of the first charge guilty.

of the second cherge proved in pert ox-
: mm:m-q-.ui.'




PR s
w UNITED STUTES PLCIFIC FLEET
WRIANS
Serial: 3114 22 MAR 1948

MILITARY COMMISSION ORDER NO. 41
(In re KOICHI, Hiroe, former Ceptein, 1Ji, et el)

- e R R P W R O e R O P Eom e om e e e e =

"is to the scoused, TSUCHIYL, Neohiko:

The specificetion of the firet charge not proved,

and thet the ecoused, TSUCHIYL, Neohiko, is of the first charge not
guilty; end the commission does therefore scquit the seid TSUCKIYS,
Neohiko, of the firet charge.®

i t The commiseion on & December 1947 sentenced the accused es
ollowas

"The eommission, thercfore, semtences him, KOICEI, Hirce, to be
confined for a peried of twemty-five (25) yeers.

*The commission, therefore, sentemces him, KITSUYAii, ‘I‘.‘n‘l‘-ﬂdi, to be
confined for & period of twenty-five (25) yeers.

“The commiseion, therefore, sentences him, m, Iehiro, to be
confined for ¢ peried of tnntrﬂn (25) yeers.®

2, On 20 Merch 1948 the convening eutherity (Commender Msrisnes),
subject to certsin remarks mot herein guoted, took the following sction:

. ...the proceedings, in the foregoing cese of KOICHI, Hiroe,
KiTSUYAMA, Totsujd, ONOSE, Iehire snd TSUCHIYL, Neohiko ere
spproved. mﬂﬂmndmnpmmﬂ-u-hm
eccused KOICHI, K.TSUY.LLL end ONOSE ere epproved,

®KOICHI, Hiroe, KLTSUY.LL, Tetsuji, end ONOSE, Ichire, will
utuumummdmmwa
the 8th irmy, vis the first eveileble United States ship, to
serve their respective sentecnces of confinement in Sugemo
Prison, Tokyu, Jeapen.

®TSUCHIY., Neohiko, who wes cequitted, wee relecsed from

arrest end returned to Jepeni :

C. &, POENALL,
Recr Admirel, U, 3. He'l:r_.
The Commender Msrisncs 4Aroes

oot Clahaatas {2)

u.s. o Bth J
Nor Crimes Offiss "-::.."’ ¢, (3

N T
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Cases of
Kolehi, Hirce
Katsuyama, Tetsuji

Onose, Ichiro
Tsuchiya, Naohiko

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS
of a
MILITARY COMMISSION
convened at
United States Pacific Fleet,
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by order of
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KOICHI, Hiroce
KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji
ONOSE, Ichiro
TSUCHIYA, Naohiko

November 24, 1947
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Trial by Military Commission at the Headquarters
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Al17=10 UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

«JDM=-Thj COMMANDER MARIANAS
Nov 8 1947
ial: 20971

] The Commander Marianas Area,
: Rear Admiral Arthur G, ROBINSON, U, S, Navy,

Jeot: Precept for a military commission,

1, Pursuant to the authority vested in me by virtue of my office
The Commander Marianas Area and further by the specific authority vested
me by the Commander-in-Chief Pacifiec and U, S, Paeific Fleet and High
ssioner of the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islande (CinC U, 8, Pae,
1t, serial 0558 of 8 Mar, '"46; ComMarianas Desp. 2923362 Sept. '47; CinCPacFlt
sp. 0200032 Oct, '"47; Seclav Desp, 0819462 Oct. '47; CinCRacFlt, Desp.

53 Oct. '47), military commission is hereby ordered to convene at the
Headquarters Commander Marianas on Guam, Marianas Islands at 10 o'clock a.m,
pn Thursday, November 20, 1947, cr as seon thereafter as prasticable, at the

1 of the President, for the trial of such persons as may be legally brought!
fore it.

iLi 2. The military coamission is composed of the following members,
El

Rear Admiral Arthur G, ROBINSON, U, S, Navy, President,

Lieutenant Colonel Hemry K, ROSCOE, Coast Artillery Corpe,
United States Army,

Lisutenant Colonel Victor J, GARBARINO, Coast Artillery Ceorps,
United BStates Army,

Iisutenant Commander Bradner W, LEE, junior, U, S, Naval

! Major Andrew I, LYMAN, U. S. Marine Corps, and of Lieutenant
Commander Joseph A, REGAN, U, S, Navy, Lieutenant James P, KENNY, U, S.
Navy, and Ideutenant David BOLTON, U. S. Navy, as judge advocates, any
of whom is authorised to act as such,

KUWATA, Hideo, and KARASAWA, Takami, both furnished by the
Japanese Government, and Commander Martin E, CARLSON, U, 5. Nawal
Reserve, all of whom are lawyers, and SANAGI, Sedasm, a former captain,
Imperial Japanese Navy, furnished by the Japanese Govermment, are
available and suthorised to act as defense cocunsel, This sutherisation
does not preclude as defense counsel others who are available and arve
desired by the acoused,

In trials of accused charged with offenses against nationals
of foreign governments and natives of islande of the Trust Territory of
the Pacifie Islands duly accredited representatives of the govermments
and natives concerned are authorised to participate as cheervers,

The military commission shall be competent to try all offenses




FF12/A17-10 UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02=JDM=rh) COMMANTER MARIANAS
Nov 8 1947
Serial: 20971
Subject: Precept for a military commission,
L. The military commiszion upon conviction urf an accused is em=

l | powered to impose upon such accused any lawful punishment including the

| death sentence, imprisomment for life or for any less term, fine or such
other punishments as the commission shall determine to be plrupar.

5s The proceedings of the military commission will be governed
by the provisions of Naval Courts and Boards, except that the commiseiom is
permitted to relax the rules for naval courts to meet the necesaities fnr
any particular trial, and may use such rules of evidence and procedure
sued and promulgated by the Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers, [int‘l-‘
General Headquarters, Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers, APO 500, 5
December 1945 A.G, 0005 (5 Dec, 45) LS, Subject: "Reguldtions Governing
Trials of Accused War Criminals", and lndiﬂutim thereof) as are neces
to obtain justice, The cu-;l.u!.un may adopt such other rules and forms, not
inconsistent herewith, as it considers appropriate,

6. Detachment of an officer from his ship or station does not of
itself relieve him from duty as a member or judge advocate of this commis~
sion, Speeific orders for such relief are necossary,

7. Power of adjourmment is granted the commission, and adjourned
sosgions may be held at such times and at such places as the commission may
determine,

C. A. POWNALL,
Rear Admiral, U. S, Navy,
The Commander Marianas Area.

Coples to:
Members of the Commission,

Judge Advocates,
Judge Advocate General, U. S, Navy,

A true copy. Attest:

e %{?ycﬂ

Lieutenant Commander, U, 5, Navy,
Judge Advocate,

-
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OBJECTIONS TO THE CHARGES AND SPECIFICATIONS
IN THE CASE OF KOICHI, HIRCE, ET AL,

Delivered by
KUWATA, Hideo, Defense Counsel

24 November 1947.

All the accused object to the charges and specifications of the
prosent case for the fellowing reasons, '

1, At the conclusion of each specification of each charge it is alleged,
"this in violation of the law and customs of war,” but it is not indieat-
ed specifically what law and vhat customs were violated by these accused.
Not to specify what law and what customs of war were violated is a violat-
| don of section 27 of Naval Courtes and Boards which requires, that other

| than Federal statute, articles of the govermment of the navy, laws of the
state in which the court is sitting or general regulations, all enactments
should be set forth verbatim, because it is obvious that the law and ous=
toms of war alleged to have been breached in the charges and specifications
| of this case, should not be the domestic law and customs of the United
States of America, but international law and customs of war, It must
therefore be set ocut verbatis in order to apprize the accused of what
crimes he is charged.

This manner of formulation of the charges and specifications is not
only a violation of the provision set forth in Seetfon 27 of the NHaval
Courts and Boards but is also prejudicial to the substantive rights of
| the acoused because preparation for proper defense of these accused cannot |

| be made without their being fully apprised of the law and customs which
they are alleged to have violated,

2, In charge I, KOICHI, Hiroce, KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, ONOSE, Ichiro and
TSUCHIYA, Naochike are charged in jeinder; but this is im viglation of
. | Seotion 17 of Naval Courts and Boards, which provides, "Nrial im joinder
| m=e Accused persons will not be joined im the same charge and specification
| snless for comeort of action in an offemse, The mere fact that several
persons happon to have committed the same offense at the same time does
'mot authorise their being joined in the charge," To show the
|of joint trial, another quotation will be made frem Court Martial Order,
CHO T7-1919 states: 'When joint trial should not be held, "The mere
'faot that several persons happen to have committed the same offense
the same time does not authorise thedr being joimed im the
where two or more persons in the naval service take occasion to desert
or absent themselves without leave, in company but
commonh unlawfu)l design and concert, the case is dot of a single joint
offense, but of several separate offenses of the same character, whieh
are not less several in law t

, G,C.M, Ree, No, 2
found in the specification of Charge I may imdicate the fact

- '.:__._m._-u-_.

i
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this interposition, them the accused should be tried separately.

In charge I, Koichi, Hiroe is charged with the wilful murder of an
prisoner, while in Charge II with disregarding his duty as the
ing officer in regard to the murder of the same prisoner, that is,
e is charge with feglect of duty, Originally, both of theee charges
out of the same incident., Nowm, wilfulncss and negligence arc con=
tradictory to one other and express an entirely different state of mind
on the part of the doer, That is, if the killing of the prisoner in the
epent case is attributed to the wilfulness of Xoichd as alleged in

ge I, then it cammot have been caused by his negligence; if it is
ttributed to negligence as alleged in Charge II, then it cannot have
[peen caused by his wilfulness, The two contradict each other, Hence both
ru.unﬁt be true, Therefore, one of the two should deleted,

. In specification 1 of Charge II, it is alleged that Kodochi, Hiroce
unlawfully disregard and fail to discharge his duty to control the
ation of members of his ecommand and persons subjecet to his control
supervision as commanding officer of the provisional anti-aircraft

t, vhile in specification 2 of the same charge it alleged that he did
fully disregard and fail te discharge his duty to take such measuros
as were within his power and appropriate under the circumstances to protect
An American prisoner of war, as it was his duty to do as the commanding
pfficer of the provisional anti-alreraft unit, This is clearly a dup-
lication of specifications, because, both condemn the neglect of duty on

he part of Kolchi, Hirce as the commanding officer of the provisional
ti-aircraft unit, and Koichi's neglect of duty as the commanding officer
the provisional antisaireraft unit, whilo they are inherently one in
ubstance, should not uplratad into two or morc parts, Moreover, the
ntal acta o #ifig Koichi's nmogleet of duty in the present case
one and the same in Both instancos, If the accused is ealled to

esount for two or more responsibilities for the commission of an identdecal
lawful aet or ommission of an identieal legal duty, it is obwiocusly
judieial to tho rights of the accused, Therefore, me maintain that the
specification in Charge II should be consolidatod into one,

In specificatign 1 of Charge II, we find the terms "and others

owm," despite the fact that Charge II is based upon the facts alleged
Charge I, in which such a term 1s not found, It is improper to have
term in Charge II which is wanting in Charge I therefore this term,
and others doknewn" shéuld be deleted, We object to the term, “and
unknown® because the accused are thereby prejudieed when they
joined with others unimwon,

Respeotfully,
Kuwata, Hideo.

Ez‘.zmmhm, Mlﬁudml!}wihhl

1‘

L
‘- 3 ’I‘-u

I

"' (2)*

Interpreter,




I e 2

OBJECTION TO THE CHARGES AND SPECIFICATIONS
IN THE CASE OF KOICHI, HIRCE, ET AL.

Delivered by
Commander Martin E, Carlson,

24, Novehber 1947,

May it please the Cemmission:
| The defense further objects to the charges and specifications on the
ounds of improper joinder of parties,

i In C.M,0, 4-1931, peges 13 and 14, the J.A.G. of the Navy held that
"Under certain circumstances, namely, where common unlawful design, con-
rtod action, or conspiracy are involved parties to the particular offense
be properly joined, but a trial in joinder cannot propdrly be had unless
e8¢ circumstances are alleged to have obtained."

The specification under Charge I does not allege that Kodehl, Katsuynmaj
ose, and Tsuchlya committed the act by common unlawful design, or conspir=-

Lk ™

In C.M,0, 4~1931 the J.A.G, further holds that "the mere fagt that
eral persons happon to have committed the same offense at the same time
loes not authorise them being joined in the charge". (See file: A=17-9
(3) EN4 (211227) July 23, 1928,

| We further object to the charges and srecifications because all of the
eused arc not included in both charge, In Charge II, violation of the
and customs of war, only one of the accused, Koichi, Hiroe, is charged,

In 27 Am Jur, Indiotmonts and Informations, Sec 123, page 683, the
ule is ladd down: "Differont defendants cannot be charged in the same
ndictmen where they are not all included in cach count thereof,® Citing

Elroy vs U.S.; 184 U.S, 76, Al Led 355, 178, Ct, 31; Culjek vs U.S.
C.C.A, 9th) 53F (2nd) 554, 82 A,L.R, 480,

We object to the specification under Charge I because it does not
ollow the sample specification in Section 53 of Naval Courts and Boards,

We specifically object to the common law allegatisns of murder im the
cification under Charge I and move that such allegations be stricken
the speéiffcation by the grounds that there arc mo common. law offenses
t the United States., Citing 14 American Juri ence &mw'
lume 14, Criminal Law, Section 15, page 766 and Peltit ws Walsh U.8.
} 18 U.5.C.A. MQ 451 ot m' and U.5. vs Reese U.8. m. 53 M‘

Section 15 reads: "Crimes against United States, - While there wap
uncertainty in the early decisions it is now well settled that ex=

pt as to treason which is defined by the Foderal Constitution, there are
common=1a of fenses against the United States.”(Citing: Donnelly we U.S.,

"0 (1)*
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276 U.5, 505, 72 L, ed, 676, 48 S, Ct, 400: U.S, vs Gradwell, 243 U.S. 476,

Bl L, ed 857, 37 S. Ct. 407. Armotation: Am, Cas, 19184, 991.)

- In order that an act moy be prosecuted as a crime in the courts of the

United States, sta authority therefore must exist, (Citing U.S. vs
thgate, 246 U.3, 220, 62 L, ed, 676, 38 S, Ct, 269; U.S. vs Eaton, 144

P 6’”. 3‘ L, H.-m, 12 8, ct' 7&-] U.8. v Br““' m 0.8, 2“] j!

» od, 190, 11 S, Ct, 538; Manchester ve Masa,, 139 U.S, 240 35 L, ed, 199,

13, Ct, 559; Jones ve, U,S, 137 U.S, 202, 34 L, ed, 691, 11 8, Ct, 80

.S. vs Britton, 108 U.S, 199, 27 L. od, 698, 2 S, Ct, 5313 Cotton vs U.S.,

ﬂ Hg?ém.s.} 229, 13 L, ed 6753 U,S. ve Hudsen, 7 branch (0,8,) 32, 3 L.

= Armotation: Am, Cas, 1913 E., 1252, s Am Cas. 19184, 991,

The courts of the United States in dotermining whrt conatitutes an
offense agcinot the U.8, must resort to the atatutes of the U.3. ennoted
%?'B pursuance ?f the Constitution, Re Kollock, 163 U.S, 526, 4lL, ed, 813,
T8, Ct. 4ad.

The courts have no right to treat an act done within a state as a
erime against the U.5, unless congress has declared it to be sueh,
(eiting U.S. vs Reese, 92 U.S, 214, 23 L. ed. 563)"

| . As my colleague has stated not to set forth the law and customs of
war which these accused are said to have viclated is prejudicial to thelr
|sabstantive rights,

[ e maintain there is a presumption that these four aceoused all Japane
nationals do not know either our common law or our statutory law, :

| The objection that the specification under Charge I does not follom
|tha sanple specification of murder in Section 53 Naval Courts and Doards
which is based on the ruling of the J.A.,0,, Navy Department, in C.M,0.
[237-1919, page 15, to the effect that "the svecification should allege the
| felonious infliction of martal would of which mortal would the said ==
died," - -

My eolleague has pointed out that Charge II is but a duplication of
Charge I innsfar as Koichi, Hirce, is concerned, I wish to call the
‘connissiOn's attention to the ruling of the J.A.G. in C.M.0, 45-1916,
|page 2, "The department does not approve of trying an accused on two
charges where the identiecal facts are made the basis of both," C.M,0,
51914, page 7. "Insofar as the record discloses there appears to have been
no necessity in this case for resorting to multiplicity or plurality of
charges in order to provide every possible contigency in evidence," As
explained in C.,M,0, 42-1904, page 7, and the offense set forth under
III is not distinguished fyom that under Charge II," ===the department---
has invited attentidm te the foregoing im order that a recurrence of the
irregulafties noted herein may be prevented.,"
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|ifications we mbve that they be quashed as

further object becnuse a bare negleat of duty is not a crime, We
Am Jur, Criminal Law, Section 14, page 764 and partioularly foot-
which reads: "Under the New Yerk iamllﬂnhnﬂﬂutﬁuhﬂ
s not a erime unless a statute so prescribes as there is no common
U;E;ﬂ%l“h. P“PI.“MIMLI\I-M.”‘-M“

80 in this case we move that the commission quash Charge II,

We object to the charges and specifications because they do not show
exception to the statute of limitations, Article 61, Articles for the
mment of the Navy provides a statute of limitations of two years,
otion 179 Whartons Criminal Procedure, volume I, page 227, lays down the
t "Where a time is limited by general statute for preferring an indi-

£

te
te
v

i

tment, the time laid should ordinarily appear to be within the time so

ted, or over that the case falls within statutory exoeptions," Citing
ople ve Miller, 12 Cal, 291; Lamkin vs People, 94 ILL, 101; a ve
gory, 30 Mieh, 371; U.S. va Winslow, 3 Sllr 377 Ped Cas, No, l
tate vs Owen, 13 Sawy, 57, 32 Fed 537; Eng. R, vs Brown, MM, 163, 22

ng. C. L. 495,

Section 369 Ibid again states the ruler "But where a statute exists
ting all prosecutions within fixed periods, the more exact course is to
tate the time correctly in the indictaent, and then over the exceptiom,

and this mode of pleaing is now generally required,

All of these accused while in custody were required to written
tements which statements were made the basic of the chargea and speci-
ications against them and nncurdlnghﬂmnhhﬂhlinﬂ
Jur, Indictments and Informa Section 151, page 705, the
specifications should be quashed, Citing State we ‘P-l:ru 173 m
ve Cowin 133 Va, 789; State vs Lloyd 152 Wise, 24.

For the many objections which we have made to the charges and spec-
nst these four aceused,
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PIEA TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE MILITARY
COMMISSION TO TRY KOICHI, HIRCE AND THREE OTHERS

| Delivered by
j KUWATA, HIDEO, DEFENSE COUNSEL
I

24 Nowvember 1947

Since the jurisdiction over territory of a court, whether it be in

| a oivil or criminal case, grows out of the consideration that will enable
| the accused person to be tried in the territory most convenient to him,

} the question as to which court has jurisdiction over territory in a pur-
ticular case should be chiefly determined in consideration of the bemefit
I of the accused person, reflection of this peint of view, the court

| which exereises Jjurisdiot over the accused persons address, residence

' or present domicile should hﬂ.‘l‘l priorty as regarde jurisdiotion over

|| territory. Only in the case where the present domicile of the accused
Imﬂ the place of the orime come under different jurisdiction, jurisdiction
| over territory is recognised also in the court ezercising jurisdiction
|nm the place of the crime, because it is generally convenient for inves-
| tigation and trial on the pnund that gathering of evidenoe is ordinarily
easiest at the place of the crime, When several cases osming under diff-
| erapt jurisdictions are joined with each other, as when several persons
| haye committed together the same or different crime, or when several
| persons plotting together each have committed a different crime, or
| when speveral perscons plotting together each have committed a different crime,
| or when several persons at the same place and time each have committed

a different crime and the like, in other words in a case in joinder, the
|court exerciasing jurisdiction over one case is resognised for the sake of
convenience in proeedure as being able to combine the other cases and
|have jurisdiction over all of them, This is the reason why I did not sub=
‘mit any objection to the jurisdiction im the previous Ivanami and Asano
 oases, That iy, in the Ivanami case, Iwanami, Skagami, Hemma, Kavashima,
| S8awada, Tanaka, Kuwabara, Tsutsul and 'l.'nhiuhi wore uot demobilised; they
' were directly transferred from Truk to Guam in sucocession after the end
|ar. the war, In the Asano case, the same was true with Asano, Thus, in

| the previous two cases, it is conceivable that by transfering the other

| aocused who had already been demobilised, a trial in joinder with them

| might have been permitted in view of the expediency of procedure.

| Turning to the pressnt case, we find that all of the accused were
| released from military status and disarmed military personnel and returned
| to Japan where they wore official demobllised and subsequently resided

|in Japan as citisens, The personnel of the armed foroes of Japan have
|.u been ropatriated from the Palau Islands to Japan and have beenm demob-
ilized, At present Koror Island, Palau Islands presents us with no con=
venience what-so=ever as regards the gatherimg of evidence as to the orime
'in the present case. As a matter of faot, the investigation of this case
'n. completely carried on in Tokyo; and whem the investigatiom had been
'completed, the acoused and witnosses were sent here ome after snother,
Mm-u“um-ﬁ:ﬁmuﬂﬁhon-hmnum
try this case either im view of ahy bemefit for the acoused or of expediency
ef prosedure, But under Anglo-Amorisan procedurs expidiency is no just-
:lruti-. p (L)
|
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The judge advocate may ocontend that the commission has jwrisdiction
pver the present case by relying upon the provision in paragraph 3 of the
copt for military commission which reads, "It shall have jurisdietion
r all Japaneses nationals and others who nurhd with, were employed by
served in connection with the former Japanese Ilp-rinl G-onruunt, in
custody of the convening authority at the time of the trial.," If
#his be the case, it would be like contending that there is jurisdiotion
gver any person and any crime; the idea of jurisdiction over territory
would be totally disregarded and the purpose of the criminal procedure law
yecognising the idea of territorial juriadiotion in pact in consideration
gl‘ the benefit of the accused person and in part in effeoting expediency
n

procedure would be ignored,

We maintain that it is incumbent upon the judge advocates to show
yroper jurisdiction over these Japanese Nationals long ago demoblized from
Japanese Army,

Even if the above cited provision of the precept for a military
¢ommission is accepted, the persons this commission is authorized to try
nust be such persons as may be legallr brought before it, as expliecitly

tipulated in the last sentence of paragraph 1 of the precept, We object
that these accused are not legally brought before this commission,

Let us turn our attention to the course by which these aceused were
apprehended,

The accused Koichi, Hiroe was released from the status of the disarmed
pilitary person on 27 Deceomber 1945 and returned to Japan 7 January 1946,
was demobilized on the I0th of the same month and engaged in farming
thereafter, Receiving a telegram from the lst Demobilimation Bureau on
Augusd of this year stating that ho should be present at the bureau with
ood enough for one week imn order to settle lason affairs relating to the
nation of war, he immediately left for Tokyo, He reported to the
of of the Criminal Reglstary Division, U, S. Army on the 19th of the
pame month, and on the next day he nas confined in Sugamo Prison. He was
pent to Guam on 4 October of this year without any extradition papers,

The accuse Katsuyama, Tetsuji, upon being released from the atatus of
disarmed military person on 15 February 1946, returned to Japan on the
th of the same month and was demobilised t.wn days later, While working
a laborer in Tokyo, two Japanese Pclicemen demanded that he should acce
pany them to the Mumicipal Police Station, After being detained there fer
days, without a warrant, he was taken to Sugamo Prisoner without due
ss and confined, No charges being made against him, he was sent to
on 4 October of this year without any extradition plptl!'n aver having
a issued,

The accused Onose, Ichiro mas released from the status of a disarmed
litary person on 20 in-hr 1945, Returning to Japan on 11 January of

@ next year, he was demobilized on the same day, While engaged in his
P (2)»
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:!miiar'l business of tile manufacturing, he was investigated several times
since the firat part of April this year. Finally, on 10 October of this
|§aar receiving a telegram from the lst Demobilization Burecan stating that
bhe had to come to the same Bureau prepared to leave for Guam as a witness
he immediately came up to Tokyo, He reported to the Chief of the Criminal
Registry Division, U.S. Army, but was told to return without being informed
bf the reason, On the 16th of the samo month, he was suddenly visited at
hie home by a policeman who demanded that he should accompany him, With=
put a warrant of arrest, The next day he came to Tokyo accompanied by the
policeman and was confined in Sugamo Prisoner without due process, Ho was
pent to Guam on the 20th of the samc month without any extradition papers,

The accused Tsuchiya, Naohiko was recleased from the status of a
disarmed military person on 23 October 1945 and returnin to Japan on the
28th of the same month, he was demobilized on 8 November, While engared
dn farming after that, he was suddenly visited at his home by a policeman
who demanded that ho should come to the nearest police station without a
warrant, The next day, on the 16th, he was escorted by two policeman to
Tokyo still without a warrant, he was immediately confined in Sugamo Pri-
jmon with due process of arrest and vas sent to Ouam on the 20th of the
same month without any extraditlon papers,

When these accused were ordered by the Japanese policeman to accom=
jpany them, they were shown no warrant for avoreshension, nor were tl’x“
a varrant for detention vhon they were confined in Sugamo Prison, e
wiolability of individual life, body, freedom, honor and property is gusse- ..
anteed in the constitutions of all the modern democratic nationa, as the
fundamental right of the individual, The Ath Amendment of the United
States Constitution clearly states, "The right of the people to be secure
in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreascnable searches
and seigures shall not be violated, and no warrants shall issue, but upon
probable cause, supported by oath or affirmation, and particularly des-
pribing the place to be searched, and the persons or things to be seized,”
Furthermore in view of the new Constitution of Japan which was enacted
mccording to the example of the Constitution of the United States provides
as follows:

"Article 33, No person shall bo apmrehended except upon warrant
issued by a competent judicial officer vhich specifies the offense

with which the person is charged, unless he is aprrehended as the offense|

being committed."

"Artiole 34. No person shall be arrested or detained, without being
' once informed of the charges against him or without the immediate
l privilege of counsel; nor shall he be detained without adequate caunse;
and upon demand of any verson such cause must be immediately shom in
open court in his presence and the presence of his counsel,

"Article 35, The right of all persons to be secure in their homes,
papers and effectes against entries, searches and seizures shall not
| be impaired except upon warrant issued for adequate cause, and pare-
 tleularly deseribing the place to bo searched and things to be seised,
. or except as provided by articls 33,

vr ()"




"Each search or seigzure shall be made upon separate warrant issued
by acompetent judicial officer,"

As it 1p ddear from the provisions cited above, the right to be free
from apprehension exoept upon warrant issued by a qmpnbant judicial officer
which specifies the offense with which the person is charged, unless he
As apprehended as the offense being committed; and the right to be free
'I‘rm arrest and detention without the immediate privelege of counsel or
without being informed of the eharges against him has been guaranteed to
‘the people of Japan through the new Constitution, The same guarantee must
(be given to the people of the United States by the Constitution of the
United States of America, These are fundamental rights universally guaran-
teed to the civilized nations of the world today. Even if the accused
are war criminals, it is a violation of the fundamental rights of the in-
dividual and cbviously illegal to apprehend them without a warrant specify-
ing the offense, or detain them without a warrant specifying the cause,

The judge advocate may contend, however, that the illegality of
this procedure is attributed to the Japanese officlals and 1s of no concern
of theirs, But, since the Japanese officlals in this case, are acting as
jassistants of the American Forces, this defect in apprehension and detention
jcannot be remedied on the ground that it resulted from the actions of the
Japanese officials, As it is explicitily provided in the 1lst paragranh of
ithe precept, the commission is authorized to try such persons as may be
{legally brought before it, but not to try the accused in the present case
who were brought before this commission by such illegal procedurc as I
h.nw stated in the above, Japan is occupied by the U,5. Army forces under
'the Supremem Commander of the Allied Powera, To permit any Japanese
official to viclate not only the laws of America but particularly the rights
|Ennrnntaad by the U, S. Constitution to all persons tried in U.S. Courts and
[to permit Japanese officials to violate theprovisions of the new Constit-
lution of Japan is not in keeping with the traditions of the U.S. of
America nor is it legal either under U, S. Law or present Japanese law,

On the above menticned grounds, I offer this objection to the jur-
dsdiotion of this military commission to try all of these acoused.

: Repectfully,
Hideo Kuwata,

I hereby certify the above, consisting of four (4) typewritten
pages, to be a true and complete translation of the original Plea to the
Jurisdiction of the Military Commission, to the best of my ability.
| SO
: EUGENE/E, KERRICK, jr.,
| Lieut¢nant, USMR,, -
Inte ter,
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PLEA IN ABATEMENT

Delivered by
Martin E, Carlson,

Tot The Military Commission, Commander Marianas, Guam, Marianas Islands,

The accused, Koichi, Hiroce, makes thie plea 4n abatement og the
ground of misjoinder of parties, We bring to the attention of the Commise-
ion the antagonistic defenses of the accused Koichi, Hiroe, and Katsuyama,

Tetsuju,

- The accused Katsuyama, Tetsuyl, has made a statement implicating the
| ecodefendant Koichi, Hiroe and the prosecution in‘enda to offer this
statement of Katsuyama, Tetsuyl, as evidence in this present trial,

In Whartons Criminal Procedure volume I, page 411, the rule is laid
down: "Where the defense of joint defendants are antagonistic, it is nro-
| per to grant a severance, And this is eminently the case where one joint
|defondant has made a confession implicating both and which the prosecution
intends to offer on trial," Citing Com vs James; 99 Mass, 438,

The accused Koichi, Hiroce, therefore prays that this commission grant
him a severance at this time from the accused Katsuyama, Tetsuyi,

Koichi, Hirce, objecta to trial in joinder with the accused Katsuyama,
| Tetsuyl,

The accused Koichi, Hiroe, prays that the charges and specifications

be quashed as against him, cr”
/“pﬂr‘thﬂ;/ f &4’4'\

/ Martin E, Carlson,
Commander, USHR,




PLEA IN ABATEMENT

Delivered by
Martin E, Carlson,

To: The Military Commission, Commander Marianas, Guam, Marianas Islands,

- The accused, Onose, Ichiro, makes this plea in abatemont on the ground
|nr misjoeinder of partin. ¥e bring to the attention of the Commission

| the antagonistic defenses of the accused Onose, Ichiro, and the codefendant
Koichi, Hirce; Katsuyama, Tetsuyi; and Tsuchiya, Nachiko,

The accused Koichi, Hiroe; Katsuyama, Tetsuyli; and Tsulhija, Nachiko,
have all made statements implicating Onose, Ichiro and the prosecution
_int-endu to offer these statements as evidence in this present trial,

In Whartons Criminal Procedure volume I, page 411, the rule is laid
{down, "Where the defenses of joint defendants are antagonistic it is pro-
per to grant a severance, And this is eminently the case where one joint
idefendant has made a confession implicating both and which the prosecution
dntends to offer on trial," Citing Com vs Jamesj 99 Mass, 438,

The accused Onose, Ichire, therefore, prays that this commission grant
hin a severanco at this timc frem the accused, Koichi, Hiroe; Katsuyama,
Tetsuyly and Tsuchiya, Nachiko, :

The accused Onose, Ighiro, praye that the charges and specifications
be quashed as ngainst him,

&
Martin E, Carlson,
Commander, USMNR,




FLEA IN ABATEMENT

i Delivered by

i Hartin E, Carlson,
|‘.l‘m The Military Commission, Commander Mari-nas, Cuam, Mariasnas Islands,
. The accused, TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, makes this plea in abatement on “he
jground of misjoinder of parties, We bring to the attention of the Com-
mission the antagonistic defense of the accused Onose, Ichiro, and the
jnecused Tsuchiya, Naohiko,

| e cite Whartons Criminal Procedure volume I, page 411: "iThen the
Idarenun of joint defendants are antagonistic, it is proper to grant

la severance., And this is eminently the case where one joint defendant
lhas made a confession iwmplicating both and which “he preosecution intends
|to offer on trial,” Citing Com va James 99 Mass, 438,

| The accused Oncse, Ichiro, has made a statement implicating the
jcodefendant Tsuchiya, Noahiko and the prosecution intends to offer this
statement of Onose Ichiro, as evidence in this present trial,

The accused, Tauchiya, Noahiko, therefore, prays that this commission

grant hin a severance at this time from the accused Onose, Ichiro.

Tsuchiya, Nachiko, objects in trial in joinder with the accused
{Onsose, Ichiro,

' The accused Tsuchiya, Naohiko prays trat the chargee and specifications

be quashed as against him,

N
i
?

_,’ Martin E, Carlson,
- Commander, USNR,
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PLEA IN BAR OF TRIAL FOR KOICHI, HIROE
AND THREE OTHERS.

Delivered by
KUWATA, Hideo, Defense Counsel.

24 Novomber 1947.

Theso four accused, KOICHI, Hiroco; KATSUYAMA, Totsuju; ONOSE,
IchirQ; TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, make this plea in bar of trial on the grounds

of the statute of limitations,

| able to justice within that period.”

Seotion 407 of the Nzval Courts ard Boards prcvides as follows:
"The stetute of limitations, as affecting porsons esuhiest to trial by
naval courts martial, is contained in Articles €1 and 62, A.G.N.", and
Article 61 of the Articles for the Govermnment of the Hauy reads, "No
person shall be tried by court mariial or otherwise punished for any
offense, except as provided in the following article, which appears to
have been committed more than tvo ycars beferc the i1ssuing of the order
for such trial or punishment, unless by reason of having absented him=
selfl, or of some other manifest impediment he shall not have been amen-
(R.S. sec, 1624, Art, 61; Feb, 25,

| 1895, ©.128, 28 Stat, 680,)

All offenses in the prosent case are alleged to have heecn committed
on or about May 24, 1945, The charges and specifications are dated
Novemeber 10, 1947, more than two ycars aftor the offenses were committed,

| In the eyes of the law a person is charged with erime only vhen he is

called upon in ao logal proceeding to answer to such a charge, and the
mere investigation by an investigator or judge advocate does not of it~
self create a criminal charge, The orders to try the present case were
issued on Novembor 10, 1947 and it is only too obvious that more than two

| years have passed since the offenses were committed,

Then have these accused absented themselves or vas there some other
manifeat impediment that they should not have been amenable to justice?
All of the accused mere released from the status of prisoners by the
American forces at the end of 1945 or at the beginning of 1946, Upon
returning to Japan they were officialy demobiligzed by the proper author-
itios of the Japanese Government and have been engaged thereafter in
their respective occupations as citizens, There are no recognizable
facts of any manifest impediment that might mot have made them amenable
to justice,

Therefore, these four accused plead the statutes of limitations as
a bar to their trial for the offenses committed May 24, 1945 and charged

| under the date of November 10, 1947,

Respectfully,
KUWATA, Hideo,

I hereby vertify the above, consisting of one (1) typewritten
M,hhnuunnd_phhhmlhm#thearmulfﬂuh W
Bar of Trial, to the best of my ability, \ 5

_ \ AA S
m E mnn:x i, v
Lieutenant, USNE i :
Interproses

T
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!l FF12/A17-13 UNITED STATES FACIFIC FLEET
02-JDi~hn COMMANDER MARTANAS

\sertal: 21048 0 12 |

i Froms The Commander Marianas Area,

| Tos Lieutenant Commander Joseph A, REGAN, USN, and/or
. Lieutenant James P, KENNY, USN, and/or

! your successors in office as Judge Advocates,

' Military Commission, Commander Marianas.

|Subject: Charges and Specifications in the case of:

| KOICHI, Hiroe '

| EATSUYAMA, Tetsuji I
ONOSE, Iehiro
TSUCHIYA, Naohiko

_ 1, The above named persons will be tried before the Military Com=-
mission of which you are judge advocate upon the following charges and
| specifications. You will notify the president of the commission accordingly,
| inform the accused of the date set for trial, and summon all witnesses, both
! for the prosecution and for the defense,

CHARGE I
MURDER

Specification

In that KOICHI, Hirce, then a captain, IJA, KATSUTAMA, Tetsuji, then a

first lisutenant, IJA, ONOSE, Ichiro, them a second lieutenant, IJA, and -

| TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, then a sergesant major, IJA, all attached to the military
| installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Paleu Islands, and while so
{serving at said military installations, did, each and together, at Koror
| Island, Palau Islands, on or about May 24, 1945, at a time when a state of"
| war existed between the United States of America, its allies and dependencies,
| and the Imperial Japanese Empire, wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation
| and malice aforethought, and without justifiable cause, assault, strike, kill
|and cause to be killed, by beheading with a sword, one Vallace F. Kaufman,

| second llieutenant, United States Army, an American prisoner of war, then and
| there held captive by the armed forces of Japan, this in violation of the
law and customs of war,

|
|
|
.‘
|




Reeeived true and: correct copies, both in English and Japanese,

of Charges I and II and specifications t.her-undar, on the 10th day of
Hm.bnr 1947,

3 A
e op K 7 &
XOICHI, Hiroe

}I}ﬁ‘ dy A5 r;ﬁ)

KATSUYANA, Tetsujl

]‘%"ﬁ,fﬁ? !-

OROSE, Ichire {

3 | &
i" /i. “E J’#J . ..I:‘
TSNCHIYA, Naohiko g

The above acknowledgement read to the amus in J'l.punnn before they

1gned, ;
, M. mAI Int-rpﬂt-r. J




T e o ® |

CHARGE II

VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND CUSTOMS OF WAR
Specification 1

In that EOICHI, Hiroe, then a captain, IJA, commanding officer of the
Provisional Anti-aireraft Unit, otherwise known as the Koror and Koichi
| Anti-aircraft Unit, attached to the military install-tions of the Imperial
| Japanese Army, Koror Island, Palau Islands, and while so serving at said
| anti-aircraft unit, did, at Koror Island, on or about May 24, 1945, at a
| time when a state of war existed between the United States of America, its
allies and dependencies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire, unlawfully dis-
regard and fall to discharge hie duty as the commanding officer of the
| Provisional Anti-aircraft Unit, otherwlse known as the Koror and Koichi
Anti-aireraft Unit, to control the operations of members of his command and
persons subject to his control and supervision, namely, EKATSUYAMA, Tetsuji,
| then & first lieutenant, IJA, attached to and serving at sald anti-aircraft
| unit, ONOSE, Ichiro, then a second lieutenant, IJA, TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, then a|
sergeant major, IJA, and others unknown, permitting them, the aforesaid
| persons, and persons unknown, to kill unlawfully and cause to be killed un-
lawfully on or about May 24, 1945, at Koror Island, Falau Islands, by I
beheading with a sword, one Wellace F. Kaufman, second lieutenant, United !
| States Army, an American prisoner of war, then and there held captlive by the
| armed forces of Japan, this in violation of the law and customs of war.

In that KOICHI, Hiroce, then a captain, IJA, commanding officer of the
Provisional Anti-airoraft Unit, otherwise known as the Koror and Koichi
Anti-aireraft Unit, attached to the military installations of the Imperial
Japanese Army, Koror Island, Falau Islands, and while so serving at said antl4
aircraft unit, did, at Koror Island, Falau Islands, on or about May 24, 1945, |
at a time when a state of war existed between the United States of America,
ite allies and dependencles, and the Imperial Japanese Emplire, unlawfully
disregard and fail to discharge his duty as the commanding officer of the
' said Provisional Anti-agireraft Unit, otherwlse known as the Koror and Koichi
Anti-aireraf't Unit, to take such measures as were within his power and
appropriate in the circumstances to protect one Wallace F, Kaufman, second
| 1ieutenant, United States Army, an American prisoner of war, then and there
held captive by the armed forces of Japan at Koror Island, Palau Ielands, as
|1t was his duty to do, in that he permitted the unlawful killing by beheading
{{with a sword, by memberes of hls command and persons subject to his control
|land supervision, of the saild prisoner of war, in violation of the law and
|iuustoua of war,

|
| |
. Specification 2 i
|
|
|
|

|
|
|
i

C. A. POWNALL,
Rear Admiral, U. 8. Navy,
fl The Commander Marlanas Area,

e e B e
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United States Pacific Fleet, !
Commander Marianas, :
Guam, Marisnaas Ialmdu.

Fonday, November 24, 1947.

I The commission met at 9:10 a.m.
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinsen, U, S. Navy,
Lieutenant Colonel Henry K, Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United

States Army,
Lieutenant Colonel Victor J. Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,

Lieutenant Commander Bradner W. lee, junior, U, 2. Naval Reserve,
Major Andrew I, Lyman, U. 5. Marine Corps, members, and
Lieutenant Commander Joseph A, Regan, U. S. Navy, and

Lieutenant James F, Fenny, 7. 3. Navy, judge advocates.

Corporal Michaud O'Niel, U. 5. Marine Corps, entered with the accused
and reported as provost marshal, '

The judge advocate introduced Stewart R. Smith, yeoman first class,
U, 5. Navy, and Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman firast class, U. S. Navy, as
reporters; and they were duly sworn, :

The judge advocate Introduced Lleutenant Eugene E, Kerrick, jumior, |
U, S. Naval Reserve, lNr. Frederick Savory, Mr, Shigeo Yamanouchl, and Mr. '
George Kumai as interpreters, and they were duly sworn.

Each of the accused requested that Commander Martin E, Carlsen, U. 5.
Nlaval Reserve; Nr, Sanagi, Sadamuj Mr, Karasawa, Takami, and Mr. Kuwata,
Hideo, act as his counsel, Commander Carlson, Mr, Sanagi, Nr, Karasawa, and
|Mr, Kowata tock seat as counsel for the accused,

The judge advocate read the precept, copy prefixed marked "A."
dn interpreter read the precept in Japanesa,

The judge advocate did not object tc any member.

The accused did not object to any member.

The judge advocates and each member were duly sworn.

' Each of the accused stated that he had received a copy of the charges |
|and specifications preferred against him, both in English and in Japanese, i
on November 10, 1947, |
! The judge advocate asked the accused if they had any cbjections to make
'to the charges and specifications.




The accused replied in the affirmative. Mr. Kuwata, Hideo, a counsel
for the accused, read a written objection to the charges and specifications,
prefixed marked "B,"

An interpreter read a English translation of Mr, Kuwata's objection,
prefixed marked "C."

Commander Carlson made a further written objection to the charges and
specifications, prefixed marked "D,"

The judge advocate replied,

The accused waived the reading of the reply of the judge advocate to
this objection in Japanese in open court,

The commlssion was cleared.

The commiesion was opened and all parties to the trisl entered,

The commission made the followlng ruling:

The commission rules that the objections of the accused to the charges
and specifications are not sustained, and that the commission finds the
charges and specifications in due form and technieally correct.

An interpreter read the ruling of the commission in Japanese,

Mr, Kuwata, Hideo, a counsel for the accused, read a written objection
to the jurisdiction of the commission over the accused, copy prefixed
narked "E."

An interpreter read an English translation of the accused's plea to the
Jurisdiction, copy prefixed marked "F," ;

The judge advocate replied.

The mccused walved the reading of the judge adveocate's reply to the
accused's plea to the jurisdiction in Japanese in open court,

The commission made the following ruling:
I The commission rules that the plea to the jurisdiction is denied,

Commander Martin E, Carlson, U. S. Naval Reserve, a counsel for the
accused, read written pleas in mbatement, coples prefixed marked "G", "H"
ﬂ-nd. HI.‘

The accused walved the reading of the pleas in abatement in Japanese
in open court,

I The judge advocate replied,

The accused waived the reading of the judge mdvocate's reply to thelr
pleas in abatement in Japanese 1n open court,




The commission made the following ruling:
The commission rules that the various pleas are denied.
Fach of the accused stated that he was ready for trial.

Mr. Kuwata, Hideo, a counsel for the defense, read a written plea in
bar of trial, copy prefixed marked "J."

' An interpreter read an English translation of the accused's plea in
| bar of trial, copy prefixed marked "K."

The judge advocate replied.
The commission made the following ruling:
The commission rules that the plea in bar of trial ie denied.

The judge advocate read the letter containing the charges and specifi-
cations, original prefixed marked "L,"

An interpreter read the charges and specifications in Japanese, pre=
| fixed marked "M."

The judge advocate arralgned the accused as follows:

Q. Koichi, Hiroe, you have heard the charges and specifications
preferred against you; how say you to the specification of the first charge,
guilty or not guilty?

A NHot guilt}r;

Q. To the first charge, guilty or not gudlty?
A, lNot guilty.

Q. To the first specification of the second charge; guilty or not
guilty?
A. Not gullty.

_ Q. To the second specification of the second charge; guilty or not
| gudlty?
A, Not guilty.

Q. To the second charge; gullty or not guilty?
A, Not gullty.

. Q. Katsuyama, Tetsuji, you have heard the charge and specification

| preferred against you; how say you to the specification of the first
charge; gullty or not guilty?

| he HNot g'ui].t}‘ .

Q. To the first charge; guilty or not gullty?
A, FNot gullty,




R - G L 4
1.‘ £ ‘* |
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| [
; Qs Onose, Ichiro, you have heard the charge and specification t‘

| preferred against you; how say you to the specification of the first
charge; gullty or not gullty?
A, Not guilty. '

l Q. To the first charge; guilty or not gullty?
A, Not gullty,

Q. Tsuchiya, Naohiko, you have heard the charge and specification
preferred against you; how say you to the specification of the first charge; |
guilty or not guilty?

A, Not guilty.

Q. To the first charge; guilty or not gullty?
A, Not gullty.

The commission then, at 11:15 a.m., took a recess until 2:10 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpreters. '

Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reportier,

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial wmere present.

The prosecution began.

The judge advocate read a wiitten opening statement, appended marked "N,"/ /7

- An interpreter read a Japanese translation of the opening statement |
of the judge advocate. |

The judge advocate requested the commission to take judicial notice
of the followlng:

That a state of war existed between the United States of America and
the Imperial Japanese Empire during that portion of the year 1945 which
. ended on September 2, 1945.

The Potsdam Declaration of July 26, 1945, particularly paragraph 10, .
I | which reeds in rart as follows: "Ne do not intend that the Japanese shall
| be enslaved as a race or destroyed as a nation, but stern justice shall be |
| meted out to all war criminals, including those who have visited cruelties |
| upon our prisoners.” |

The Genevel Prisoner of War Convention of July 27, 1929, and of the fyet '.
that although Japan has not formally ratified this convention, it agreed |
|

through the Swiss Govermment %o apply the provisions thereof to prisoners
| of war under its control; particularly Article 2 of Title I of that con=

| vention which reads as follows: "Prisoners of war are in the power of the
| hostile power, but not of the individuals or corps who have captured them, |
They must at all times be humanely treated and protected, particularly
'against acts of violence, insults and public curicsity.




"Measures of reprisal against them are prohibited.”
That Koror Island, Palau Islands, is part of Commander Marianas area.

The Hague Convention of October 18, 1907, and especlally Article 23(c)
which reads as follows: "It 1s especially forbldden to kill or wound an
enemy who, having lald down hls arms, or having no longer any means of
defense, has surrendered at discretion.”

An interpreter read the request to take judicial notice in Japenese.

The accused made a written objection to the request of the judge advocate

on judielal notice, appended marked "O,"

The accused waived the reading in open court of this objection in
Japanege,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission was cleared., The commission was opened and all parties
to the trial entered.

The commission made the following ruling:

The commission will take judicial notlce of all items and documents
requested by the judge advocate.

A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn,
Examined by the judge advocate:

l, Q. Wil you state your name and residence,
4, Shimojo, Mitsuharu, 22 Ora, Anabuki, Mima Gun, Tokushima, Ken,

2. Q. If you recognize the accused, state their names and former ranks,
A, The one with the glasses on is Captain Koichi; the one next to him,
Firet lieutenant Katsuyama; the one behind him is ILieutenant Onose and the
one next to him is Sergeant kajor Tsuchiya.

3. Q. Who are the other two?

A, The one on the left 1s Second Lieutenant Onose and the one on the right

is Sergeant Major Tsuchlya.

4e Qe Did you ever serve in the Japanese armed forces?
A, Yes, as a gunsoku, I served in the military service.

I (Interpreters note:) Gunscku is a civilian attached to the armed forces.

|5. Qe TWhere did you serve?
A, The last place wasz the Palsu Islands,

6, Q. Between what dates were you with the Japanese force in the Falau

Islands?




| Ae In March 1944 I arrived on Palau and was attached to the Akatsulkd Unit
and in December of the same year I was transferred to headquarters where I
served until the and of the war.

7. Q. What headquarters was this?
A, The Lith Division, or in other words, Teru or Inoue Division,

8., Q. TWhat were your duties at headquarters?
A, I was in the photographic squad,

9. Qs Did you ever see a white man at the 1l4ith Division Headquarters?
‘.. Hﬂ.

10, Q+ Did you ever see a prisoner of war while you were a photographer
attached to the lith Division Headquarters?

A., No, I did not see any priscners, When they took a prisoner from the
Eempeital Unit and executed him I saw him perscnally,

(Interpreter's Note:) Kempeitai means military police,

11, Q« Will you describe the man that you saw at the Kempeital Unit?
A, At a glance he was dressed as an aviator,

12, Qs Can you tell us the color of his skin?
A, I do not recall very clearly but the color of his skin was lighter than
that of the Japanese,

13, Q. How did you happen to go to the Kempeitai?
A, Onose and I received orders to go to Koror and then without knowing
that we were going to take prisomers to Koror we went to the Kempeitai.

1!..?. This Onose that you mention, is he one of the accused in this
case
Ay Yes.

15, G« Who gave you and Lieutenant Onose these ordera?
Ay I received orders from Onose,

16, Q. What did Omose tell you?
A, Dnuut-nldui *You are going to Koror with me so make preparatioms
to take plotures,” and then he told me that we were going to report to

Yajima so oome along,

' 17. Q« Did you repert to Yajima?
A, TYes,

|18, Q¢ What did Yajima tell you, if anything?
'l. It was not only I alone, Onose and Tsuchiya, we three were there, He
| told us, "to take care of yourselves and go,"

19, Qs After you left Yajima where did you go?
|As For a little while I was at the intelligence room, then I returned

| to my photography rocm.




| 20, Q. After you left the pho room where did you go?

| As  After leaving the photography I came back to the intelligence
| room and with Onose and Tsuchiya we went to the Kempeital,

;21. When you got to the Kempeital, what happened?

A, to the KEempeitail Unit, the prisoner was already brought
in Unit and there Onose went and talked with the officers
of the MP Unit inside the room which was in the headquarters,

22, Qs+ You say this priscner had the uniform of an aviator. Will you
describe this uniform,

A VWhen I paw this aviator his clothes were like that of a Japanese
aviator and the pockets on his trousers were way down,

23, Qs Did he have any metallic emblems on him?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it
was leading,

The judge advocate made no reply,
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
A. No, 1 did not see any.
24e Q. Then you and Onose went to Koror, did anyone else go with yout

As An assistant "Kempel"(MP) went with us, His rank was a leading private,

25, Qs Then you and Onose went for the first time to the Kempeital, did

anyone else go with you?
A; There was nobody else, The assitant MP, of whom I just spoke, was
the person who went from the Kempeltal to Eoror with us,

26, Q, How long did you stay at the Kempeitai?
A About 40 to 50 minutes.

27, Q. What happened after you left the Kempeitai?
A, An assistant MP and Onose, Tsuchiya and I and the prisoner, that is
five in all, went from there to Gaspan Field Storage House,

28, Q. And what happensd then?

(A

As Onose went into the field storage house and we, sitting outside, waited

| there, and Onose got some blscults. :

| 29. Q. What happened then?

| Ao~ After receiving this blscult we went to Nekken Pler from where the
| ships to Keror went out,

| 30, Q. Yhat happened then?

A, After arriving at this Nekken Harbor there were two men of the Akatsuki |

|Mt.tthamtnuuutmimornn. Then having the MP guard the
|

prisoner, Onose, Tsuchiys and myself went into the quarters. A short time

later Kolchi and his orderly came along.




{
|

&9
-
£

-4

The court then, at 3130 p.m,, took a recess until 3:45 p.m., at which
time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their

. counsel, and the interpreters.

Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were pressent.

Shimojo, Mitsuharu, the witness under examination when the recess was
taken, entered, He was warned that the oath previously taken was still
binding and continued his testimony.

(Direct examination continued).

31. Q. lhltnlthnnnknrﬁninhin.tthiutiu?
A, He was a captain,

32, Q. When you say Eoichi, is this (pointing to the accused Koichi) the
Koichi that you are talldng about?
A. I believe the one on the left in the front row is Kolchl.

'33, Q. What happened after Captein Kolchi joined you?

A, After we greeted Captain Kolchi, I went to the Nounl and Akatsukl Unit,

34, Q. Did the boat to Koror finally arrive at that pler?
A, Yes, it came, but it was night when it came,

35. Q. Who got on that boat to Korori

'A, When the boat arrived at Nekken pler there was some cargo which was to

be transported to Koror on the boat, and perhaps thers were about 15 or 20

|army men from various units, I don't know to what unite they belonged, on the
' boat, Then there were Captain Koichi, Second lieutenant Onose, Sergeant

Major Tsuchiya, myself, Captain Koichi's orderly, an assistant Kempei, and
the prisoner.

36, Q. Did you know Onose's rank at this time?
A, He was a second lieutenant,

39, Q. Do you mow Tsuchiya's rank at this time?
A, Sergeant major.

38, Q. Did this vessel finally get to Koror?
A, Tes,

39, Q. TWhat happened when you got to Koror?

|As When we arrived at Koror, we went to the quarters of the EKoichi Unit,

40, Qe Who went to the quarters of the Koichi Unit?
'A. We seven, who got on the boat at Hekken Harbor, went to Koichi's

|quarters.
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|41, Q. Wll you enumerate the people who went to Kolchi's quarters? ; {

|A. The persons that went to Kolchi's quarters were Captain Koichi, Second
Lieutenant Onose, Sergeant Major Tsuchiya, myself, Captain Eoichi's orderly,
the assistant Kempei, and the prisoner.

| 42, Qe+ What happened then?
A, Then I arrived, there were one or two non-commissioned officers and
there was one officer, I don't know exactly but I believe this was Katsuyama.
| He was ordering to have the prisoner placed in the air rald shelter and to
guard him well.

43, Qs Do you mean that Katsuyama was giving the orders concerning the
prisoner?

A, I don't recall clearly, but I believe it was Katsuyama who was gliving
out the orders., :

4he Qe TWhat was done with the prisoner?
i, The prisoner was confined to the air raid shelter.

45, Q. TWhat did the rest of you do?
A, Ve put a table in front of Captain Koichi's quarters and had tea and
| ate there.

46, Q. TWas anything said about the execution?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it
was leading.

The judge advocate withdrew the guestion,

47. Q. Did any of you do any talking?
A, Yes, we did.

48, Q. That did you discuss?

A, Captain Koichi, Second lieutenant Onose, the person who I think was
Katsuyama, a non=commissioned officer of Katsuyama's Unit, and Teuchiya
were talking. From what I heard, they were talking about the place and
the time of the exscution of this prisoner and, from what I learned from
their talk, it was decided that the place of the execution would be at the
naval cemetery and the time was to be 7 o'clock the next morning.

The accused moved that this answer be gtricken from the record unless
it were shown what was actually said by each accused.

The judge advocate replied.
! The commission announced that the motion was not sustained.
|49« Q. That happened then?

| A Then we put up for the night and Second Lieutenant Onose and Captain
| Kolchi went to Captain Koichi's gquarters. |

|50, Q. Where did you go?
| Ao Sergeant Major Tsuchlyas and I were led to different quarters.

| .
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51, Q. Tell us what happened the next morning? : |
A. TWaking up the next morning, I went to the Dol Unit to visit one of my |

friends who came from the same prefecture, He was not present and so from

the Dol Unit, I directly went to the naval cemetery which was deslgnated

as the place of execution.

52, Q. And when you got there, what did you see?

A, TWhen I went there, Onose and Tsuchiya were in front of the prisoner,
Ona of the men from the Kolchi Unit was holding the rope which was tied
to the prisoner and there were some other men around the priscner.

53, Q. About how many people in all were there? .
4, I do not know the exact number of people that were there, but when I
went there the first time there was about thirty,

54, Q. TWhere was the prisoner?
. The prisoner was at the far end of this naval cemetery just where the
main road comes down.

55, Q. Was he standing or sitting,
Ay Sit ti ng -

56, Q. Was he tled?
A, Yes, he was tled.

5-?1 Q. How was he tied?
A, Both his biceps were tled and his wrists were loosely tied,

58, ., What happened then?
A. TWhen T arrived there, Second Lieutenant Onocse and Sergeant Major

| Tsuchiya were in front of the prisoner and Onose was speaking to the prisoner,

T went to the side of the prisopner and Katsuyama and Koichi came along.

59, Q. Besides Katsuyana and Kolchi, did anyone else come along?

A, TWhen I got to the scene, Tsuchiya and Onose were speaking to the
prisoner, Shortly after 1 came, behind me there were Koichi and Katsuyama
and as to the guestion that was just asked if there waas anybody else behind
me, I don't know, ind another thing, whether Koichi and Katsuyama were
there before me or came after me, I don't know. fhen I first came to the

gecene I didn't notice them,

60, Q. 'What language did Onose use in spealcing to the prisoner?
A, Onocse was using English,

61, Q. After you noticed that Katsuyama and Koichi were on the scene,

what happened then?

A, FKatsuyama and Onose spoke to each other and Onose said to Katsuyama,
I told the prisoner about the execution,” Then I heard this, I locked at |
the prisoner, The prisoner locked very much upset and his face was dropped
down. 4 little while later, I heard the prisoner say to Onose, "Thank
you," Onose gave him a clgarette and 11t 1t,

62, Q. What happened theni |




e

! A, I would like to add this now, because I have dropped it., When I first | : {
i arrived in the scene, Onose was giving back the belongings which the

| prisoner seemed to have possessed. They were a watch, a ring, and a

| necklace with a cross on 1it, |

63, Q. After Onose had given the prisoner a cigarette, what happened
then?

A, TUp to that time Katsuyama and Onose were conversing but I don't know
what they were saylng. A short time later, Katsuyama ordered the scldier
who had the rope which was tied to the prisoner to lead the prisoner to
the hole which was about ten meters from where he was,

64 Q+ That did this hole look like?

A, This hole was dug oblong from the east to the west, The length from
east to west was about seven feet, its width was about three and one-half
feet and its depth was, I believe, about three and one-half feet.

65. Q. Did you see this hole being dug?
A, No, I did not see it being dug. When I arrived tc the scene, it was
already dug.

66, Q, TWas the prisoner brought to the hole?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it
was leading.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission anncunced that the objection was not sustalned,
iﬁ. Yes, he was, |

|67, Q. And after the prisoner was brought to the edge of the hole, what |
happened then?

A. Then Katsuyama ordered one soldier to blindfold this prisoner., This
goldier got a towel and blindfolded the prisoner, Hatsuyama was then

standing to the back of the prisoner with his sword drawn ocut and he had JEs s
another soldier run some water on the sword. 1

68, Q. TWhat happened then?
A, After the blindfold was put on and Katsuyama had his sword washed with
i water, Kateuyama stood to the right of the prisoner,

69, Q. And what happened then?

|A, Katsuyama swung up his sword, but it locked as if Katsuyama did not have
| confidence in himself and he was shivering and he was swinging his sword

up and down and correcting his posture., At this time, Onose showed him

how to cut.
|

70, Q. Show us exactly what Cnose did,
A, Onose did not have a sword, but Onose was instructing him how to place
'his foot and how to ewing his sword up and how to swing it down,




7. Q. Show us what Onose did.

A, Katsuyama was standing like this (the witness stood with his feet in
horigontal alignment) and Onose told him hew to place his foot and how to
swing up his sword and what part of the neck to aim at when he brought his
aword down, (The witness demonstrated by placing his right foot forward
of his left foot while making = chopping motion, and by indicating a point
on his neck with his hand,)

The witness was duly warned.

The commission then, at 4:30 p.f., adjourned until G a.m., tomorrow,
Tuesday, November 25, 1947.




| United States Pacific Fleet,
| Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands.
' Tuesday, November 25, 1947.

. The ccsmission met at 9115 a.m.
| Present:

_ Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U. S. Navy,
- Ideutenant Colonel Henry K. Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,
Lieutenant Colomel Victor J. Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United
|States Army,
. lieutenant Commander Bradner W. Lee, junior, U. S. Naval Reperve,
: Major Andrew I, Lyman, U. 5. Marine Corps, members, and
lisutenant Commander Joseph A. Regan, U. S. Navy, and
Lieutenant James P, Kemny, U. S. Havy, jodge advocates.
Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first class, U. 3. Navy, reporter.
The mccused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

mnmapmndwmﬂmdm-ummrmm
approved.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Shimojo, Mitsubaru, the witness under exsmination when the adjournment
was taken, entered, H-mnrmdthntth-uth:t-ﬂmhhhum-tiu
binding, and continued his testimony.

(Examination contimed.)

T2e Qo Lmrmnumwmmmmnmutohnm-m
.ndhwtnulhinnmﬂ,ﬁthppomﬂ

(o uwamuuhthhwmﬂﬂummmﬂ,ﬂr-t
Lieutenant Eatsuyama took a firm position and aimed at the prisoner and
|swung down his sword.

73, Q, What happened then?
A First Lieutenant Katsuyama swung at the neck and about half of the
prisoner's neck was out; and the prisoper fell lying prone in the hols,

The Qe What happened then?

| Ao For a while First Lieutenant Eatsuyesa had a pale face, but he seemed
"bmhﬂkhuimulﬂuﬂuﬂm-ﬂﬁn-hmmﬁpﬂmr
| faeing dom in the hols, Thluldhr-mtth-rnp-ihiuhm

| prisoner and First Lieutenant Katsuyama and the soldier buried him,
I

75« Qe Thile all this was going om, what were you doing?

1™ mhtﬂa-lgntnemlm.tndinGmrhr.

_|"ﬂ5. Qe Were you doing anything?
A Ihﬂ-th-prhmrmbnmmﬂdldidmtduwthm. I was
standing there with my camera.
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. 3. ﬂnmdﬁumﬂmﬂt}nmmﬁihmm-

ﬁhqmtiumubjntdtohyth&mmuﬂnthpmnﬂthﬂit
was leading,

The judge advoocate replied.
The scamission announced that the objection was not sustained.
As Yes, I used it on the scene,

78, Q. How many pletures did you take?
As Hﬂlﬂﬂl-

79« Q. Tell us what plctures you took,

'Ae The first one was as I have stated yesterday. The pleture of Onose
liﬂuﬁ-primudpnthudthpﬂ-m-oﬂuthumth.
.mummmmnumthwmmmmmm.
n-thhammnm-tu-utmtmmu-mammm

in the hole., I took the plcoture of the prisoner's neck, The fifth while
muummmmm-ﬁ-lumﬂ‘m‘nmm
HMI.

lﬂn. 3. mmuuuumtmthmmtmtusmnthnmk
place
A, Imnm.mmummkphudhrﬂuﬂddhﬂm,lﬂi.

81, Q. After the prisoner had been executed and buried, what happened

th-phumdthqplmhdplmt-mﬂphudmkuduﬂt:p“‘m.
:Mntmpthndﬁ-lam-nmm:nnmnnldlut
pmrfarth-dumud...fwthh;rhmr. At this time I was on a
1ittle hill and I took this plcture.

82, Q. uurmhdnmphhdhhn(rm;d.ﬂnrnudmthw-
ing was over, what happened then?

| Ao mm-;nmmimtum-mmunt. I returned to the
barracks of the Koichi Unit. I had already departed from Omose and Tsuchiya,
later I went to the Eatsuyama Anti-aircraft Positiom,

83. Q. m:mrmmmm-mmthtw,mmmm
to Babel
A, Do you mean the headquarters?

ipﬂ-m-r fell into the hols; and the fourth while was lying K

i it Y

i




| Around 0800 the mext morning I gave these to Onose there in the intelligence

196, Q. Whose headquarters?

| A, What I heard concerning this was at the Doi Unit, Onose and Tsuchiya

A, No, I haven't seen them since then,

| & Yan,

' 94, Q. You testified that you received orders to go to the Kempeital Unit
| without knowing you were going to take prisoners to Koror, TWere you
| working under Ideutenant Onose so he gave you these orders as one of his

C ¢ ¢ 3

86, Q. Did Onose and Tsuchiya return with you to Babelthuap?
A, Headquartera?

a?- Q'I' I'..'l'
A, Yes, we returned to headquarters.

g8, Q. Did you at any time have a conversation with any of the accused
concerning the execution?

LY

This question was objected to by the accused on the grounds that 1t
was leading and that this witness could not testify to an admission by any
of the accused.

The judge advocate did not reply.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
and an officer of the Doi Unit were conversing. According to Onose's
conversation he said that if this execution could not be performed by the l
Koichi Unit, he was ordered by the divieion commander to de it himself.

89. Q. What did you do with the plctures that you took?
A. That night, after returning to headquarters, I started printing them,

room, Onose was looking at them with other NCO's.

90, Q. Did you ever see thess pictures again?

Cross-examined by the accused:

91, Q. You testified that you were a gunzoku, TWere you a gunzoku because
you had defective hearingl
A, That is not so.

92, Q. Is your hearing defective?
Ay Yes,

93, Q. In both ears?

subordinates?
A, Onose was one of the officers working in the intelligence roacm. I

was the photographer of the intelligence rocm.

95, Q. This intelligence room, TWhere was 1t located? Was it located on

Eoror Island?
A, It was at the headquarters.

A, It was the headquarters of the Teru Unit.

15
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97. Qe Who was the commanding officer of this unit?
A, Lieutenant General Inmoue,

98, Q. And Onose was attached to this headquarters?
A, Yes,

199, Q. That kind of photographing equipment did you take with you?
‘A, It was & small camera called Baldox,

100, Q. Did Lieutenant Onose order you to take this camera with you?
'A. This was the only amall camera at the headquarters, Other than thie

| there were big aeronautical cameras.
|

- The commisslon stated that the reply was not responsive and directed
| the interpreter to restate the questlon to the witness.

The interpreter restated the guestion,
{As No, he did not order,

.Ilﬂl. Q. Who d4id?
|Ae I tock it on my own account,

1102, Q. Who ordered you to go with Liesutenant Onose?
il. Second Lieutenant Onose ordered me that "you are going along with me to
Koror.®

103, Q. How did Teuchiya happen to join the party?
A, I do not know this,

104, Q. Vas he attached to the headguerters of General Inoue?
A, Yes, he was attached to the headgquarters,

1105, Q. Did you go into the room with Lieutenant Onose so that you kmow that
he talked to the WP officera?

i.h. I do pnot kmow.

L}

1106, Q. How do you know he talked to the MP officers?
A, I saw them talking,
|

Eltill'i'. Q. Could you hear vhat they were saying?
A, No.

108, Q. You say that Captain Koichi and his orderly came along while you nr¢
at Nekken Harbor, How did you recognize Captain Koichi?
A, Kolichi came to where we were with his orderly.

109, Q. Did you know it was Captain Kolchi?

A. I did not know that he was Kolchi at that time, but I came to know that
he was Koichi when I went to Eoichi's unit. But I knew that he was a captain
from his insignia while I was at the Nekken Pler,

110. Q. Then did you find out it was Koichi?
A, I found this out at the barracks at Kolchi's unit.

||1.‘L'I.. Q. How did you recognige Eoichi's orderly?

A, Even on the way this orderly was taking care of Captain Koiehi, so I
believed he was the orderly,’

16
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112, Q. What was his name?
A, T do not know his name,

113. Q. Had you ever seen Captain Koichi before you met him that day?
li H‘D.

| 114. Q. Did you ever see him again until yesterdsy in this courtroom?
:1. I think I did not see him,
|

illﬁ. Q. You didn't sep this same person at the exscution?
A, I saw him at the scene,

|116. Q. Did you recognize him as the same person?
A, Yes, I did.

117. Q. Did you know that he was Captain Koichi at that time?
|1. At that time I already kmew,

|

/116, Q. Describe these quarters you went into. You say you went into the
| Kolchi quarters.

A. Do you mean the locatlion?

1119, @. What they looked like.
'A. What T recall is that it was a barracks-like building and around it were
Jbunnnn trees planted., Other than that I do not remember.

1120, Q. Why is it that you do not recall who was gilving orders that evening?
'A, T thought that as for me I did not have to recognize this person,

1121, Q. What did you actually hear him say that night, this person?

‘A, TVhen the priscner was brought, thie person ordered some men to put ths

| prisoner in the eir raid shelter and also told two or three soldiers to guard
| him carefully. After that we went to the table which was placed in fromt of
| the Koichi quarters and while we were there he came to where we were and
idiaauasnﬂ the time ag place of the execution,

1122, Q. Who did?

|A. That is Kolchi, Onose and this officer were discussing about it., Other
than that I think there were some NCO's of the Koichi unit.

|

123, Q. This other officer that you can't identify, Did you ever see him
again?

|A, No, I haven't seen him since,

124, Q. You didn't see him at the execution?

A, No I didn't., On this I am not very clear., PBut I testified that I did
not see him at the scene., Vhen I saw him at the barracks of the Koiehl unit
{I felt as though he was Katsuyama.

125, Q. Had you ever seen him before?
A. Do you mean Katsuyama?

126, §. This person.
A, I haven't mseen him before this.
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127. Q. What did you hear Koichl say that evening at the conversation?
A, Captain Koichi and the officer I thought was Katsuyame and Onose, an
NCO of *he Koichi Unit and Tsuchiya were talking but I am not clear as to
what Kolchli said.

1128. Q. You said you put a table, Who put this table?
(A, I said that we talked outside near the table but T did not say that
they put the tahle. The table was out there,

129, Q. Did you sit down at this table?
_l. Tle had chairs round the table and we sat on the chaira,

130. Q. Can you deseribe in just what relatlon each of you sat at this
‘table?

A, I do not know in what position we all sat but the persons who sat were
\Koiechi, the officer who was ordering the men about the guarding of the
prisoner, an HCC of the Koichi Unit, Onose, Tsuchlya and myself.

131. Q. Can't you remember actuslly how many sat down at this table?

!l.. T think there were six in all, T"hat I mentioned before the last question,
:132. Q. Did you say anmything during this conversation?
|A. I did not say enything in particular at this time,
Il

1133, Q. Did you say anythin at all? Did you take part in the conversation |

\at al11? -
' T did not participate in ‘he conversation or the discussion of the

L]
prisoner,

|
134. Q. Did Tsuchiya take part in the discussion of the prisoner?

A. I do not recall that Teuchiya was talklng,

1135, Q. Did any of the non=commissioned officers have anything to say durling
that conversation?®

A, The other NCO's were discussing in this conversation.

I

(136, Q. Did you hear Koichi say he had been ordered to execute the prisoner

|by the General?
A, That I did not hear,

':!13'?. Q. Did you hear Onose say that he had been ordered to exccute the
iprisoner by General Inoue?

ik, I heard Onose say that if Koichi, Katsuyama or other persons of the Kolochd
'Unit could not perform the execution, General Inoue had ordered him to do it,
That is what I heard from Onose, But this I did not hear directly. I think
it was at the Dol Unit when Onose was talking to this effect to the NCO of

ithe Doi ¥Unit.

138, Q. What did you hear Lieutenant Onose say at this conversation? You
testified that the execution had been ordered, time set and the place deslg-
ted. Did he speak these words at this conversation?
« This I do not recall clearly.

39, Q. Then it is possible that you didn't hear this at ell at this conver-

tion?
. Idpunntlmnw-hnuiditbutIhurdthat.immdthephmmntiom

in this conversation,
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(140, Qe Didn't you hear Ceptain Koichi say he objected to executing the
| prisoner? . z
{A, This I did not hear.

from this place?
A, Is that from the Koichi Unit?

1142. Q. Yea.

A, T think it was around five or six hundred meters if you go through the
back gate from the quarters of the commanding officer of the Koichi Unit to
| the Doi Unit Headquaerters.

|
il&j. Q. Was there anybody at this conversation at the Koichi Headquarters
;fTﬂm the Dol Unit?

A, That I myself did not see.

1144. Q. Do you know how many people were in the Kolchi Unit?
A. VWhen you say this do you mean persons that were in the barracks?

1145. Q. No. That belonged to the Koichi Unit.
A, That I do not know.

il&ﬁ. Q. Now you said that you saw Lieutenant Onose speak to the prisoner,
IWhat did you hear Lieutenant Cnose say to this prisoner?
A, There do you mean?

1147, Q. At the scene of the executlion,

A, I do not know English but when Katsuyama came Onose was saylng to
|Katsuyma that he had pronounced to the prisoner his execution., But other
|than this I do not know what Onose said %o the prisoner.

f The witness was duly warned,

il The commission then, at 10:15 a.m., took & recess until 10:30 a.m,, at
|which time it reconvened.

; Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, thelr
|counsel, and the interpreters.,

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8, Kavy, reporter,
No witnesses not otherwise conmected with the trial were present.
Shimojo, Mitsuharu, the witness under examination when the recess was
| taken, entered. He was warned that the oath previously taken was still
binding, and continued his testimomy.

| (Cross-examination continued).

1.8, Q. Did you hear Tsuchlya say anything to this prisoner at this time?
A, No, I did not.

1/9. Q. Did you ever hear him say anything to the prisoner?
]ll' Hﬂ. I ﬂid.l‘.i' ti

141. Q. You said that you went to the Doi Unit. HRy far was this Doi Unit 7




A | gt '

150, Q. You stated that you saw Unose give the prisoner something. Was this
a Japanese cigarette that he gave him?
A, Yes, it was,

151. Q. Vhat else did you say Lieutenant Onose gave the prisoner?
A, At the scene of the execution I saw Oncse give a cross with a chain, a
ring, and a watch to the prisoner.

152, Q. Did he say anmything to the prisomer at thie time when he gave him
| these things?
A, He was conwersing. e

|
{153 Q. You don't know what he said to him?
A, I don't know,

154, Q. What did the prisoner do with this cross when Onose gave it to him?
A, .When I went to the scene the prisoner had the cross already around his |
ineck, Then I went to the scene, Onose was just handing him the ring.
|
155. Q. Vhat did the prisoner do with the ring?
A. The prisoner's hande were tied but they were tied very loosely, so the |
prisoner was putting the ring on his finger.

156, Q. VWhat did he do with the watch when Onose gave it to him?
il. Onose put the watch on his wrist for him,

!157. Q. But you didn't actually see him give the prisoner the cross, then?
A, When I went there the cross was already around his neck,

1158, Q. 8o you just imagined that Onose pgave wim the cross, but you did see
him give the prisoner the ring and the watch., Ien't that so?
A, Yes.

4159. Q. Thie hnyﬁ'that you say was dug. You didn't see any cne dig the huleléﬁﬂg |
| did you? |
11. No, the hole was already dug vhen I got there,

| |
160. Q. When you say it was already dug, couldn't it have been & ah{il hole (7% |
instead of one that was dug? {
iA, It was not that kind of hole.

161, Q. When did you first pet to see this Lieutenant Katsuyama that you say
|was at the scene?

A. I do not recall clearly, but before the execution I went to the Katsuyama
Unit snti-sireraft position and I do mot recall if I saw him then or not.

162. Q. You think that this might have been the first time that you saw him,
at the scene of the execution?

A. I think that it was the first time I saw him at the scene of the execu-
tion and somehow I think I have seen him before, but actually where I first
knew it was Katsuyama was when I saw him at the scene.

163, Q. Did you ever see him after that?

A, When I went to take some pictures of the anti-saircraft positions of the
Katsuyame Unit, I saw him., Since then, after the war, I think he came to
the headquarters once end I think I saw him then but it is not clear,

20




|164. Q. This Eatsuyama that you think you saw at the scene - were his ears

bandaged that day?
A. I do not recall if he had them bandaged or not,

e
7~
-
-
-
E—

165, Q. Were Captain Koichi's ears bandaged that day?
A. I do not recall this,

(166, Q. Was Captain Koichl wearing glasses that day?
A. I do not recall clearly if he had glasses on or not,

167, Q. Was Katsuyama wearing glasses that day?
A. He did mot have glasses on,

168, Q. TWas there anyone else that was showing this Katsuyama how to place
'his feet that day?
|A, I don't recall,

169, Q. Do you remember seeing Captain Koichi there when you heard Eatsuyama
order the soldiers to blindfold the prisoner? |
A, No, I do not.

|170. Q. How close to Katsuyama were you vhen you sew them swinging the
|aword?
A, It was about four meters.

'171. Q. Were you the only gunsoku present at this scenel
A, At the scene there were quite a few soldiers there gi I could not tell @K
if some were gunzoku or not but I think there were two or three civilians
imng them.,

172. Q. Vas there anyone standing between you and Katsuyama when you saw
Katsuyama swing his sword and cut the prisoner?
A. There were lots of soldiers on each side of the hole watching Katsuyama.

173. Q. Ves there anyone between you and Ketsuyama?
A, Then I took the pictures of Katsuyama swinging the sword it was from the 5
front. On one side of the hole the prisoner was sitting down and on
sides of the hole there were two rows of soldiers watching Katsuyama G
took the pieture from the oprosite side of the hole.

174, Q. 8o you could see everybody that took part in this execution, is that
right?
A, Yes, I could see all,

I

175. Q. You gay that Katsuyama had a pale face but then he came back to his | 7=
senses, What do you mean when you say he came back to his senses?
A, Do you mean after he cut?

176, Q. Yes,
A. When he had cut the prisoner, the color of his face had changed and he
was standing there with his sword dangling down.

177. Q. Did you see anyone else cut with a sword that day?
A. There was no one else ocut,

178, Q. Did you see Koichi there when you saw Katsuyama cut?
A, I don't recall seeing Captain Kolehl there, i
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179, Q. If he had been there, you would have seen him, Is that right?
A. Tt can be thought that way but as I was busy with my own work, that ls
| photography, I didn't pay any attention to the others,

180, Q. Do you recall seeing Onose there?
A. I recall Onose was there.

I181. Q. What do you recall seeing him do there?
A, I recall Onose being there because I saw Onose showing Katsuyama how to
eut with the aword.

182, Q. Did your picture show thatl
!1. Do you mean Onose?

|
1183, Q. Yes.
li. Onose is not in the picture I took when Katsuyama cut,

|184. Q. You say you remember Onose showing him how to place his feet, Did
he actually move Katsuyama's feet or did he just give him instructions by
| mouth?

|

' This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
|1t was double,

|

i
!135. Q. Did he actually go over and place Katsuyama's feet in & certain

position?
i‘hi No.

The acoused withdrew the question,

186, Q. Vhat did he do, then?

A, If we consider this part as a hole, Ketsuyauma was near the place where
| the table is and at this end of the hole, Onose was standing. (Indicating a
|diutanae of about twelve fest).

!

187. Q. What did you hear Onose ssy to Katsuyama?
A, He was showing by saying to "open up your lege a 1little more" or "rut that
|leg forward" and how to swing the sword.

188, Q. Now, Tsuchiye, where was he during ell this time?
A. He wae stunding about one meter diagonally to the right of me,

1189. Q. All during the time that you were there, was he to the right of you,
one neter from youl
A, I first noticed Tsuchiya belng there after I finished taking the plcture.

190, Q. You didn't see him hand eny of the velongings of Kaufman to Lieuten-
ant Onose at the scene of the executlon then?
A, I den't knew who Keufman is.

191. Q. The prisoner,
A. This I didn't see,

192. Q. Did you see Tsuchlya do anything ot the scene of the execution?
A. I don't recall.

e .d_._.l..l\.-.-l—-—-—-—-_'_._“l .
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nerd

193, Q. You didn't see him tie the priso
he Kempelital.

A. The prisoner was tied when he left

194. Q. You dldn't seec Tsuchlys give any directions to Katsuyama about how
to welld the sword?
A HNo,

1195, Qs You didn't see him cut with the sword?
A, There was no such thing.

196, Q. And you didn't see him take part in helping blindfold the prisoner?
A, That point I don't recall,

1197« Q. Were you the only photographer there at the scene’
|A, There was no other photographer at the scens other than me.

|

1198, Q. Why did you glve these plctures to Lieutenant Onosel

A, Vhen we returned to the headouarters, I was ordered by Onose to bring the
|film to the intelllgence room without leaving even one print or film in the
\photo lab, so I delivered them to him,

199, Q. What headguarters did you return to and print these plctures?
A, The Teru Unit headquarters.

200, Q. Who else returned to headquarters? You and Cnose and who else?
A, I fell that Sergeant Major Tsuchiya went home with us.

201, Q. Vas he stationed at the same headcuarters as you were?
E3£an- I[.IH-

202, Q. Now, you testified es to a conversation that Onose had. Where did
lthis conversation take place afterwards?
A, What do you mean? Which conversation?

203, Q. The conversation that you testifled to this morning after the
execution had taken place, You testified to a conversation that you heard
|Lieutenant Onose heve.

A. Do you mean the conversation between Cnose and myself?

|204. Q. This morning on direct examination, you testified to a conversation
that you heard Lieutenant CUnose have after the execution and concerning the
execution.

ki, This was at the Dol Unit.

205, Q. That was at the Doi Unit. Then did it take place? How long after
the execution?

A, T went to the Doi Unit after I went up to the anti-aircraft poeitien,
and T think it was & little before or a little after twelve,

206, Q. The same day as the executlon?
h., TYes.

207. Q. Tho was present at this conversation? !
. I think there was a person who seemed ta be an officer of the Doi Unit.

208, Q. Can't you remember who he was?
. I do mot know theTy names.
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209, Q. Was Captain Kolchl there?
A, I didn't see him,

|
211, Q. Tas Tsuchiya there?
A, TYes.

212, §, Hor did you happen to be thera?

‘A, I went to teke the plotures of the anti-aircraft position and then I
|came back to the Doi Unit, I just stayed there a little while and I heard
| the conversation and then I obtained the permission of Lieutenant Onose and
| returned to the Akatsuki Unit Detachment.

213, Q. What did you hear Lieutenant Onose say at this conversation?

A, I just heard him say that he was ordered by General Inoue that if
|Katsuyama or someone of the Kolchi Unit could not perform the executlon "you
| perform it."

i
| 224, Q. Who was he telling this to?

[A. This was when he wes talking to the other officer.

1215, Q. You don't know who this other officer was?
|As No, I don't know his name.

216, Q. Do you know what happened to the prisoner after he was buried? That
|1, do you know if his body was cver dug up?
li. T do not know anything about these points,

| 217, Q. Yesterday you testified that Onose ordered you thet you were "coming
|with me, so prepare the cameras," When did you receive this order?
‘A, I think it was around 8 o'clock in the morning.

I|218. Q. You testified that you reported to Staff Officer Yajima. TWho went
'to report this?

|A, Second Lieutenant CUnose, Sergeant Major Tsuchiya, and myself = three in
all = went.

l 219, Q. Did all three of you report?
IL. Second Lieutenant Cnose represented the rest and reported.

| 220. Q. How did Onose report? In what words did he report?
A, He sald that three of us would bring the prisoner to Koror and hand him
}nvur to the Kolchi Unit or Katsuyama Unit.

|

|221, Q. Did he say for what reason he is going to had-the prisoner over to
the other unit?

A, He did not say for what reason the prisoner was to be handed over to the
lother unit.

222, Q, You have stated that you brought a small camers called Baldox, Did
you bring any film?
A, Tes.

223, Q. At what time did jyou depart from the headquarters?
A, I think it was around 10 o'clock in the morning.

L224. Q. When did you reach the Kempeital?
A, Soon after that,

24
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225, Q. Yesterday you testified that you stayed forty of fifty minutes at
the Kempeital and then left about 11 or 12 o'clock. There is a little
|difference in time, is there not?

A, I was just guessing the approximate times,

226, @, You have stated that after you went to the Gespan pler later on
Captain Kolchi came to the Gaspan pier. Is it not true that Captain Koichl
'was there when you went to the Gaspan pler?

W, T do not know if Koichi was there before us or not but when we went to
{the Akatsukl Unit Liaison Office, he was not there, He came later.

| .

227. Q. You have testified that when you arrived st the barracks of the
Koichi Unit, a person who you thought was Katsuyama ordered the men to puard
|the prisoner carefully. Was this the first time that you have seen this
person?

A, Yes,

you thought at that time?
ihl YEa.p

229, Q. Why did you think this officer was Katsuyama?
.L‘ I just presumed that he was Katsuyama,

!23ﬂ. Q. Then no one said that he was Katsuyama, did they?
A, No one said he was Katsuyama.

231, Q. Then you have testified that officer was not at the scene the next
day. Is that true?

A. The night before the execution, I just presumed that this officer was
Katsuyama and I don't know how he looked. At the scenme I saw Eatsuyama but
|T do not know if Katsuyama was that officer that I saw the night before.

The witness was duly warned,

! The commission then, at 11:30 a.m,, took a recess until 2:10 p.m., at
inhich time it reconvensd.

and the interpreters.

' Stewart R. Smith, yeoman first class, U. S, Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Shimojo, Mitsuharu, the witness under examination when the recess was
taken, entered, He was warned that the oath previously taken was still bind=-
ing, and continued his testimony.

(Cross=-examination continued,)

232, Q. You have testified that Unose gave the prisoner back his ring and
watch and so on, Isn't it the truth that Teuchiya handed over these things?
A. I do not know who gave the cross with the chain on it but I believe it
was Onose who gave the ring and watch to the prisoner,

233. Q. You have testified that Katsuyama ordered someone to blindfold the
prisoner, Was it not Koichi who gave this order?
A, T think it was First Lieutenant Katsuyama.

29

1228, Q. Then, when you say that you thtpght him to be Katsuyama, 1s this what >

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, their counsel
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234, Q. When Katsuyama gave this order did you see Kolchl near or around
this place?
1. H’ﬂ" I di'ﬂ :nDt-,

235. Q. Before the execution was carried out, did you not see Koichi give a
speech to the soldlers that were gathered there?
‘.- Hﬂ’. I did mtl

236, Q. You have stated that after Katsuyama executed the prisoner that the
men cleared the place and planted flowers and trees and placed a rock and
made a grave. Who gave this order?

|A, I saw Katsuyama while ordering the men, helping them plant the trees and

and so on.

1237. Q. This morning you testified that after Katsuyama executed the priso-
ner, he was pale and he was just standing there but later he came to hils
genses., Now you testify that he, Katsuyama, gave the order and it was he

| himgelf who did what you stated before, UVasn't it Koichi who gave this order
| for him to do it? _

A, That I saw was that Kateuyama was instructng the men and he himself per=
forming the above, I do not know if Kolchi gave Katsuyama the order to do 1t
| but what I saw was Katsuyama was giving the order and helping the men.

|238, Q. Then, after the grave was made did you not see a tomb mark placed
on the grave with the writing "the grave of an American flyer,"
A, Vhat do you mean by something written?

239, Q. Something that will specify whose grave this is.
|A, I did not see this, This did not come to my eight.

|240. Q. You testified that after the execution you went to the anti-aireraft
position and then later came back and went to the Doi Unit. What was the
reason you went to the Doi Unit?

A. That is because Second Lieutenant Onose and Sergeant Mejor Tsuchiya went
| to the Doi Unit before I left, so I went there.

241, Q. When you went back, did you not go back by yourself?

A, T think I went back with Onose and Teuchiya, That is because I think
Onose would not have let me go alone because I had taken a valuable picture,
JI believe he would not have let me go alone in the night and he would have

watched over me.

242, Q. Is it not that Onose and Tsuchiys left that evening and you slept
over one night and left the next day?
A, I returned that night,

lz.r,a. Q. That night when the prisoner was brought to Koror, you testified
that there was a conference held to discuss the time and place of the exec~
ution, Wasn't it just there you just had supper and not a conference there?
A, I think I have stated before that it was only a conversation, not a
conference. I think it was not a formal econferance to discuss the time and
| place of the exscution but they were just talking about it at this time when
we had our supper brought before us.

| flowers and what not and saying "place the rock here" or "plant the tree heref

il s, i




Reexamined by the judge advocate:

244. Q. At this supper party the time and place of the execution were dis-
cusped, were they not?
A. It is a fact that they discussed this point.

245. Q. When Orose told you that he wanted you to go with him to go to
Koror, did he tell you why he wanted you to accompany him?
A, That he did not.

246. Q. Did you know before you left for Koror that you were going to take
pictures of an execution?

This question was objected to by the accussd on the ground that 1t was
immaterial and leading.

. The judge advocate replied.
The judge advocate withdrew the guestion,
The accused did not desire to recross-examine this witness.

The commiseion did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness said that he had nothing further to state,
The witnese was duly warned and withdrew, ‘

| A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn.
Examined by the judge advocate:

1
ll. Q. State your name and former rank.
A. Doi, Norio, colonel, Imperial Japanese Army .

2. Q. I7 you recognize the accused, state their names and former ranks,
A, In the front row mear this side is Captain Koichi, ‘iiroce. Second in the
\first row is Captain Katsuyama, I do not know his first nmame. First one in
'the second row is Second Lieutenant Onose. The second person in the second
'row is & non-commissioned officer of the headquarters. I do not know his
name,

3., Q. Did you serve with the Japanese armed forces at Koror?
lhAe I have,

4e Q. Between what dates did you serve thera?
A, 17 June 1944 until the end of the war, Until I was demobilized.

5, Q. And what were your duties on Koror?
A, Do you mean the last duty?

|6, Q. What were your duties in May of 19457
A, Commanding Officer of the Koror Defense Unit,

7., Q. And in lMay of 1945 did your force capture a prisoner of war?
A, Yes,




A, I have forgotten the date put I believe it was the early part of May.
B=24's attacked Korer and at that time the anti-aireraft unit made a direct
hit on one 5-24 and it broke up into vieces and fell into the sea, At this ,
time one Ameriean soldier came down on o parschute and landed into the sea :
south of Koror, As the American planes left, went away toward Peleliu, we, |
myself and all the persons who were in the air raid shelters, sav the
Ilmarican soldier coming down on the parachute and it fell into the sea, At
lthat time the Yamada Unit or the Atasuki, in other words the Atazukl Unit,
11aunched s boat and went 1o get this prisoner. Thers were about four Ata-
guki Unit soldiers of the Ataguki Unit in the boat which went to capture the
3 iAmerican soldier. They pulled him up on the hoat and brought him to my
headgquarters. In my headguarters there was one intellizence offlecer named |
Goto. He was a second 1ieutenant and, as he spoke a 1ittle English, I inter= | ,
rogated the prisoner with him as interpreter., The prisoner did not understand '
Goto's English very well, wut T found out the following from him, His name
was Kaufmen, I thought at that time he was a first lleutenant and remembered
|there was a gold bar on his eollar, But later I learned through the American .
that he vas a second lieutenant, His age vas around 25 or 26, His home in

|the States I think he atated it was near Washington tut I do not recall the
innmn of the town, The base was at Peleliu. ™at's ebout all I was able to |
1obtnin from him.
9, Q. What was the name of this prisoner?

, At that time I learmed throuh Goto that it was Haufmen, but later I
ifound out 1t was Kaufman.

!1"3, Q. Did you find out his first name.
P. I d4id not,

11, Q. What did you do with the prisoner when you #i{nished interrogating himi
. It was around noon, therefore food and tea were given to him and he was -
mede to rest. Around 1600 I sent him to the Inmoue Headquarters Dy car, with '
la guard guarding him,

-
g8, Q. "1l you tell tris commission about that? 1

|
h2. Q. Did you ever see that prisoner again?
A, No, |

|13. Q. Did you ever have & conversation with eny of these four accused
|eoncerning that prisoner? i
s Jes, I have, | l

|14. Q. When was thatf
A, I think 1t was about one month since this time.

15, Q. With which one of the accused did you have thie conversation?
A, I talked to Captain Koichi,

16, Q. What did you say to Koiehi and what did he say to you in the tele-
phone conversation?

A, I stated what the headquarters told me, 80 T told him that what they
told me, I told Koichi "the headquarters wants %o send the prisoner to Koror
and have him executed at the anti-aircraft unit, But I refused, The reason
is because if you shoot down & plane the morale 1s already bolstered by it
and there is no need to kill a prisoner to bolster the morale. In fact, you
mey not bolster the morale. What do you think, Koichi?® Koichi answered,
"I am of the same opinion &8 you, commanding officer." This was through &
telephone call but I asked this another time, face to face and twice the
answer was the same,

S
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17. Q. VWhere did you have this face %o face conversation with Kolechl?
A, T think 1t was when I was going to the Kato Unit under my command. On
the way to this unit I believe I talked to Kolechi,

18, Q. How long after the telephone conversation with Koichi did you have
this face to face conversation with him?
li. I recall it was about one day later.

19. Q. When you seid that headquarters had called you, who do you mean at

headquartera?
|A. The 14th Divieion Headquarters. Headquarters of Lieutemant General Inoue|

120, Q. What particular officer at the l4ith Division Headquarters called you

lon the phone?
A, Staff Officer Yajima. oy

21, Q. And in this conversation you had with Yajima, was Koichi's name

mentioned?
A, No, it wasn't.

22. Q. What was Koichl's rank at this tine.

A, Captein,

23, Q. And what were his duties?
A, Battalion leader of the enti-aireraft unit.

i24. Q. Vhat was the name of that particular anti-alrcraft unit?
ii. Koror Anti-aireraft Battalion.

|25. Q. Was it also known as the Kolchi Anti-aircraft Battalion?
‘A, Ordinarily it ie Koichi Unlt,

26, Q. Vas this commend of Koichi's also known as the Provisional Anti-

| aircraft Unit?
A, It is Provisional,

Crose-examined by the accused:

27. Q. What identificetion did this prisoner have on him when he was cap~

tured and you interrogated him?
A, He had a plcture and there was something written on it,

28, Q. Did he have any metal identification tags wvith his name on them?
A, I think he had that among his belongings. It think I saw it along with

his belongings.

29, Q. What was done with these identification taga?
A, T sent that along with his other belongings.

when you sent the prisoner to headquarters. Is that right?
A, TYes,

| 91, Q. WVas there a headquarters' order to turn all captured prisoners over
to headgquarters?
A, This is & written clause in the Japanese field handbook.

29

30, Q. You didn't keep any of his property. You sent it all to headquarterpg
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32, Q. And that's the reason he was sent to General Inoue's headquarters.
Fas 1it?
A, Yes.

133, Q, How long after this priaouaqﬁua captured did Yajima telephone you in

regard to him?
A, I do not recall clearly but T think it was about a month later.

34, Q. That did Yajina say to you in this telephone conversation about the

prisoner?
A, "Commanding Ceneral Inoue wants to send the prisoner to Koror to the antl=
aireraft unit to have him executed to bolster the morale of the unit. FWhat

'do you thirk about iti"

|
|35, Q. Vhy did he cell you on the phone?

; This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
|1t called for the opinion of the witness.

i The accused made no Teply.
|

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

Ji. That is because I was the commanding of ficer of the Koror Defense Unit
ﬂand at the time of the enemy landing 1 would be in command, therefore, as &
| chain of order it came to me,

|-3ﬁ. Q. Was Koichi one of your gubordinate officers then?
A, No, he was not,

| 37, Q. After this conversation, you said you telephoned Koichi, Did you
' telephone him immediately?
| Ao I+t was not right away.

138, Q. Were you told by Yajima to telephone Koichi and tell him about this

conversation?
| Ay HNo.

29, Q. Then why did you telephore him?

'A. T ealled him up because he had something to do. Yajima stated that he
wanted to bolster the morale of the Koichi Unit, therefore Koichi's unit was
the one conmected to this, so I called him up.

40, Qe Do you know who Koichi's superior officer was?
A. Directly above him is Lieutenant General Inoue.

| 41, Q. Was there no telephone connection betveen Koichi's unit and Inoue's

headquarters?
A, There was,

42. Q. You say it was the Koichi Unit that Koichl was in ecommand of, Why

was it designated the Koichi Unit?
A, It is usuasl that the commanding officer's name is put in front of the

unit,.

The witness was duly warned,

The commission them, at 3:15 p.m., took a recese until 3:40 p.m., at

30

which time it reconvened.




|continued his testimomy.

Present: All the members, the judge adwvocates, the accused, thelr
counsel, and the interpreters.

Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U, S. Navy, reporter,
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Doi, Norio, the witness under examination when the recess was taken,
entered. He was warned that the oath previously taken was still binding and

(Cross-examination continued).

43, Q. You said that there was a telephone between the Kolchl Unit and
(General Inous's Unit, Wasn't this a battle telephone and restricted to use
lunder battle conditiona?

A, I think an ordinary phone call could be possible.

44, Q. Do you know whether this execution that Yajima phoned you about was
ever carried out by the Koichi Unit?
A, Yes, I do,

45. Q. Vere you ordered by Yajima to carry out the execution?
A. I was not ordered,

46. Q. Do you know whether General Inoue's headquarters ordered Koichi to
learry out the execution?
A, I heard this after the execution was performed.

47. Q. Did Kolchi ever report to you that this execution had been carried
out?

k., He did not report.

K

. Q. How did you find out .the execution had been carried out, then?
. I heard, I think it was from the adjutant or the orderly, the next day or
ithe next day after the next day,

9. Q. Was Koichi, as the commanding officer of the Koichi Unit, required td
eport such a thing had taken place at his unit to you?

] . Even though he did not report this to me, that is mo crime,
The commission directed the witness to answer the question.
The question was repeated,

» He did not have to.

. Q. Then he was directly under the General for administrative purposes.
as he?
+« JYes,

1. Q. This field manual that you mentioned, Did this field manual fix the
sponsibility for the safety of prisoners in the general headquarters?
. There is such a phrase in the section called "On Guard,"




52, Q. So that in the Palsu Group, Fourteenth Division Headquarters was
responsible for all prisoners of war, Is that right?

This questlion was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that

it was incompetent, irrelevant, and was not the best evidence.

The moccused replied.

The commiesion was cleared, The cormission was opened and all parties

to the trial entered.

The commission announced that the objection was not susteined, but stated
that the commission would not permit further delving into the details of this
particular field manual. -

The question was repeated.

A, Yeas,.

|57. Q. You testified that after this telephone conversation with Yajima
about the execution, you called Koiehi regarding the execution and that he,
too, was against the execution, Vhat was Koichi's reputation on Koror?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that

1t was beyond the scope of the direct examination.

The accused made no reply.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

54. Q. You recelved a telephone cell from Yajima concerning the execution
of the prisoner., What was your reply to this telephone call?

A, "Don't send the prisoner to ¥oror, Even though you send the prisoner to
Koror and have him executed here, it will not bolster the morale of the
soldiers, sc please don't send the prisoner to Koror."

55, Q, Did Yejima say snything to your reply?
A, At that time?

56, Q. Yes.
lAs Ho.

57. Q. Then, you have stated that you relayed this to Koichi and Kolchd
also was against it, Did you relay this opinion of Koichi to the headquar-
tera?

A, There was no necessity of relaying what Koichi said, because the head=
quarters did not ask the opinion of Koichi, They asked my opinion,

58, Q. Then, 1f the headquarters only asked your opinion, why did you relay
+his to Kolchi?

A, That is because the headquarters had a plan to have the prisoner executed
lat Koror, so I just talked %o Koichi about it.,

59, Q. Then was it only onoce that headquarters called in regard to this

prisoner?
A, There was one more phone call,
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ll60o, Q. How long was it that this phone call came to you after the last

phone call you recelved?
. I an not clear on this but I think 1t was about two or three days later,

61, .Q. Then you have stated that you talked with Koichi face to face while
goin{ to the Kato Unit. Vas it before this time or after this time that the FF#%K
vhone call came?

A, Of course it was after.

62. Q. Who was the other party who called you the second time?
A, Staff Officer Yajima,

S il T

é3. Q. Flease tell us what Yajima said to you?

A, I don't recall the words of Yajima on the second call but I think the
Ic-::mt,unt.u of it was the same as the first.

Iéua. Q. How did you reply to this?

A, I said, "I refused the first time and 1t is the same, so please tell them
ao,"

65, Q. After the second phone call, did you notify Koiechi as you did the
first time?
A, No, I did not.

66. Q. You have stated that this second phone call was after you talked to
Koichi face to face., If this is so, why did you talk to Koichi agein at that
itime?

A, That is, I talked to him face in face, The first time I talked to him 6;97\‘\
was through the telephone so I just stopped over and asked him the same thing
iface to face.

————

67. Q. Wes it to confirm Kolchi's opinloni
A, It was not to confirm the oplnion of Kolchi.

68, Q. Do you know what enti-aircraft unit shot down this plane?
A, Do you mean what company shot down this plane?

&9, Q. Yes.
A, I heard it was the Katsuyama Unit,
|

70. Q. Then was the name of Katsuyane mentioned in the conversation of
Yajima to you end the conversatlon o Kolehi?
A, No, there was none,

7., Q. In answering the second phone call, you have stated that your opinion
was the same as first and was against 1t. At this time, did you mention any-
thing of the opinion of Koichli

A, I don't think I did. I

72, Q, Then, at the sare time you didn't think it was necessary for you to

ask the opinion of Koichi?
P. Yes.

The judge advocate did no® desire to reexamine thls witness.

The commission did not desire to examine this wiiness.
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time he was exescuted was one month, I do not recall the time and dates but I

Lgttarney questioned me as to the {dentification card, but at that time I saw

'section "On Guard" is mentioned surrender personnel and those with the flag
lof truce., I used that clause because tne prisoner hsd come down on & pars=

Wednesday, Yovember 26, 1947.

The witness made the following statements

The time which slapsed from the time the prisoner was captured and the
mentioned one month, so the time of one month may be off. The chief defense
he picture of him and on the back some writing but yesterday I saw the ser- ¢
geant's identificetion card and it was different., I think it was thepilcture
erd on the back of that there was some writing. In the field manual in a
chute and surrendered.

The witness was duly warnmed and withdrew,

The commission then, at 4320 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
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. United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Marlanas,
Guam, Merianas Islands.
Wednesday, November 26, 1947.

The commission met at 9:05 a.m.
Precent:

| Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. S. lNavy,
Iieutenant Colonel Henry K, Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corpe, United

|States Army,
' Iieutensnt Colonel Viector J. Garberino, Coast Artillery Corps, United

LEtEtEE Army,

- ILieutenant Commander Bredner W, Lee, junior, U, S5, Navel Heserve,
Major Andrew I, Iyman, U, S, Merine Corps, members, end

| lieutenant Comrander Joseph A, Regan, U, 8, Navy, and

| lieutenant James P, Kenny, U, S, Navy, judge advocates.

! Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first clesss, U. S. Navy, reporter.
The accused, their counsel, end the interpreters.

ﬂ The record of proceedings of the second day of the triel was read and
approved.

No witnesses not otherwise conneeted with the triszl were present.
A witness for the prosecytion entered end wes duly sworn.,
Examined by the judge advocate:

il. . Stete your name end former rank.
'A. Yejime, Toshihiko, lieutenant colonel, IJA.

2. @ If you recognize these mccused, stete their names and former ranks.
! The witness correctly identified all of the eccused.
|

3, Q. Were you ever attached to the Fourteenth Division on Babelthuap?
A, Yes, I was,

ba Q, Between whaet dates did you serve there?
A. I arrived for duty there on lay 11, 1944, and I served there until the
end of the wer when I was returned to Japan,

5, Q. In April end May of 1945 what were your duties?
A, T was & staff officer in charge of intelligence.

[6. Q. Do you recell sometime in April of 1945 being advised that a B-24
had been shot downl
‘.. IﬂB, I dﬂ.

7. Q. When did you receive this information?
LA, T received a phone cell from the Dol Unit.
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8. Q. Do you recall the person who called you on the phone?
d. I do not recell cleerly but I am sure it was Colonel Doi, himself.

9. Q. Vhat did he tell you?

A, FEe seid to me as follows, "Just now one B=24 was shot down end one
soldier came down on a perachute end hes been ceptured. I will send him im-
mediately to heedquarters.”

110, Q. At the time of this telephone cell, whet wes Doi's position?
(A, He wae the commending officer of the Loror Defense Unit.

ill. Q. 4And what wae hie renk?
A. I believe he was still lieutenent colonel st this time.

hl?. Q. After you received this telephone cell from Colonel Doi, what did
|!:,F{1u do?

ﬁi. I immedietely reported this to Lieutensnt General Inoue and Chief of
|Staff, Colonel Tede, end elso, ee et that time there were no facilities et
|headguerters to accommodate the prisoner, I celled up the Kempeitei to have
the priscner confined there,

13. Q. Vho was the comranding officer of the Kempelital et that time?
A, It wae Iieutenant Colonel }iyezaki.

4. Q. Did the prisoner arrive at hesdquarters?
A, He did not come directly.

15. Q. Tell us abnu@,iii
|A, I recall thet one of the intelligence officers of the Dol Unit = his
|name is Goto = escorted the prisoner and came,

16, Q. Did he bring the priscner to youl
|A. No, the prisoner was brought to the entrance of the headquarters and
|from there Second Iieutenant Coto ceme to me and contected me about it,

7« Q. What did you tell him to do with the prisoner?
A, 1 told him to teke the prisoner with him end irmediately go to the

Fempeital,

18. 4. Did you ever interrogeate this rrisoner?
A, Yes, I aid.

{19. Q. When was this?
|4, The first investigetion wee made the next day after he wes confined at

| the Eempeitai.

20. Q. Did you question the rrisoner yourself or through an interpreter?
4. I questioned hirm through en interpreter.

21. Q. And what did you learn from the prisoner as a result of the inter-

rogetion?
A, The name of the prieoner was Keufmen, his renk wes - I don't remember

exactly, but he was second lieutenant or first lieutenant. He flew from
Anguar to bomb Eoror and he told us about conditions of the sirpert in An-
guer, There were many other things that he said, but I can't recall them




m—

C ¢ s 2

tted a written report in Jepenese about it but there is no misteke about

ery clearly now, At Koror when Americen occupetion forces got there I sub=
hat I say now,

&2. Q. After you interropgated Keufman, what did you do?

A, After the investigetion, I made up & report and reed this report to
;Liautanant General Inoue and I repeated the seme report to Chief of Steff,
iColonel Tada.

|

EB. Q. Did you receive any orders concerning the prisoner?
A, Yes, I did.

24, 4. That were you told to do?
A, Ideutenant Generel Inoue directly crdered me to cut thie prisoner,

25, ', Did Genersl Inoue order you, personzlly, to ¥kill this prisoner?
A, Mo, Lieutenant Gemerel Inoue perspnelly told me to have the prisoner cutd

|

@6, - Q. How long after FKeufmen hed arrived st the Kempeitel did you recelve
fthis order?

A, After I mede my first report to Iieutenant General Inoue, Colonel Teda
pointed out some feults in nmy investigetion, so I agein made an investligation,
and when I went to report about the second investigetion he told me, I be-
lieve this wes several deys later.

27, Q. Could it have been 28 much es a month later?
A, No, thet much time couldn't heve elapsed between.
'zﬂ. Q. When Genersl Inoue geve the order to heve the prisoner executed, did
#e give you any reason for having the prisoner executed?

ﬁ. Yes, he did.

120, Q. What did he tell you?

|A. I made a miesteke., He did not state the reason. He told me what
imaaauren tc teke concerning the prisoner.

130, Q. Tell us what General Inoue told you.

A. At thet time, the anti-aircraft unit at Koror sustained heavy damages
by the bombings of the Americen plenes, Koichi and the othere who had been
there for a long time were wounded and received wounds by these bombings.
Their guns and implacements were destroyed end also demeged. Iieutenant
General Inoue had been worried if the morale of this anti-aireraft unit had
declined, and so he thought that if he had the enti-aireraft unit execute
this prisoner, the morale would be boosted again. So, he esked me how about
having the priscner executed at the anti-aircraft unit end he asked me what
I thought about this.

31. Q. In this conversation, did General Inoue specifically mention the
Kolchi Anti-gircreft Unit?
A, Yes, he did.

32, Q. After this conversation with General Inoue, what did you do?
A, After reporting this to Chief of Staff, Colonel Tade, I phoned up
Colonel Doi and relayed this order.

3
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93, Q. Why did you call Doil

A, DBecause the Koror Anti-sircraft Unit was under the command of Koror
Defense Unit.

N

9. Q. VWhat did you say to Doi? £
A, I relayed to him that it wes the intention of the commanding officer to
heve the prisoner who was sent to headquerters executed in the hands of the

[Koror Anti-aircraft Unit.

il 35. Q. On Koror, who was the comranding officer of the Anti-gireraft Unit?
A. Ceptain Foichi.

36, Q. Wes the Koichi Anti-aircraft Unit the only anti-sircraft unit on
Eoror?

A, As fer as the ermy ie concerned, yes.

137. Q. Why didn't you eall Koichi direct?

A. Vhen we relay an order, we usually do it by phone. So I just did 1t
according to custom.

The commission directed that the {nterpreter repeat the guestion to the
witness.

|
I The interpreter repested the guestion to the witnees.
11. (Continued) Because there wes no necessity for éelling him direct. {ﬁ}ﬁg

128, Q. What did Dol say to you on the telephone?
A. Doi seid, "I cen not agree to this execution. Isn't it the proper
|thing to have the Kempeital Unit do 1t3"

39, Q. After you hed thie conversation with Doi, whet did you do?
4. T releyed the words of Colonel Dol to the commending officer.

|40, §. And what 414 the commending officer say?
&, The commanding officer said, "I personally ordered 1t to the Koichi
|Unit, so you send the prisoner to Koror."

41. Q. Did he sey that he had personally given the orders to Ceptain

Koichdi’ :
A, Yes. It was Ceptein Kolchi insteed of the Koichi Unit. i

42. Q. How much time elapsed from the time you had the telephone conversa=
tion with Colonel Doi and the time you spoke to Genersl Inoue and were told
thet he hed given the orders to Koichi personally?
|a, Seversl hours. About half a day elepsed between the times., (The wit-
ness requested permission to withdrew the answer.) Considersble time elap~
sed between the two, but I can not recall how much.

[43. W. After you had this gsecond conversation with General Inous, what did

you do then?
A. I relayed this to Colonel Doi.

4i. Q. TYou relayed whet to Doi?
A. T told him, "The commanding of ficer has pcrsan:llsr given the order to

Captain Kolehi. I will send the prisoner to Koror.
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45. Q. After this second conversetion with Colonel Doi, what did you do
then?

A, I took steps to send Second [ieutenant Feufmen to Koror.

4LE. Q. What rarticuler stepe did you take!l

4., I'11 have to go back a little, VWhen I was told by the comrending offi-
cer he gave me the following orders besides thet, end I mcted according to
thet order. The commanding officer told me to confirm the death of Kaufman,
to return without fail Kaufman's belongings, and to send Esufman to Loror
without fail, He geve me these three orders and he seié this wes very im-
portant, so to leve en officer go elong. He said that he would persomally
gpeal to the officer ebout this. Then I returned end went to the intelli-
gence office, There, I geve the above orders to Second Lieutenant Onose,

| Furthermore, either I directly ordered Unose or it wes Onose's request, I
do not ¥now which, but in order to confirm the deeth of Yeufman, I ordered
to have Gunzoku Shimojo and Serpgeant Vejor Tsuchiye go along with him,

47. Q. Vhat, exmctly, did you tell Onose?

{4, T geve the following orders to Unose concerning Keufman, "You will
|conf1rr his deeth end you will take care of his belonginge and return them
| to him, and see thet they execute the prisoner,."

i g 2 . >
|48, Q. Vhet did Onose sey to you vhen you gave him these orders?
¥ you g

Ih. I do not recall what he sald.

49. Q. Now, think on it., TWhat did Cnose say to you after you told him
whet to do? What did he sey about Tsuchiye end Shimojo?

; This question wes objected to by the eccused on the ground that it was
leading.

The judge edvocete withdrew the gquestion.

50. Q. During this conversation, after you hed given these orders to
Onose, did you have any further conversetion with him?

A, T further added for him to go directly to the commending officer end as
| T had in m* custody the belongings of Fezufman, I gave them to him,

| 51. 4. 8o far, you have told us what you told Onose., Now, tell us what
| Onose eald to you.
| A. I do not recall.

|
| The witnese was duly warned.
i

The commission then, et 10:10 e.m., took & recess until 10:20 a.m,, at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accueed, thelr
counsel, and the interpreters.

Stewert R, Smith, yeomen first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter.
Ho witnesees not otherwise connected with the triel were present.

Yejime, Toshihiko, the witness under examination when the recese was

teken, entered, He we: werned thet the cath previously teken wes still
binding end continued his testimony.
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(Exemination comtinued.)

i52. Q. In this conversation thet you hed with Onose, what did Onose sey
| concerning Tsuchiya?

|A. He said that he wanted to teke Tsuchiya along with him so he ordered
(him to do so.

|53, Q. Did he tell you why he wanted to take Teuchiya with him?

Thie question wes objected to by the accused on the ground it was lead- '
ing.

The judge advocete withdrew the questlon.

54. Q. Wes Tsuchiya present with Unose at the time you had this conversa=-
tion with him? I
|A, He was not there.

' |
| 55, Q. Vhat exactly did he say concerning Teuchiya? L
|A. I can not recall clearly but he seid that he wanted to take Tsuchiya

| along with him,

I
| 56, Q. Did he give you eny perticular reason why he wanted Tsuchiya?

il. No, he did not state any -ertiecular reason for taking him.
|

| 57« Q. Did you agree to let him teke Tsuchiya?
| A, Yes, I agreed, so I ordered him to do so.

58, Q. Why?
L. At that time there were bombings every dey so if one person went along
and if he got into some kind of trouble it would be very difficult.

50, . During this conversetion with Unose, did Onoee sey anything about

Shimojo? |
A, In order to confirm the death of the priscner, Onose proposed to take

along Shimojo.

| 60. Q. How wes Shimojo going to confirm the death of the prisoner?
| A By teking pilctures he was going to confirm the desth.

| 61. Q. Did you tell Onose to report to General Inoue?
A, TYes, I did.

| 62. Q. Before Onose, Tsuchiye, and Shimojo left, did they report to you
| again?
| A Yes, they did.

63. Q. VWhen the three of them reported to you, did Onose tell you what |
General Tnoue had ordered him to do?
A, I do not remember.

éL. Q. When the three of ther reported to you, did you tell Tsuchiya why .
he was being sent to Koror with the prisoner? !
A, T think I didn't say anything in particular. My recollection ie not :
clear on this point.
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5. Q. Did you ever tell Tsuchiya what his duties were in relation to that
trip to Koror and the prisconer?

A, Whether I said it or whether it was said through Onose I do not recall.

Q. Well, what was saidl
The order whiech I received from the commanding officer - whether this
s relayed through me or Onose, I do not remember.

. Q. And whet wae this order agein?

7
E? The orders were to make sure of the death of Kaufman, to return be-
ongings to him without feil and to escort.

68

. Q. Did you call the Eempeitail that day?
Yes, I did call them,

The phone call to the Kempeitai wes as follows: "Ksufman is to be sent

A.
'9. Q. TWhat orders did you give the Kempeitai?
o Koror. In regerds to this Onose will go over there end get him.,"

! (The word "escort" in Japenese slso mesns " to guard," according to the
Wepenese dictionery, confirmed by the interpreter.)

m0. (. Did Onose report back to you after he returned from Koror?
h. Yes, he reported to me.

71. Q. Did Tsuchiyas report also?
A, Yes, he did.

72. GQ. That wes reported to you after their return?

A, From Onose the following wes reported: "Keaufmen wes executed without
ail in mccordance with the weys of the Japenese Samurai by Compeny Commander
irst Ideutenant Yatsuyems of the Koror Anti-sircreft Unit."

M3s e Did you see the pictures of the executlon?
he Yes, I did.
|

M4, G. Getting back to Teuchiye for the moment. You testified that Onose
lasked for Tsuchiya becsuse of the hesvy bombings, end if one person went
lalone it would be difficult. Did you meke sure that Tsuchiya knew why he was
going on this expedition?

L, TVhether I directly ordered him or whether it wes through Cnose, I do not
know which it was, but £11 in 211, my intentions were releyed to him.

75. (. You know that Teuchiya knew why he was going along?

This question wes objected to by the acoused on the ground thet it was
[putting words in the mouth of the witneass.

The judge advocate withdrew the question.

Cross-examined by the accused:

76. Q. When this soldier that wes captured was sent to headquarters, what
identification, insigmia, marke or records did he have on his person? 4
A. Yes, he had,
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77« Q. What did he have?

A. (Witness indicated with his fingers the shepe of a small card) He had
a card to which was ettached his picture and he had an insignie for rank,
but I think he did not have any identification tag.

78. Q. Did you identify him by meens of this identification card?
A, T identified him by his card end also by investigating him.

L??. Q. Did he have & cross on 2 chain eround his neck?
|A, Yes, there was.

80, Q. Did he have a watch?
A. Yes, he did.

Isli Q- m a ring'f
A, Yes.

182, (. What was done with these personsl belongings?
|4, Then Kaufman was brought over from Koror to be confined at the Kempei=
| tai, First Iieutenant Goto handed them over to me,

83, Q. How long did you keep them?
A, TUp to the day thet Kaufman was sent to Koror.

|84. Q. Then what did you do with them?
A, 1 hended them &1l over to Second Iieutenent Onose.

iBﬁ. Q. . What orders did you give him in regard to these personal belong-
ings of the prisoner?

A. T told him to meke sure that these belongings would not be stolen en -
| route to Koror, end when he went to Foror to return them to Kaufmen without
Il fail,

86. Q. Dié he report that he had returned them to Kaufman without fail?
A, Yes, he did report to me that these were returned without fail.

A, As I did not witness it myself, I cannot say for sure myself, but Onose

iET. Q. So that the personal belongings of Kaufman were buried with him?
| +old me - he said that they had buried them with the body of Kaufman.

|88, Q. Tho was this interpreter you used in questioning Kaufman?
A, Tt wes Second lieutenant Hamano.

89. Q. Where did General Imoue talk to you ebout this prisoner the first
time he talked to you?
A, In the room of lieutenant General Inoue,

0. Q. Was there anyone else presgent?
A, No, there was nobody else.

91, Q. Was this en order of General Inoue's to have the prisoner executed

that he gave you at this time?
A. When he told this to me at that time I did not consider it as an order

yet.
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92. Q. Do you know whether it is possible under Japanese military law for
Geners]l Inoue to heve given orders to execute this prisoner?

Thie question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it wes irrelevent and immeterial.

|
|
I
| The accused replied.

The commission announced thet the objection was sustained.

3. Q. The first time when you relayed the orders of Inoue to Colonel Deod,
did you do this in your official cepecity es staff officer to Generzl Inoue?

|
{
|
! A, Yes.
[
[
I
|

94. Q. Then you were simply relaying General Inoue's orders and not your
| own orders.
A, Tt was not my personal order,

| 95. Q. Did you make it plain to Colonel Doi that 1t was the general's

orders that you were relaying?
A, The first time I said to him thet there were guch intentions.

96. Q. This second time when Genersl Inoue said to you that he personally
| gave Ceptain Kolechi orders to execute the prisoner, did you understand him
| to mean thet he had ordered Ceptein Foichl to have the prisoner executed?

| A, Yes, I understood him to mean so.

| 97. Q. Now, the second time you talked to Colonel Dol did you make it
| plain to him that you were relaying the orders of Generel Tnoue?
4, Yes, I made it clear to him.

98. (. When you sent Keufman to Koror wes it on the orders of Ceneral

| Inouet?
A, TYes.

| 99, Q. This order of General Inmoue to send Kaufman to Koror, did you re-
fuse to carry out this order?

This question wae objected to by the judpe advocate on the ground that
it wes irrelevant and immeterisl.

| The accused replied.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

100, Q. Did you refuse to carry out the generel's orders to send the

prisoner to Koror?
A, I did not refuse it.

101. Q. In your opinion was this a legal order of Genersl Inocue's, to send
the prisoner to Koror?

This question was objected to by the judge edvocete on the ground that
1t wes irrelevant and immeterial.
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| 4t was irrelevant and immaterial.

| 103, Q. TVhy did you give the orders to Onose to convoy the priscner to

| EKoror?
| A, Becsuse I thought he wes the person most fit to do this among the

| persons who were working under me.

The sccused replied.
The commission anmounced that the objection was sustained.
102, . Why didn't you refuse to send the prisoner to Koror?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that

The accused replied.

The commission announced that the objection was susteined.

104. Q. Wes this a legal order that you gave to Onose't

This question was objJected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it ealled for the opinion of the witness.

The sccused made no reply.

The commission announced thet the objection was sustained,

105. Q. Did Onose refuse to carry out this order?
A, Uo, he did not refuse.

106. Q. Could Onose heve refused to carry out the order?

Thie guestion wes objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it wes irrelevant end immaterial.

The mccused made no reply.

The commiesion announced that the objection was sustained.

107. Q. Was Onose e subordinate officer of yours?
4, bBfficially he ie not my subordinate. We all are subordinates of the |

chief of steff.

108. Q. The orders that you gave to Onose were orders given in the regula
course of your duties es a staff officer. Is that correct? .
A, Yes, it 1s.

109. Q. The orders that you said that you gave to Onose to confirm the

death of the prisoner., What did you mean by that?
A, To make sure whether the execution was carried out without fail.

110. Q. Under the orders that you gave to Onose, was he, as & headquarters
officer, required under the clrcumstances to see that the Koichl Unit car-
ried out the General's orders to execute the prisoner?

A, Yee, he was.

-
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111. Q. Did you personally order Tsuchiya to eccompany Onose?
A, T did not directly give orders to Tsuchiya.

1121 Q.. “hcl did?
A. Through Cnose I ordered him to go slong.

113. §. Was he attached to the same headquarters, the intelligence, that
you were the herd of?
A, Tes,

1. §. What were his duties at this headquarters?
A, Fie duty wes the collection of information,

115, Q. You say that Onose desired that Shimojo go with him. Did he say
to you thet this was in order that it might confirm to you end the General
v that he, Onose, had delivered the prisoner to Koichi end Koichi carried out
| the orders of the General?

A. Yes, it was.

| 116, Q. Did you order Tsuchiya to kill the prisoner? [
it A« No. .

117. Q. Do you know whether he did kill the prisoner?
A. I do not know,

118, G. Wes Teuchiye, then, only an enlisted guard to eccompany Onose, who
had orders to deliver the prisoner to Kolchi?

This question was objected to by the judge acvocate on the ground that
it called for en opinion of the witness.

The accused replied.

| The commission arnnounced that the objection was not sustained.
| A, He wes not a guard.

119, Q. What wee he?
A, He was a person to assist the work of Onose.

| 120. Q. Did Onose's orders to escort include delivering the prisoner alive
and safe to the Koichi Unit at Koror?
ir YGB-

121, ¢. Did Onose do this?
A, Yes. 1

122, Q. Tsuchiya's orders, were they to assist Onose in delivering the
prisoner alive and safe to the Koichi Unit?
A. That was slso included.

123, Q. Was this the full extent of Teuchiya's orders?
A. Thet wes u part of the order that he had received.
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124. Q. That other orders hed he recelved?
A. The other orders were the orders that were given Onose, beceuse

JTéuchiya‘ﬂ duties were to sssist Onose.

The witness was duly warned.

The commission then, at 11:30 a.m., too! & recess until 2 p.m., et

| whieh time it reconvened.

Present: A1) the members, the judpre advocetes, the accused, their
counsel, end the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeomen first cless, U. 8. llevy, reporter.

Yajima, Toshihiko, the witness under examination when the recess was
taken, entered, ke was waerned thet the oath previously teken was still
binding, and continued his testimony.

llo witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

(Cross-examination continued.)

125, . Did Onose ever report back to you that he, himself, had executed

thie priecner?
A, No,

126. Q. Did he ever report thet Tsuchiya hed executed the prisoner?
A, No.

127. Q. Did he ever report to you just who had executed the prisoner?
A. Yes, he did.

128. Q. Tho did he report had executed the prisoner?
L. Fe said Second Lieutenant Krtsuyame executed the prisoner.

120, Q. You said thet Tsuchiya's orders were to aseist Onose. Could it
heve been noseible for Tsuchiys, an enlisted men, to give ordere concerning
this execution to the hoichi Unit se long as Onose wes precent?

A, That is not possible.

130. Q. Do you know just what the extent of Tsuchiyae's suthority wes es e
result of the orders thet he hed to eccompeny Onose on this trip?

| A, It wee to eseist Onose when Onose can not do 1t gll by himself. It

wes elso to obey what Onose says and to do accordingly.

171, 4. Now, would Yyou ordinarily give sn enlisted man specific and de-
tailed orders when he was ordered to sccompany en of ficer on a rmissioni

Thie question was cbjected to by the judge edvocate on the pround that
it wes irrelevent ond immaterial.

The accused withdrew the question.

132. Q. Did you glve Tsuchiye any specific and detailed orders other than

the orders to accompeny Onose on this miesion?
A. No, I did not,
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133. Q. Did I understand you correctly to say that the orders to Onose were
to see that the Folchi Unit carried out this execution?
iA. Yes, that is correct. But that ie only a part of the mission.

134. Q» Then, wes there some doubt in your mind thet the Koichi Unit would
not carry out the execution?

A, What I ordered to Onose was what Iieutenant Ceneral Inoue had ordered to
me,

135, Q. Wes that then in case the Koichi Unit refused to execute the
prisoner, Onose was to do it himself?
A. Yo, that is not included in it.

!136. Qs So that when the nrisoner wes sent to the Kolchi Unit there was no |
ldoubt that the orders of the Generasl were to be carried out.

[137. G. ©Since OCnose was the one that proposed to teke Tsuchiya elong, isn't
it true that it wes he that geve any detailed instructions to Teuchiye
!ragarding his duties?

P, Yes,

128, Q. And, since the orders to the entire party were to escort and guard
the prisoner on the way to Foror, this meant that they were not to kill the
prisoner on the way to Koror end no other rerty was to kill the prisoneri

This question wae objected to by the judge edvocete on the prounds that
it wae double end thet counsel wae attempting to testify for the witness.

The mcoused withdrew the guestion,

|139. &« Were the orders to the execution party that they were to see that
the prisoner, ¥aufmen, was safely escorted and delivered to the loichi Unit
at Koror?

. Thet wes also included.

140, . Now, did Unose have any orders from you regerding the relaying of
‘the Genersl's orders for the Hoichi Unit to execute the prisoner?
th, He did not.

141. Q. Koichi received the order to execute the prisoner direct from the
iGeneral, did he?
A, Yes.

142, G« Do you know hor meny anti-aircraft companies there are in the Kolchl

Moti-aireraft Unit?
A, The companies that hed enti-aircreft guns were two end one company hed

mechine guns.

143. §. Do you know what compeny shot down the plene in question?
A, I do.

144« Q. Vhat company shot the plane down?
A, I think it wes the Katsuyama Compeny.
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145. Q. You stated that in the first conversetion with Iieutenant Ceneral
Inoue, he stated, "What do you think about having the Yoichi Anti-pireraft
Unit execute the prisoner?" Is thie true’

A, Tes.

14€. Q. On this occasion, whet did you say to the commanding of ficer?
A. T did not express my opinion.

l | 147. Q. Did the commending officer say, on this occasion, to have the
Xatsuyema Unit, which shet down the sirnlane, execute the prisoner?
A. I think he did not refer to this.

= | 148, Q. At any time later dic the commanding officer say to have the Kat-
suyame Compeny, which shot down the plene, execute the prisoner?
Il &, T heve no recollectlon.

| 149. Q. Then they shot down this plene in gquestion, were there any requests
ithat the enti-gireraft unit wented to execute thie rrisoner themselves?
Il &, He.

| 150, G. Then Iieutenant Generel Inoue releyed to you sbout executing the

| prisoner, you seid that the commanding officer said thet the Koichi Unit had
sustained heavy wounds by the bombing of the Americen planes. Do you know

‘ to what extent the personnel were wounded §

: This guestlon wes cbjected to by the Judge advocate on the ground that
1t wes irrelevent end immeterial. :

The eccused replied.
The commission ennounced thet the cbjection was gusteined.

|

[
151, Q. You testified that the Foror Anti-aircraft Unit wac under the com=- |
| mand of the commending officer of Foror, but ien't it true thet the anti- i?a:h-!
i pireraft unit wes under the direct commend of General Inoue? ;
| A, The Provisional Koror Anti-sireraft Unit wes under the immediate com= i
| mand of the commanding officer of the Fourteenth Division but a1l the units il
on Yoror, es fer ae the 1and defense wes concerned, were under the command {
| of the commending officer of lLoror. |

! 152. Qs You testified that when you first relayed to Dol the intention of !
| the commending officer concerning this execution, you said that it was not
en order but only his intentlon. 1s this correct?

| Ae TYes.

153. Q. Then, wes it your intention to esk the opinion of Dol end also of :
the Koror Anti-sircraft Unit, end if they opposed this, was it your in- i
tention not to have them do 1t% |
A, Concerning this matier, it is all up the the character of the command=-

officer. When I sald nintention," it would undoubtedly becore the com=

manding officer's final decision but at this time it was just en intention
aB rﬂt-
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157. Q. As the intelligence officer, did you express any opinion to sustain

154. Q. You testified that Doi reported to you on this occasion that he was
opposed to the execution and that the Kempeitel should do this. What did you
reply to Dol ms regerds hie enswer?

A. T said that I would relay his intention to Commending Officer Inoue.

iﬁﬁ. G. Did you say exactly what Doi told you to the commanding officer?
" Yes.

156. Q. When did you relay this?
A, Some time elapsed after this phone call.
this opinion of Doi's?

This question wes objected to by the judge edvocate on the ground that
it wes irrelevent end immaterial.

The agcused withdrew the question. &

158. Q. That wes the answer of the commending officer at this time?
A, It wes as I have just stated before.

The commission directcd the witness to amswer the question.

A, (Continued) The commanding officer seid as regerds this matter, "I
heve directly ordered Ceptain Foichi," Furthermore, the commanding officer,
Inoue, seid to me to teke memsures to send the prisoner to Koror.

159. Q. When Commending Officer Inoue made this answer, wasn't this two or

three deys after you hed spoken to Dol for the first time?
A. As regarde the relation of time, I have no definite recollection, but

I remenber the facts that he stated.

160. Q. Prior to the commanding officer malding the reply that you have just
stated, don't you recall having contacted Doi and spoken to him about it
once or twice?

A, I do not remember.

161, §. Have you any recollection of meeting Koichi at the Fourteenth Divi-
sion Hemdquarters before the prisoner was executed?

A, I do not have a clear recollection but I do remember heering from Staff
Officer Nakagawe, who has the next room to me, saying that Koichl ceme to
headquarters,

162. Q. I shell go back a little and ask you another question. When you
hed thie first telk over the phone with Doi, do you have any recollection
of Dol stating that not only himself but Captain Koichi was opposed to the
execution?

A, [Either it was the phone eall from Colonel Doi or it was the words of
Staff Officer Nekegawa. I don't have a cleer recollection but I do remembe:

thet Ceptein Kolchi was egeinst thie.

163, §. Did you ever relay to the commending officer, Lieutenant Genersl

Tnoue, that Captain Kolchi was ggainst this?
A. As there were intentions to order Koichi, it was my duty.
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| ings; and three is the confirmetion of death, Will you tell ue in what

| 167. Q. Who did you intend to return the belongings®

Cc ¢t t I

The commigsion directed the witness to answer the guestion.

The question was repeated.

4. (Continued) Yes, I releyed it, Either I sald Ceptein Koichi or the
Koichi Unit, I don't remember, but I relayed that one of them was ageinst it.

164. Q. "hat did the commending officer, Iieutenant Genersl Inoue, say then?
A, I don't remember.

165. @, TWhen you received the order of Commanding Officer Inoue to take
measures in sending the prisoner, ¥eufman, to Koror, you stated thet you
were given three things to do., One is escort; two is returning his belong=-

specific manner you intended to have your subordinate garry these orders out]
A. I am esked to state specificelly, but I have no recollection.

166. Q. Who did you intend to do this escorting?
A. As I recall, this escorting I thought, naturally, that the Kempeitai
would teke care of this, so I think I did not give out any specific instrue=

tions.

A. Second Lieutensnt Onose.

166, Q. How did you intend to make sure of the deeth of the rriscner?

A, The best way is by witnessing it, so I did not give out any specific
instructions, but es there wes en opinion expressed to take & pilcture of
this I thought thls very well to report to the commending genersl, so I
thought well of this end issued orders.

169. 4. You just stated that it wes an opinion expressed to teke nictures.
That is that?

A, I shal) state this in e 14ttle more detailed manner. In this intel-
ligence room end the staff officers' room, I and Unose and other officers
were steying in the seme room. S0, in relation to our room, therefore,
there were numerous onportunities for opinions to be expressed.

170. Q. Was it you that first stated the opinion thet plctures ghould be

taken? - 1
A, Either I first seid this or it wes Onose or it was some other officer!

opinion. I am sure thet it was Oncse's opinlon.

171. Q. Do you have any recollection that Shimojo first suggested to teke

pletures?
A. Yo, I did not heer ebout this.

172. Q. What wes the position of Second Iiesutenant Onose at the head-

quarters?
A, He wes en officer attached to the staff.

173. Q. You heve testified that Onose end you were the subordinates of the
Chief of Staff. When you say "officer attached to the staff," don't you
mean thet this offlcer was under the staff officers?




(A, If you will refer this metter to the higher reguletions concerning the

| from various staff officers he is mtteched to? Ien't thie the wey it is in

g e * 2

higher officers, you will find out the officer sttached to the steff is
under the Chief of Staff btut he iz not under the staff officers. WThen I
seid that he wee not my subordinete, I meent that he wes not ny direct sub-
ordinate.

174. Q. An officer sttached to the staff is directly attached to the Chief
of Staff, but concerning everyday ratters, doesn't he receive instructions

the Jepanese ermy?

A, TYep, that is the custom, but there are officers atteched to the various
| departments that receive orders direct from the Chief of Staff.

The witness wes du'ly warned.

The commlisslon then, at 3:15 p.m., took a recess until 3:30 p.m., et
which time it reconvened.

Fresent: All the members, the judpe sdvocates, the accused, thelr
counsel, end the interpreters.

Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter,
o witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Yajime, Toshihiko, the witness under examinetion when the recess was
teken, entered. He was werned that the oceth previously teken wes still
binding, end continued his testimony.

Cross~examinetion continued:

175, Q. 4t the time of the incident, how meny officers attached to the
intelligence office like Unose were at the hesdquarters?
A, There were three.

176. Q. Vhat wee the post of Sergeant lajor Tsuchiya at the time of the
incident?
A. He wes a non-cormissioned officer atteched to the intelligence section.

177. . How meny non-commissicned officers were attached to the intelligenc

section just like Tsuchiye?
A. I recall there were three,

178, Q. In order to send the prisoner to Loror, wes it your idee that you
gelected Onose and not the idee of the commanding officer, Inoue?

A. That was my idea.

179. Q. When you eseid to Unose to go to Koror Island with the prisoner,
didn't Onose sey to you, "Ien't this the thing for the Kempeitei to dol"
A, I do not remember.

180. Q. Wasn't it the custom in the Japaneee army when an officer went on
a long trip or when he went on & trip and siayed overnight to be eccompen-
ied with a non=commiseioned officer or men?

A, Tt was the custorm for &n officer to take along his orderly but it was
not a custom to teke along & non-cormissioned officer.

181. §. You did not derignete by neme Sergeent Vajor Tsuchiya, but wes it
not you that said to Unose to teke salong one PQMFﬂﬂﬂniﬂﬂiﬂnﬂd of ficer?
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A. T do not have a clear recollection but according to the opinion of
Cnose I think Y ordered one non-cormissioned officer to go elong.

|
182. Q. Did you ever hear Teuchiys perscnally meke a request to be sent to

Eorori
A, No,

183, Q. You just testified thet there were three officers ettached to the
intelligence section, Vias there any rmarticuler reason that you sent Onosei

A. Mo, there wasn't.

!13&. Q. You testified that there were three non=commissioned officers
| ettached to the intelligence section. TVias there any perticuler reascn for

sending Teuchiya?
A, No, there wasn't,

185, §. Then to go on this mission of escorting this prisoner to Koror it
could have been anybody else that you eppointed?

This question wes objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it wes irrelevant end immateriel.

The accused replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

A. Anyone would do,

1
|
| 186, Q. At the time of the incident, was Shimojo the only rhotographer at
| the headquarters?
A, Yes.

r 187. Q. From the testimony you have piven, could it be understood that the

headquarters ordered this execution to be carried out in spite of the
oppoeition of Captein Koichi end Colonel Doi?

This question was objected to by the judre advocete on the ground that

| 4% emlled for the opinion of the witness.
The accused withdrew the guestion.

188, Q. Then, concerning this execution of the priscner, do you acknow=-
ledge the fact in spite of the opposition of Ceptain Koichi and Colonel Dol

the hesdquarters ordered this to be carried out?

This question was objected to by the judge edvocate on the ground that
i1t waps irrelevent and immeterial.

The accused did not reply.

The commlssion was cleared.

The commission was opened and all parties to the trial entered.

[ The commission made the following ruling:
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The commission ruled that the objection wae sustained on the ground that J
the question celled for en enswer that would invade the province of the com= | . ;
mission. i

189, Q. Didn't General Inoue and his headquartere command unit accept the .
responsibllity of the entire incldent and try to hide it when they ordered |
Eateuyama to commit suleclde in August of 19457 |
| This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that ;
|it was irrelevant and immeterisl.

The accused replied.
|

{ The commission announced that the objeetlon wae sustained.
!

Reesmmined by the judge advocate:

190, 4. Did you ever discuss this case with Kolchi et headquarters before
the execution?

4, I do not heve s definite recollection but I think there was no dis-
Lcuﬁﬁinn.

|
1191. Q. 4As e matter of fact, you know there wasn't any discussion. Don't

:Fau?

The witness did not reply.
; The judge advocate withdrew the question.

'192. Q. Ien't it a fect that you didn't even know Koichi hed been at head-
|quarters until efter Inoue told you that he had ordered Kolchi to carry out
|the execution. :
(4. I think it mey have been so. -

193, Q. 4nd you yourself don't really know what Kolchi's feelings sbout the
| execution were at all, do you? l
A, T have no definite recollection concerning this, Either I heard about
\Koichi'e opposition before the execution or either I heard about hle oppo- i
'gition after the order wes given to him. T am not clear. i

Hecross-examined by the accused:
| :
1194. Q. Although you seid you didn't discuss this case with Ceptain Koichi, 1
|did you ever discuse this case with Captain Katsuyama et heedquartersi

|A. No.

1195, Q. Although Koichi didn't tell you directly, didn't you know, hearing
| from Colonel Dol end Generel Inoue, that Captain Koichi was opposed to this
| execution by any of the members of his unit or the execution being held at
|his unit?

A, VWhen Colonel Doi phoned me I did not heer ebout this directly from
Colonel Doi, ;

196. Q. Then you didn't know that Ceptein Koichi was opposed to the execu~ !

tion, is thet right?
A. As I stated in the enswer to the judge advocate, I remember hearing that
he was opposed to it, but if it wae before the incident or after the inei-

dent I do not remember.
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| the firet time that he wrs told ebout it.

| that Koichi was against this execution. Is this true?
| A, With the idee of having the enti-aireraft unit do the execution, I

O G t °

197. §. Do you remember whether Ceptain Folchi was at headquarters that day
when you started the prisoner beck:to Koror?
A, At that time I did not know,

198. §. Was it on & different occession that General Inoue hed told Captain
Kolchi personally that the execution was to be carried out at his unit?
A. The day when?

199, Q. The day when the prisoner started beck to Eoichi's unit,
A, It wes on the same day.

200. Q. BSo that the dey you started the prisonmer besck, that was the day
thet Captein ¥olchi wes told he had to execute the prisoner, end thet was
This quection wee objected to by the judge acvocate on the ground that
1t wes beyond the scope of the reexamination,
The sccused withdrew the question.

201. Q. You have teetified that you relayed to Lieutenant General Inoue

phoned Doi but this was opnosed, so I relayed thet the Eoichi Unit was
apeinst it.

202, Q. You just seid thet you relayed this when you rhoned Colone) Doi.
Then, is it not true that the opposition by the Koichi Unit wes made before |
the execution?
1- YE‘ﬂ-

Reexamined by the judpe edvocete:

203. Q. When you celled Doi, did you speek to Folchi on the phone?
A, No.

204. Q. And the idea thet you got from thet telephone conversation that
Koichi was oprosed to the execution was given to you by Doi, is that correctf
A, Is the judge advocate mentioning Ceptein Foichi or the Koichi Unit?

205. Q. I em talking ebout Ceptein Kedchi.
A. T know that the Foichi Tnit wes opposed to it.

206. Q. And you only know this because Doi told you. Is that correct?
A, Yes.

Examined by the commission:

207. Q. When you relayed the information to General Inoue that the Koichi
Unit wes opposed to this, did the general meke eny comment.?

A, Then I relayed this to Lieutenant General Inoue, Lieutenant General
Inoue had slreedy ordered Captein Koichi to do the execution so he only
relayed to me about this.

208, Q. He made no other comment?
A, I 4id not hear anything else in particular.
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209, Q. You have testified on cross-exsminetion thet there were three com=
miegsioned officers and three non-commissioned officers gttached to the in-
tellipence section, Who wes in charge of this intelligence section?

A, I, Yajima, wes in charge of this sectlon.

210. Q. You testified upon cross-examination that, "through enother person
I leerned that Captain Kolehi ceme to headquartere," Do you remerber the
name of the person from whom you learned this? That is on the day just
prior to the dey on which the rerty left for Noror.

|&. Steff officer llakagawa.

| The witness made the following statement:
|

! In reply to the gquestion of the defense counsel, I answered that he was
| not & subordinete of the intelligence. Iy testimony wes not complete so I

| would 1like to add here. I said that & person wes not my subordipate under

| the intellipgence. I sald Unose wasn't. Generally speeking, when we refer

| to an officer being superior or inferior we speek #s regards his renk and

| also rs regards the éhein of command, When I said that Cnose wes not my

| subordinate I meant that he wes not my subordinate in rcletion to the chain
| of command but, in the sense of superior or inferiocr, he would be my sub-

| ordinete.

J Recross-examined by the accused:

| 211. Q. When an officer sttached to the intelligence section recelves an
| “order from the chief of staff stating that he is ettached to the intelll-
[| gence section, isn't it proper that thie officer is & subordinete of the

| ehief of the intelligence section? Isn't it naturel that he serves under

| the intelligence staff officer?

| A, Tt would not be en order but an instruction., I could order Cnose to
| go to a certein plece if the matter comes into reletion with intelligence
| but I cen not sey for him to go someplace in relstion to personal matters.

212. Q. To send Unose to Koror, wesn't this en officlel duty as en intelli-
| pence officer and not & personal metter?
| A, Yes, thet is why I ordered him,

The judpe advocate ¢id not desire to reexemine this witness.
The commission did not desire to exemine this witness.

The witness seid that he hed nothing further to state.

The commiseion then, at 4:35 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., Friday,
November 28, 1947.

The witness weg duly warned and withdrew. p
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FOURTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Marlanas,

Guam, Marianas Islands,
“riday, November 28, 1947,

The commission met at 9112 a.m,

Fresant: &

Rear Admirsl Arthur G, Robinson, U. S. Navy,

Lieutenant Colonel Henry K. Rfpcoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,
| Lisutenant Colonel Vietor J, Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United
iStates Army,
: Lieutenant Commander Sradner V. Lee, junior, U. 3. YNaval Heserve,
' ¥sjor Andrev I, Lyman, U. 3. Harine Corps, members, and
| Lieutenant Commender Joseph A, HRegan, U. 3. Navy, and
Lieutenant James P. Kenny, U. S. Navy, judge advocates.
i Stewart R. Smith, yeoman first class, U. 3. Navy, reporter,
! The accused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the third day of the trial was read and
approved.

No wiinesses not otherwise comnected with the trial were present.
‘ A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn,
Examined by the judge advocate:

|1. Q, State your name and former rank,
|A, My name is Sano, Giichi, My rank ie Kempei (iiilitary Folice) First
Lieutenant, Imperial Japanese irmy.,

2., Q. If you recognize these eccused, state who they are.
A, Captain Koichi, Eehind him is First Lieutenant Onose. Beside Kolchl is
First Lieutenant Ketsuyama, Behind Katsuyara is Sergeant Major Tsuchlya.

3, Q. InMay of 1945 were you attached to the Imperial Japanese hrmy at
| Pelau?
A, 1 was,

L Q. To what unit were you attached?
A. I was attached to the military pelice, which was attached to the 14th
Divislon, :

5, Q. In the month of May did you have occasion to see a prisoner of war
hnt the Kempeital Headquarters?
A, Tes.

6. Q. Can you explain for this commission how that prisoner happened to
come to the Kempeital?

A. The commanding officer of the Kempeital, Miygzaki, said, "The Dol Unit
of Koror will bring one prisoner to the Kempelial Headgquarters, Yajima will

-
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investigate him firat at the Kempeltai, He will be brought first tc the
Eempeital and Yajima will come to the Kempeltai to investigate him." I did
not know the reason why he was brought here., On that same day Yajima came to
the Kempeitai with Hemano and investigated the priscner for the first time
and then brought the prisoner to the divleion headgquarters. Two or three days
later the prisoner was again brought to the Kempeital and stayed about one
|day. Soon after *hat, First Lieutenant Cnose and Sergeant Major Tsuchiya of
the division headquarters came to the Kempeltal and the prisoner was handed
. J over to them. That 1a about all I know,

7« Q. WVere you present when the prisoner was questioned by Yajima?
A, I was there because I was ordered by the commanding officer.

8. Q. Did you learn the name of this prisoner?
A, Firat Lieutenant Xaufman,

|9« Qs Did you learn from the interrogation how tli,priacner happened to be c?vg
taken a prisoner by the Japaneae forces?

Hﬁ. I did.

10, Q. How did he hapren to be taken prisoner?

A, Around May, 1945, the Koror Antieaireraft Unit shot down a plane., A
native reported to the Dol Unit about this prisoner and the Doi Unit went out
to caoture the prisoner who came down, This nprisoner was brought to head-
|quarters and was questioned there., I was told this by the commanding officer)

| Miyagaki,

| The accused moved to strlke out this answer on the ground that it was
hearsay.

|

! The commission directed that the answer be stricken out.,

|11, Q. From what you heard during the interrogation of the prisoner, did
|you learn his nationality?

|A. I just know that he was an American,

; The accused moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it was
ihanraay.

| The judge advocate replied,
| The commission directed that the anawer be atricken out.

12, Q. When the prisoner was interrogated by Yajims, was he asked his

nationality?
A, He was.

{
13, Q. V¥Yhat did he say his nationality was?

This question was objected to by the maccused on the ground that it
called for hearsay. y

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
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A, / I do not understand English, but as Hamano was there writing down the
answers I saw in his report the first word which said "American,™ but I eould

not see the rest,

14, Q. How long was this prisoner kept at the Kempeitai?
A, I believe the prisoner was brought to the Kempeital and that evening he
{was brought to the headquarters,

{15, Q. After being taken to headguarters, was he again taken to the Kempel-
| tal?

This question was ohjected to by the accused on the ground that 1t was
|leading.

The judge advocate withdrew the question.

116, Q. You say that Lieutenant OUnose and Tasuchiya came for the prisoner,
How long after the first arrival of the prisonar at the Kempeitai was thias?
A, About two or three days, I think,

17. Q. Did Onose say why he wanted the prisoner?
|A. I did not hear anything, '

|18, Q. Who surrendered the prisoner to Onose? a
A. 1 handed the priscner over to Cnose by the orders of the commanding
officer,

19. Q. V¥as anybody else present when you handed the prisoner over to Unose?
A, Sergeant lMajor Tsuchiya was there and 1 believe there was one person

from the photographic squad,

|20, Q. Was anybody else sent along with the prisoner?

A The commanding officer said that Onose was coming to take the prisomer
\and to have one person of the Kempeital go along. It could be amyone, so 1
'had one Kempel go along with Onose and the prisoner., This was by orders of
(the commanding officer,

21, Q. For what reascn was this Kempel sent along with the priscner?

A, It think there was somothing said to the commanding officer from div-
ision headquarters but the commanding officer only said to me "There 1a an
officer coming from the headquarters to bring the prisoner so have a non=-
commissioned officer or an assistant Kempel go along," That is all I kmow,

The accused moved that this answer be stricken on the ground that it
was hearsay.

The commiseion directed that the answer be stricken out.

22, Q. Who was the Kempel who was sent along?
A I do not remember,

23, Q. Did you ever pee Kaufman again after that time?
A, No, I haven't,

Cross-examined by the accused: 4

24e Q. Who, or what organigation at the 1lith Division, was responsible for
the safety and custody of prisoners of war?

A, I think the unit who eaptured the prisoner., They have the responsibil-
ity.
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The accused recuested that the question be repeated by the interpreter,
The queastion was repeated by the interpreter.

A. (Con't). That was the intelligence section of the headquarters,

. He was the staff officer of the intelligence sectlowm, Yajima,

26, Q. What kind of an organization was this that you belonged to, the
Kempeltai?

I By orders of the 14th Division there was a South Sea Kempeitai formed
land this was attached to the 14th Division and by its order ocur work was to
igat all the information of various sources.

27, Q. Did the organization have the custody of prisoners?
A, V¥e were not ordered to that effect,

28, Q. Who was the commanding officer of the Kempeitai of the 14ith Divisioni
A, Lieutenant Colonel kiiyazaki.

29, Q. Were you his assistant?
A, I was a subordinate to Miyaszaki,

30, Q. Who turned this prisoner, Kaufman, over to the Kempeitai?
A. A non-commissioned officer of the Doi Unit brought the prisoner to the

Kempeitai.,

31, Q. TVere you there when he brought the prisoner to the Kempeitail
« Yes, I was,
2. Q. TVhat did you do with him?

. Before the prisoner was brought, the headquarters told the commanding
fficer of the Kempeitai that one prisoner would be brought to the Kempeitai

[above was relayed to the Kempeital commanding officer from headguarters.

73, Q. Did you lock Keufman up?
. Soon after he was brought to the Kempeitai he was brought to the cone
erence room at the Kempeitai., And scon after that staff officer Yajima came

Q. Did Keufman ever leave the custody of the Kempeital at any time?
After the prisoner was brought to the Kempeitai, staff officer Yajima
righ to the Kempeitei and interrogated the prisoner and after he
ntarroga he was brought to the division headquarters.

5., Q. What kind of place did the Kempeital keep Kaufman in when they had
tody of him?
. He was not confined,

rom the Dol Unit, so the Kempeital was to keep custody oq‘t.hiu prisoner. The

L

|

25, Q. Who is the head of the intelligence section ?fheadquurteru? |

. Q. What specific orders did Yajima give the Kempeitai regarding this
risoner?
'hlt-‘dﬂ you mean by "what kind of orders"?

. Q. Didn't you have any orders whem you took over Kaufman from Yajima?
There was no order in particular,
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38, Q. Who ordered you to turn him over to Onose?
A, I was ordered by the commanding officer.

39. Q. By the commanding officer, you mean whom?
A, I was ordered by Lieutenant Colonel Miyazeki, "a first lieutenamt will
come from the headquarters, Turn the prisoner over %o him,"

40. Q. Did he tell you to tie the prisoner before you turned him over to
4 . Onose?

A, The prisoner was handed over to Onose and before he left for Koror I
think the commanding officer ordered the prisoner be tied.

4L, Q. Who tied the prisoner?
A, One Kempei non-commissioned officer tled the prisoner but I have for-
gotten his name.

42, Q. This Lieutenant Colonel Miyasaki, did he tell you that you would get
‘this priscner back again?
A, I did not hear this,

43. Q. Why did you send one of your Kempeital along?
A. I do not know about this, I was just ordered to send one Kempel along.

Lh. Q. Vho does know about this?
A. I believe Captain Nekamura of the Kempeital knows about this,

|45. Q. 'hat orders did you give this Kempel that you sent along with
(Kaufman?

A, He was not one of my subordinates, lHe was one of the subordinates of
Nekamura so I did not give any srecific orders.

46. Q. Do you know whether Nakemura gave him orders? '
A, That I do not kmow,
47. Q. Vas this Kempei armed? {
A, Yes, he was armed,

|28, Q. Did he ever come back to the Kempeltai?
A. He came back,

49. Q. Did he make any report about the prisonmer, Kaufman?
A, He was not my subordinate so I did not hear anything.

|50, Q. Do you knmow where this Captain Nekamura 1s?
A. At present he is with me,

51, Q. Where is that? In the stockade at Guam?
A, Yes.

52, Q. Do you know hm*mw times Yajima came to the Kempeital to interrogate K
this prisoner?

. He ceme right after the prisoner was brought to the Kempeitai and later
he came once, so I think he came twice.

53, Q. Isn't it true that the prisoner was always interrogated at the
empeital and never was brought to the headquarters? Isn't this true?
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A, 'That is not true. Yajima came to the Kempeital and questioned the pris-
oner and went back to the headquarters. He came back right away and around
evening of that day the prisoner was brought to the division headquarters.
About two or three days later he was brought back and scon after that Onose

know about this fact that he was brought over to the headguartera,.

‘54, Q. Did you see the prisoner being brought to the headquarters with your

own eyesai
A, Yes, I did.

55, Q. Vhen Unose and Tsuchiys came to the Kempeitai to get the priscner,
(did you eay anything to these persons?
A, Yes, I did., I esked First Lieutenant Unose where he was going to bring

itha prisoner,

156, Q. Vhat did he say?
i, I heard from there he was going to be sent to Koror on & boat.

The judge advocate did not deeire to reexamine this witness,

The commission did not desire to exeqﬁp this witness.

| The witness sald that he had nothing further to state,
The vitness was duly warned and withdrew,

| The commission then, at 10:13 s.m., took a recess until 10138 a.m., at
jwhich time 1t reconvensed.

Pregent: All the mewbers, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the lnterpreters,

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman firat class, U, 3. Navy, reporter,
¥o witnesses not otherwise comnected with the trisl vere present,

The judge advocate was cslled as a ritness for the prosecution and was
duly sworn.

! Examined by the judge advocate:

l. Q. State ycur name, rank, and present duties,

h. James F, Kenny, lieutenant, U, S. Wavy, judge advocate of thls
commission,

2a Q. If you recognize the accused, stute as whom,

The witness correcily identified each of the accused,

3e Qe Are you the legal custodian of a document Involving one Vallace F.
ufman which concerns the issues of this case?
I am
L L]

e Qe If you have this document, will you prndﬁcu it?
I do, and here it is,
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The document produced by the witness was submitted to the accused and to
the commission, and by the judge advocate offered in evidence.

The accused rejuested permission to cross=examine this witness beiore the
introduction of the document, :

'he commission mnnounced that the request of the accused was granted,

5 J Cmﬂ-emin&d by the accused: ‘55;;(

5. Q. How did this document get intoc your custody?

A, The document was forwarded to me as & member of the staff cf the
Director of War Crimes, Pacific Fleet, by Lieutenant Colonel Willlam L. Gill,
chief of the investigation divliaion, SCAP,

6e Qe Is this document an original document?
A, The forwarding endorsement by Lieutenant Colonel Williem k. G1ll 1s
loriginal, The document itself contains copies of officlal Army reports.

W Q. Is the forwarding endorsement signed and dated?
lj.. It is.

8, Q. Is it sworn to as to the coples being true or officlall

A, It containe a certification by Lieutenant Colonel Willlam R. Gill,

9. Qs 1Is the document or any part of it restricted?
A, Certain copies of this officlal Army document are classified restricted.

10, Q. As the custodian, have you the authority from the originator of thle .
docunent, or from anyone in authority, to introduce this document into evi- |
dence before this commission? |
A, I have authority under Article 75, U.,S. Nevy Hegulations, 1920,

11, Q. Is the entire document to be offered into evidence and made a part ;
of the record? :
A, It is so offered. l

The introduction of this document into evidence was objected to by the
accused on the grounds that it was a restricted document, that the documents
1ara reports, thet they state the opinion of the investigators, and that they
are hearsay.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission was cleared.

The commission was opened and all perties to the trial entered. The
commission announced that the cbjection was not sustained. There being no
further objection, the document was so received in evidence, and is appended
[ marked "Exhibit 1",
|
Beexamined by the judge advocate:

12. Q. Will you please read from the document those sections that deal
with the burlal of Vallace F, Kaufman?

|| The witness read pages 6, 7, and 8 of "Exhibit 1%,




An interpreter read a Japanese translation of pages 6, 7, end & of
FExhibit 1%,

The accused did not desire to recross-examire this witness,

The commisslon did not desire to examine this wiltneass,

The witness resumed his seat as judge advocate.

P

The commission then, at 11:25 a.m., tock & recess until 2:15 p.m., at
which time 1t reconvened,

Fresent: All the members, the judge advocates, the sccused, their
counsel, and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, and Stewart &,
(Smith, yeoman first class, U, 3, Mavy, reporters.

I No witnesses not otherwise commected with the trial were present,

A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn.

Examined by the judge advocate: J

l. Q. Will you please state your name and rank?
A, Herbert L, Cgden, commander, U, 5, Navy.

2+ Q. TVill you please tell ua yocur present duties? i
A, Investigator with the Director, War Crimes, Pacific Fleet, ;

(3. Q. If you recognize these accused, please state their names,
A. T recognize Kolchi, Katsuyama, Cnose and Tsuchiya, !

4se Q. Are you the legal custodian of certain statements made by these
accused and pertaining to the issues of this case?
}1. I an. 1

iﬁ- Q. Till you tell this commission how these statements came intoc your
| possesslon?

iA, These statements were forwarded to our office here by a lialson officer
in Tokye by courier,

6, Q. After you received these statements what did you do with them?

A. I took these statements to the Var Criminal Stocketde and talked to each
of the accused individually for the purpose of having him verify the truth of
the original statement and the correctness of the translation, I handed the
accused the original (Japanese) of his statement and handed the interpreter,
Mr, Savery, the English translation, I had Mr. Savory read the English tran-
alation back to the sccused in Japanese. Each of the accused then stated
that the Japanese statement wae correct and after certaln corrections on the
translation, which e on the face of the translation, were made, they then|57
swore to the truth of the statement s translated.

7« Qs At the time these accused swore to the truth of the statements, was
it in your presence?
A. Yes, soir,




8. Q. Prior to their siyming or at the time of their signing, did you make
any of the accused any promises whatsocever?
A. I did not.

9., Q. Prior to their signing or at the time of their signing these state=
ments, did you use any duress upon any of these accused?
.l.l- I did nﬂt-

The doocuments produced by the witness were submitted to the accused and !
to the commisslon, and by the judge advocate offered in evidence,

The accused requested permlssion to cross-examine this witness before ths
introduction of the focuments,

The commission announced that the request of the accused was granted,
Cross=examined by the accused:
10, Q. Prior to the time that you tock these statements down to the Yar
Criminales Stockade to have the accused swear to them and sign them, did you
read these statements?
Ay Yes, sir.
11, Q. TVaes this part of your regular duty to investigate this particular
cage?

.L-- YHE, gir,

12, Q. WVere these four accused civilians at the time you took these state-
ments down to have them sworn tof

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that it
was irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused replied,
The commission amnounced that the objection was sustained,

13 W+ At the time that you examined Kolchi, Katsuyama, Onocse, and Tsuchiya,
and had them swear to these statements, did they have counsel?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that it
was lrrelevant and immaterial,

The accused rerlied.
The commission amnounced that the objection was not sustained,

. No coumsel for the accused was present at that time,

14. Q. Did you warn these four accused that anything they might say might
be used against them?
fa. T simply asked them to verify the truth of a previously made statement,

-
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15. Qs« The original documents, are they signed, dated, and sworn to?
A, Do you mean the origzinal in Javanese?

15, Q. TYes,
A. The translation shows that they were si_ned,

7e¢ Qe 1Is the original sworn to?
A No, sir,

18, Q. Do you know whelher Kolchi wrote this original when he was held in
confinement in Sugamoc Frison?
A. I de not know.

19, Q. Do you know who was present when he wrote it?

b F
A, I am informed that Licutenant Tremayne was present when all these
gtatements were made,

20, Q« WVere you present when any. of them were written?
A, I was not.

21, Q« Do you knovr If anyorne else excent Lieutenant Tremayne was present
when they were written?
&, I do not know who was present when they were written,

22, Q. ihen you called thcae four accused one at a time ocut at the Var
Criminals Stockede, diC you give thum to understand they wers at liberty not
to swear to these statements? I
i, That was clearly undsratood. I
I

23 Qe But did you inform him that he was &t liberty not to make the state=
men?;f
A, 71 statement do you mean verification? Pl

24s s Yeop, in other words, did you tell him that he wvas at liberty not to
make this verification?

As I simply asked each of the accused 1f he were willing to swear to the
truth of the translatlion, They &ll appeared willing to do so.

25: Qe Isn't it true that these verifications, this swearing to these stated
mehts that you had these four accused make, they were made after you had
determined in your own mind that an accusation might be made against them?

Thls questicn was objected to by he judge advocate on the ground that it
wae incompetent, irrelevant, and immaterial,

The accused replied,

The commission ammounced that the objection was sustained.

26, Q. Did you inform any of these four accused that an accusation against
them might be implied because they were involved to such an extent im this
cabe? -

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that' i
was irrelevant and immaterial,




The sccused made no reply.

l The commission amnounced that the objection was sustaimed,

!2?- Q. Did you inform any of these persons that they, Kolchi, Katsuyama,
|[Cnoss, and Tsuchiya, might he accused if they signed this statement?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and imma terial,

The accused made no reply.
The commission anmounced that the objection was sustained.

28, Q. Did you inform any of those accused of the glat of the evidence
against them?

This cuestion was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused made no reply,
The commiseion anmounced that the objection was sustained.

29, Q. Did you imstruct any of these four accused that they had the right of
any witnese to refuse to answer statements that were ineriminating or degrad-

ing?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial,

The acrused made no reply.
The commission ammounced that the cbjection was sustained.

{JD. Q. You etated that none of these four had counsel, Did any of these

{four, at the tinme that they signed these statements, ever waive the right to
have counsel?

This gquestion vas ohjected to by the judge advocate on the ground that 14
wag irrelevant end immaterial.

The accused made no reply.

The commission anncunced that the objection was sustained,

Commander Martin E, Garlsnn,' counsel for the accused, read a written
objection to the receipt of these documente into evidence, appended marked "P.®

The judge advooate replied.

The commission was cleared,

The commission was opemed and all parties to the trial entered, The
commission ammounced that the objection was not sustained and the statements
would be reccived in evidence, The commission directed that am interpreter's
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‘note be entered im that portion of Tsuchiya'es statement which was brought intd
contention by the counsel for the defense, in order to clarify for the com-
miseion the exact nature of the interpretation. The statement of Kolehi,
Hirce, in English, and the original Japanese thereof, were marked "Exhibit 2"
and "Exhibit 3" respectively. The statement of Katsuyama, Teteuji, in English,
and the original Japanese thereof, were marked "Exhibit 4" and "Exhibit 5"
respectively. The statement of Onose, Ichiro, in English, and the original
Japanese thersof, were marked "Exhibit 6" and "Exhibit 7" respectively. The
statement of Tsuchiya, Nachiko, in English, and the originsl Jepanese thereof,
were marked "Exhibit 8" and "Exhibit 9" respectively.

Reexamined by the judge advocate:

31, Q. Till you read the statement of Koichi? |

marked "Exhibit 2.7

An interpreter read the statemsnt in Japanese, appended marked "Exhibit
3.

32, Qe Will you read the statement of Katsuyama?

The witness read the statement o~ Katsuyama, Teteuji, in English,
appended marked "Exhibit 4."

An interpreter read the statement in Japenese, appended marked

33, Q. W1l you read the statement of Unose?

| The witness read the statément of Onose, Ichiro, in English, appended
marked "Exhibit 6,"

An interpreter read the statement in Japanese, appended marked "Exhibit
7.m
| L]

34, Q. Will you read the statement of Tsuchiya?

The witness read the statement of Tsuchiya, Nachiko, in Emglish, appended
marked "Exhibit 8.7

An interpreter read the statement in Japanese, appended marked
"Exhibit 9."

The accused did not deslre to recross-examine this witness.

The commissiom did not desire to examine this witness.

The witnese said that he had nothing further to state,

The witness was duly warned and withdrew,.

The accused read a written plea in abatement, appended marked "Q,"
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plea for directed aequittal in the case of Onose, Ichiro, appended marked "R.M

| of Onose, Ichiro, was denied,

Iplen for directed acquittal in the case of Tsuchiya, Naohibo, appended marked
wg n

of Tsuchiya, Naohiko, was demled.

December 2, 1947, tc allow time to properly prepare the case for the defense.

Monday, December 1, 1947.

The judge advocate replied,
The commission anmounced that the plea was denied,
The prosecution rested,

Cromiander Martin E, Carlsom, counsel for the accused, read & written

The judge advocate replied.

The commissior ammoumced that the plea for directed acquittal in the case
Commander Martin E, Carlson, coumsel for the accused, read a written
The judge advocate replied,

The commission amnounced that the plea for directed acquittal in the case
The accussd requested that the commission adjourn until 9 a.m., Tuesday,

The comission amnounced that the commission would adjourn until 9 a.m.,

The commission them, at 4:25 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m,, Monday,
December 1, 1947,
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